5:00 pm

5:05 pm

5:15 pm

5:20 pm

5:25 pm

5:45 pm
5:50 pm
5:55 pm
6:00 pm
6:05 pm
6:55 pm

7:00 pm
7:15 pm

7:20 pm

10.

12.

13.

14.

MIDDLETON SELECT BOARD
MEETING AGENDA AMENDED
FULLER MEADOW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
143 SOUTH MAIN STREET, MIDDLETON, MA 01949

TUESDAY, JULY 8, 2025
5:00 PM
This meeting is being recorded
Business

e  Warrant: 2526, 2527, FP64, FP65
s  Minutes: Open Session, June 24
e  Town Administrator Updates and Reports
e  Middleton Municipal Campus Update

Department Head Update: Scott Fitzpatrick
Liquor License Violations:
a. 232 South Main St. — Vinumn — Walk-in Cooler and Mounted Sign
b. 156 South Main St. — Richdale - Walk-in Cooler, Work without permit
FY25 Year-end transfers
Select Board Town Employee Recruitment and Retention Strategies

a. Potential Employee Handbook revisions: Use of Personal Days during probationary
period; Paid Parental Leave Policy; Addition of family members to Bereavement

Leave Policy.
Right of First Refusal: 52 Peaslee Circle
Updated Use of Force Policy
Annual Appointments (list of appointments attached to agenda as Appendix A)
Public Comment (to be held at 6pm for all Select Board meetings)

Surplus Town Property Discussion: Memorial Hall and Locust St

Updates & Announcements

Executive Session pursuant to G.L. c. 304, s. 21(a)(3) to discuss strategy with respect to litigation if
an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining or litigating position of the public
body and the chair so declares: Discussion of litigation relative to MBTA Communities Act (M.G.L.
c. 40A, §3A) and follow up to June 12™ determination to appeal decision re: Middleton v

Commonwealth.

Executive Session pursuant to G.L. c. 304, s. 21(a)(3) to discuss strategy with respect to collective

bargaining negotiations: Discussion of Police Union Collective Bargaining Agreement.

The Board reserves the right to consider items on the agenda out of order. Not all items listed may in fact be discussed
and other items not listed may also be broughi up for discussion to the extent permiited by law.



Upcoming Meetings August 5 Regular Select Board Meeting
September 2 Regular Select Board Meeting
September 16 Regular Select Board Meeting

Appendix A

Annual Appointments
Affordable Housing Trust — At-Large — 1 seat — 2 year term — Thomas Martinuk
Patriotic Observances — 1 seat — 3 year term — Matthew Daly

Zoning Board of Appeals — Alternate — 1 seat — 3 year term — Anthony Mirabito

Select Board member designee to Master Plan Committee (Moderator Appoints)

Page 2 of 2



Draft -

MEETING MINUTES
MIDDLETON SELECT BOARD MEETING
FULLER MEADOW SCHOOL, NATHAN MEDIA CENTER
143 SOUTH MAIN STREET, MIDDLETON, MA 01949
June 24, 2025 at 5pm

With a quorum present in the absence of the Chair D. Carbone called the meeting to order at 5pm.

This meeting was recorded.

Select Board present: Debbie Carbone, Clerk; Rick Kassiotis; Kosta Prentakis; Jeff Garber Not present: Brian Cresta.
Also attending: Justin Sultzbach, Town Administrator; Jackie Bresnahan, Assistant Town Administrator; others as noted.

The Board reserves the right to consider items on the agenda out of order. Not all items listed may in fact be discussed
and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.

1. Business
Warrant: 2525 / June 12, 2025: Payroll: $ 932,000; Bills Payable $ 930,000 (includes legal expenses related to 3A
Zoning); FP63 $ 170,000.
The Town Accountant/Finance Director Sarah Wood has reviewed the warrant and requested the Board ’s approval.
Town Administrator Sultzbach provided a brief overview of the warrant as presented.
Vote: On a motion by Kassiotis, seconded by Garber, the Board voted unanimously to approve Warrant 2525
and FP63.

Minutes: Open Session June 3, 2025; June 12, 2025; Executive Session June 12, 2025
Vote: On a motion by Kassiotis, seconded by Garber, the Board voted unanimously to approve the minutes as
presented.

Town Administrator Updates & Reports- J. Sultzbach

« Superintendent Goodwin and Town Administrator Sultzbach have been representing Middleton at the Ipswich River
Lower Basin Subcommittee. The group is charged by the North Shore Water Resilience Task Force to explore options
to address water and environmental concerns in the region and seek consensus agreements on water supply and
water resource solutions.

e Due to staffing issues the Flint Public Library will be running reduced hours this summer. We will reevaluate in
several weeks and are open to adding hours or redistributing hours for August, depending on availability of staffing
and other factors.

» All Department Head annual evaluations are complete, capping off a month’s long process.

» The one-year mark for the Municipal Campus project has been reached, with the anniversary of the groundbreaking
passing this past Friday. As a reminder, a conversation will be had at your July 8" meeting about names for the
buildings.

+ The Building Committee will be meeting virtually this upcoming Thursday, June 26" at 4:30pm.

« The surplus property series will continue at your upcoming July 9t Select Board meeting with a conversation
centered around the future of Memorial Hall and the Locust Street property.

» The Town Administrator will be serving up food at Chief Wills day this upcoming Saturday, hope to see you there!

«  Wishing the residents of Middleton safe and happy 4™ of July! As always, thank you to those on are staff that are
working on the holiday, their effort is noticed and appreciated.

2, Appointment of Detective Adam Maccini to Police Sergeant - Police Chief Sampson was present and recommended
Detective A. Maccini to be the next Police Sergeant. He reviewed A. Maccini’s 20 year work history with the Town oof
Middleton and his numerous qualifications. The Board members recognized Detective Maccini for his outstanding
service to the town.
Vote: On a motion by Garber, seconded by Prentakis, the Board voted unanimously to approve the appointment
of Adam Maccini as Police Sergeant for the Town of Middleton.

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
June 24, 2025 Page 1/5



Draft

3. Appointment of Full Time Police Officers: David Woumn and Robert Tanso - Police Chief Sampson gave a brief
overview of the candidates background checks, experience, and education. He highly recommended both candidates be
appointed to the Middleton Police Department as full time officers.
Vote: On a motion by Kassiotis, seconded by Garber, the Board voted unanimously to appoint David Woumn and
Robert Tanso as full time Middleton Police Officers for a three-year term through June 30, 2028 with a one-year
probationary period.

The agenda was taken out of order with consensus

4. Quarter 3 Financial Report (as of March 31) - Finance Director Sarah Wood was present and provided an overview of

the third quarter FY25 Financial Report for the General Fund, CPA Fund, Water Enterprise Fund, Sewer Enterprise fund

and a summary of appropriation accounts, revolving accounts special revenue accounts, and trust funds. Highlighted for

the minutes:

o The general fund was 71 % expended.

o Thereis $1.9mm of approved Capital projects outstanding

o Revenue collections are in line with estimates — 89 % have been collected. It is expected all local receipt categories
will be over 100% of benchmarks by the end of the year.

o CPA expenditures are at 99 %

5. FY25 Year-end transfers- S. Wood reviewed the end of year transfer requests allowed in the last two months of the
fiscal year or the first 15 days of the new fiscal year, in accordance with MGL Ch 44, § 33B.
Total requested amount: $101,635.03.
Vote: On a motion by Garber, seconded by Prentakis, the Board voted unanimously to transfer $101,635.03
from the comp reserve, unemployment liability insurance, and library to the account mentioned.

6. Ambulance Write-Offs — S. Woods reviewed the Ambulance “write offs” at about 17%. This is in line with the
historical trend. Outstanding bills are sent to a third party collection agency and any funds collected still go into the
ambulance fund.
S. Woods referenced the bankruptcy case with Health Cost Solutions; the third party provider has requested the town
write off amounts deemed uncollectable before they file for bankruptcy. Of the initial $32,880 the town has since
received payment of $13,280 leaving an outstanding balance of $19,000.
Vote: On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Garber, the Board voted unanimously to approve ambulance write
offs of $134223.22 from yar 2022 and 532,880 from fiscal years 24 & 25.

7. Ambulance Carrier Contract Update — ). Sultzbach updated the Board saying he and Fire Chief LeColst worked on this
ambulance contract for the Essex County Correctional facility. He received an update from Vital Core Health Strategies
prior to the meeting. The proposed contract is July 1, 2025- June 30, 2026 with an option for a 12 month renewal. Of
interest in the contract an individual must submit an invoice within 30 days. He continued to give a high level overview
of the terms and recommended the Board accept the agreement.
Vote: On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Garber, the Board voted unanimously to accept the ambulance
carrier agreement for the Essex County Correctional facility with Vital Core Health Strategies.

8. Liquor License Change of Manager Application - American Legion Liquor License change of manager application
review/vote. New manager Pam Munroe. - P. Munroe and the Commander Paul Syra were present and fielded questions
from the Board. The former manager left and they are requesting P. Munroe as the manager.
Vote: On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Garber, the Board voted unanimously to approve the change of
manager at the American Legion to Pam Munroe.

9. One Day liquor license - Cellar Door - June 28th, 2025 - Parking lot of The Natural Dog located at 189 S Main St.
Middleton, MA 01949- This even was cancelled and the application withdrawn.

5:52pm - The Board recessed and reconvened at 6:03pm.
10. Public Comment (To be held at 6pm for all Select Board meetings) — There was none.

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
June 24, 2025 Page 2/5



Draft

11. Joint Meeting Library Trustees to appoint members to Library Director Search Screening Committee
(List of candidates attached to agenda as Appendix B).
The candidates were interviewed in the order they appeared on the agenda:
o Beth Andres-Beck
« Claire Burday
o Rachel Nemeth
« Zina Gerolimatos
» *Allison Sloan removed herself as a candidate during the voting process; this allowed her to be eligible to vote
as a trustee.
Call to order: With a quorum present the Chair called the Library Trustees meeting to order at 6:04 pm.
Present: Mark Moreschi, Chair; Susan Piccole, Vice Chair/Secretary; Maria Paikos-Hantzis, Kosta Prentakis;
*Trustee Allison Sloan, was present via Zoom as a candidate and did not participate as a Trustee during the interviews.

J. Sultzbach reviewed at a previous meeting the parameters for the Library Director Screening Committee were decided
to include an at large appointment from the Select Board and one from the Trustees.
The candidates were interviewed simultaneously by both boards/committees and given equal opportunities to speak on
their qualifications, and answer/ask questions.
Select Board Vote: on a motion by Prentakis, Seconded by Garber, the Board voted unanimously by roll call
nominate all five candidates for the Select Board appointment to the at-large position.
The Chair called for individual votes from the Board, with Zina Gerolimatos receiving three supporting votes and Rachel
Nemeth receiving one.
D. Carbone —Z. Gerolimatos J. Garber —R. Nemeth
R. Kassiotis - Z. Gerolimatos
K. Prentakis - Z. Gerolimatos

Trustees Vote: On a motion by M. Paikos-Hantzis, seconded by S. Piccole, the Trustees voted unanimously by roll
call nominate the remaining four candidates for the Library Trustees appointment to the at-large position.
The Chair called for individual votes from the Board with Rachel Nemeth receiving three supporting votes and Claire
Burday receiving two. (A. Sloan withdrew her candidacy)
S. Piccole = R. Nemeth M. Moreschi — C. Burday
M. Paikos-Hantzis- R. Nemeth K. Prentakis — C. Burday
A. Sloan - R. Nemeth

Trustees Vote: On a motion by M. Paikos-Hantzis, seconded by S. Piccole, the Trustees voted unanimously by roll
call to enter into Executive session to consider or interview applicants for employment or appointment by a preliminary
screening committee if the Chair declares that an open meeting will have a detrimental effect in obtaining qualified
applicants; provided, however, that this clause shall not apply to any meeting, including meetings of a preliminary
screening committee, to consider and interview applicants who have passed a prior preliminary screening; per M.G.L. c.
30A sec 21(a}(8) — Interim Library Director and return to open session to appoint an Interim Director (If needed). The
Trustees relocated the ES meeting to another room. These minutes are separate.
6:18pm- K. Prentakis left the Select Board meeting to participate as a Trustee in the Executive Session.

The agenda was taken out of order with consensus.

12. Response to Open Meeting Law (OML) Violation

J. Sultzbach reviewed an OML complaint was received from a resident and must filed within 30 days and provide a

response. He went on to provide a brief summary of the five items listed and the response:

e The board denies any such deliberation occurred outside of the meeting

¢ Open meeting laws must allege violations with sufficient specificity and no dates times or evidence was provided
relative to the allegations

e The allegations that the members violated campaign finance laws are outside the scope of the open meeting law

» The DOJ declines to review allegations against individuals who are not acting in their official capacity as members
of a public body; the incident described falls under that category

Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
June 24, 2025 Page 3/5



Draft

o The complaint itself was untimely - open meeting law complaints must be made within a 30-day window of the
alleged violation and this complaint came in well after that point in time
Vote: On a motion by Kassiotis, seconded by Prentakis, the Board voted 3-0-1 to authorize the Town
Administrator to submit the complaint with Garber abstaining, citing he was not a part of the alleged activity.

13. Update to MBTA Litigation - The Town, with other communities, engaged in a lawsuit in April with the state relative
to the MBTA 3A Zoning Communities Law as an unfunded mandate. The unfunded mandate was struck down and the
Board took the position to appeal the ruling; the appeal has since been filed. The Select Board will meet in Executive
Session at their July 8 meeting regarding this litigation.

14. *Authorization by Selectboard to submit Charter Home Rule Petition to Legislature - J. Sultzbach summarized this
action to submit the updated Charter Home Rule Petition to the Legislature was response to Town Meeting approving
Article 20, the Charter Committee’s recommended revisions.
Vote: On a motion by Kassiotis, seconded by Garber, the Board voted 3-0-1 to submit the authorization by the
Select Board to the Legislature for Charter Home Rule Petition with K. Prentakis not present for the vote.

15. Annual Appointments (list of appointments attached to agenda as Appendix A)

Vote: On a motion by Prentakis, seconded by Garber, voted 3-0-1 to appoint the following to the Middleton
Police Department for a three year term with R. Kassiotis abstaining.

o Reserve Patrol Officers: Leonardo Jorge; Richard Kassiotis; Mark Finer

o Patrol Officers: Kosta Agganis, Henry Bouchard; Samantha Cila; Roby Deschenes; Ryan Duval; Brian Kelley;

Jordan Kemp; Isabella Palmeira; Jonathan Santiago; Melissa Witt

o Sergeants: Ronald Carpenter; Michael LeColst; Robert Peachey; David Arathuzik (through 7.5.25)

o Captain - Matthew Armitage

o Chief- William Sampson

Vote: On a motion by Kassiotis, seconded by Garber, voted 3-0-1 to appoint the following Appointments for
three-year terms unless otherwise noted:
Staff Appointments
o Fire Chief & Emergency Management Director - Douglas K. LeColst
Superintendent of Public Works - Paul Goodwin
Building Commissioner - Scott Fitzpatric
Local Building Inspector Alternate - E. Peter Swindell
Health Director- Traci Mello
Animal Control Officer & Inspector of Animals - Beverly Milward/Kevin Nichols
Assistant Health Agent -Ronald Beauregard
Board & Committee Re-Appointments
Affordable Housing Trust Member, At Large Member, 2 yrs - Andres-Beck Beth
Board of Health, 3 yrs - Greenfield Matthew
Board of Registrars Member 3 yrs - Cardinale Richard
Bylaw Review Committee, Member, 3 yrs - Bingham Justin
Cable Television Advisory Commission Member, 3 yrs - Pellicelli Paul
Cable Television Advisory Commission Member, 3 yrs - Erickson John
Cable Television Advisory Commission Member, 3 yrs - Gregorio Richard
Conservation Commission Member, 3yrs - Sliney Michael
Council on Aging Member, 3 yrs - Alfonso Margaret
Council on Aging Member, 3 yrs - Tirck Wendy
Council on Aging Member, 3 yrs - Shea-Desmond Joan
Cultural Council Member, 3 yrs - Givens Michael
Cultural Council Member, 3 yrs -Hartman Rosner Pam
Cultural Council Member, 3 yrs - Walter Meghan
Historical Commission Member, 3 yrs - Messenger Pike
Historical Commission Member, 3 yrs -Cote Anne

o)
Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes
June 24, 2025 Page 4/5

O 0O 0 O O o©

O 0 0o 0O 0 0 0 0 0 O 0O 0 O

o]

o}



Draft

o Industrial & Commercial Design Review, Member 3 yrs -Richards Linda
Patriotic Observances Committee Member 3 yrs -Kostos Steve

Rails to Trails Committee Member 3 yrs -Harris Armitage Sherri

Rails to Trails Committee Member 3 yrs - LeBlanc John

Scholarship Committee Member 3 yrs -Pendleton Rodney

Zoning Board of Appeals Member 5yrs -Damato-MacPherson Carolyn
Zoning Board of Appeals Alternate 1 yr - Richards Linda

e}

O O O ©o

[e]

6:33pm- the Select Board took a five minute recess; K. Prentakis returned to the meeting.

6:42pm -Select Board Liaison roles
Vote: On a motion by Garber, seconded by Kassiotis, the Board voted 3-0-1 Kosta Prentakis as the Municipal
Property Tax Relief liaison with K. Prentakis abstaining.
Vote: On a motion by Kassiotis, seconded by Prentakis, the Board voted 3-0-1 Jeff Garber as the Community
Preservation Committee ligison.
Vote: On a motion by Kassiotis, seconded by Prentakis, the Board voted unanimously Annie Wilton as the
designee of The Friends of the Flint Library as a Select Board appointment for the purposes of the Library Director
Screening Committee

16. Updates & Announcements

K. Prentakis, as the Select Board’s liaison to the Elementary School Committee, gave an update on a recent meeting with
the superintendent the assistant superintendent, two school committee members and the Finance Committee liaison nd
reviewed the dire view of FY27 and the goal to have a finalized budget earlier in the year i.e. March. There is another
meeting planned for August 6. He also met with the new chair of the Masco School Committee Chair, Matt Alexander.

Upcoming Select Board Meetings: July 8; August 5

Documents either distributed to the Select Board before the meeting, in a packet, or at the meeting:

«  Warrant 2525 / Facility Project 63

o Minutes

« Appointments

« FY 2025, 3rd Quarter Highlights — 5.15.25

« Recommendation for Appointments — Police Chief Sampson

« Request for Transfer of Appropriations- G. L. c. 44, s. 33B

« Ambulance Receivable Write-Off -J un e 2025

« Ambulance Receivable Write-Off - Health Cost Solutions Bankruptcy Case

» Proposed Revisions - Essex County Correctional Facility Ambulance Contract —6.17.25

« American Legion Post 227 Retail Alcoholic Beverages License Application - Amendment-Change Of Manager
o Email: ). Bresnahan - Library Director Screening Committee

+ Commonwealth of Massachusetts Superior Court - NOtice of Appeal — Plaintiff, Town of Middleton.
« 2025 Annual Town Meeting — May 13 — Article 20 Charter Review Recommendations.

Adjournment: The Board voted unanimously to adjourn at approximately 6:49pm.

Respectfully submitted by

Catherine E. Tinsley 6.30.25

Catherine Tinsley, Recording Secretary Debbie Carbone, Select Board Clerk
Respectfully submitted as approved by the Select Board at the meeting.
Middleton Select Board Meeting Minutes

June 24, 2025 Page 5/5



Justin Sultzbach

From: Scott Fitzpatrick

Sent: Tuesday, July 8, 2025 10:09 AM

To: Justin Sultzbach; Jackie Bresnahan

Subject: FW: 232 South Main St Middleton - Vinum Wine

From: Scott Fitzpatrick

Sent: Friday, May 16, 2025 11:08 AM

To: Normand Martin <nmartin@demoulasmarketbasket.com>

Cc: Doug LeColst (MFD) <douglas.tecolst@midfire.com>; Daniel Kessel (MFD} <daniel.kessel@midfire.com>;
rms9119@cs.com; Suzanne Delaney <sdelaney@demoulasmarketbasket.com>; Facilities Team
<facilities@demoulasmarketbasket.com>; Brian Metivier <bmetivier@demoulasmarketbasket.com>; Wayne Helliwell
<whelliwell@quickresponsefire.info>

Subject: RE: 232 South Main St Middleton - Vinum Wine

Hi Normand,

| wanted to update you, we have the application from your Fire Sprinkler Contractor along with his engineered drawings,
they have been sent to the fire prevention officer for review as required by the building code.

However you tenant has made no attempt to obtain the additional required permits:

e A building permit as the layout of the space changed — review of life safety, exit and emergency lights etc.

e Mechanical permit — for the cooler and refrigeration system

e Fire Alarm permit - as the layout of the space has changed and the system needs to be looked at to make sure all

devices still function and are located correctly based on the new layout

e Electrical permit - wiring to the new units as well as any other changes.
All permit applications should be accompanied by complete construction documents for the specific discipline prepared
and stamped by a Massachusetts Registered Design professional

Ultimately as the building owner the responsibility under the building code rests with your ownership group to resolve
the work without a permit violation.

Thank you,

Scott M. Fitzpatrick
Building Commissioner
Town of Middleton

195 North Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949
978-777-2850

From: Normand Martin <nmartin@demoulasmarketbasket.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 7, 2025 8:53 AM
To: Scott Fitzpatrick <scott.fitzpatrick@middletonma.gov>




Cc: Doug LeColst (MFD) <douglas.lecolst@midfire.com>; Daniel Kessel (MFD) <daniel.kessel@midfire.com>;
rms9119@cs.com; Suzanne Delaney <sdelanev@demoulasmarketbasket.com>; Facilities Team
<facilities@demoulasmarketbasket.com>; Brian Metivier <bmetivier@demoulasmarketbasket.com>; Wayne Helliwell
<whelliwell@quickresponsefire.info>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] - RE: 232 South Main St Middleton - Vinum Wine

[CAUTION:] This message was sent from outside of the Town of Middleton. Please do not click links or open attachments
unless you recognize the source of this email and know the content is safe.

Scott,

Wayne from Quick Response had a conversation with the Chief yesterday, the Chief informed him that a plan was
needed, the Design Engineer is going today with Wayne and will get us a stamped plan hopefully today.

Thank you for your patience.

Sincerely,

Normand Martin
Dir. Facilities & Planning
DSM Realty

A Division of Demoulas Supermarkets Inc.

978-640-8117

From: Scott Fitzpatrick <scott.fitzpatrick@middletonma.gov>

Sent; Wednesday, May 7, 2025 8:44 AM

To: Normand Martin <nmartin@demoulasmarketbasket.com>

Cc: Doug LeColst (MFD) <douglas.lecolst@midfire.com>; Daniel Kessel (MFD) <daniel.kessel@midfire.com>;
rms9119@cs.com; Suzanne Delaney <sdelaney@demoulasmarketbasket.com>; Facilities Team
<facilities@demoulasmarketbasket.com>; Brian Metivier <bmetivier@demoulasmarketbasket.com>
Subject: RE: 232 South Main St Middleton - Vinum Wine

Normand,

Please provide an update from the Fire Protection Engineer by end of business today, we have been extremely
cooperative leaving the building open with this violation.

Thank you,

From: Normand Martin <nmartin@demoulasmarketbasket.com>

Sent: Friday, May 2, 2025 10:03 AM

To: Scott Fitzpatrick <scott.fitzpatrick@middletonma.gov>

Cc: Doug LeColst (MFD) <douglas.lecolst@midfire.com>; Daniel Kesse! (MFD) <daniel.kessel@midfire.com>;
rms9119@cs.com; Suzanne Delaney <sdelaney@demoulasmarketbasket.com>; Facilities Team
<facilities@demoulasmarketbasket.com>; Brian Metivier <bmetivier@demoulasmarketbasket.com>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] - RE: 232 South Main St Middleton - Vinum Wine

[CAUTION:] This message was sent from outside of the Town of Middleton. Please do not click links or open attachments
unless you recognize the source of this email and know the content is safe.
Scott, understood and will update as I receive it!



Regards,

Normand Martin

Dir. Facilities & Planning
DSM Realty

A Division of Demoulas Supermnarkets Inc.

978-640-8117

From: Scott Fitzpatrick <scott.fitzpatrick@middletonma.gov>

Sent: Friday, May 2, 2025 9:53 AM

To: Normand Martin <nmartin@demoulasmarketbasket.com>

Cc: Doug LeColst (MFD) <douglas.lecolst@midfire.com>; Daniel Kessel (MFD) <daniel.kessel@midfire.com>;
rms9119@cs.com; Suzanne Delaney <sdelaney@demoulasmarketbasket.com>; Facilities Team
<facilities@demoulasmarketbasket.com>; Brian Metivier <bmetivier@demoulasmarketbasket.com>
Subject: RE: 232 South Main St Middleton - Vinum Wine

As always Norman thank you for your quick response! Based on our experience with your group | am well aware this is
not your style, unfortunately code requires violation notices be sent to property owners.

Please keep us updated, most important being the Fire Protection.

Thanks
Scott

Scott M. Fitzpatrick
Building Commissioner
Town of Middleton

195 North Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949
978-777-2850

From: Normand Martin <nmartin@demoulasmarketbasket.com>

Sent: Friday, May 2, 2025 9:50 AM

To: Scott Fitzpatrick <scott.fitzpatrick@middletonma.gov>

Cc: Doug LeColst (MFD) <douglas.lecolst@midfire.com>; Daniel Kessel (MFD) <daniel.kessel@midfire.com>;
rms9119@cs.com; Suzanne Delaney <sdelaneyv@demoulasmarketbasket.com>; Facilities Team
<facilities@demoulasmarketbasket.com>; Brian Metivier <bmetivier@demoulasmarketbasket.com>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] - RE: 232 South Main St Middleton - Vinum Wine

[CAUTION:] This message was sent from outside of the Town of Middleton. Please do not click links or open attachments
unless you recognize the source of this email and know the content is safe.

Scott, we are trying to get the tenant to get this rectified we had no idea they were doing this, as landlord | have Quick
Response Fire surveying the store and reaching out to the Chief LeColst.

| will keep you updated as | know more.



Thank you,

Normand Martin
Diyr. Facilities & Planning
DSM Realty

A Division of Demoulas Supermarkets Inc.

978-640-8117

From: Scott Fitzpatrick <scott.fitzpatrick@middletonma.gov>

Sent: Thursday, May 1, 2025 2:25 PM

To: Normand Martin <nmartin@demoulasmarketbasket.com>

Cc: Doug LeColst (MFD) <douglas.lecolst@midfire.com>; Daniel Kessel (MFD) <daniel.kessel@midfire.com>
Subject: 232 South Main St Middleton - Vinum Wine

Good morning Normand,

We have issued a Stop Work Order at 232 South Main St Unit B Middleton - Vinum Wine for the installation of a walk-in
cooler without permits. This installation would have required Building, Mechanical, Electrical, and Fire Protection
Permits. This installation is also causing an immediate danger as this modifies the design and coverage of the fire
protection systems. | am referring this to the Middleton Fire Department to asses the danger created and determine if
the building may remain occupied or occupied with conditions such as a Fire Watch until the violation is removed.

A complete Order to Correct with Fines will follow.
It also appears a sign was installed without permits.
Thank you,

Scott M. Fitzpatrick
Building Commissioner
Town of Middleton

195 North Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949
978-777-2850



Justin Sultzbach

From: Scott Fitzpatrick

Sent: Tuesday, July 8, 2025 10:12 AM

To: Jackie Bresnahan; Justin Sultzbach
Subject: FW: 152 South Main - Stop Work Order

From: Scott Fitzpatrick <scott.fitzpatrick@middletonma.gov>

Sent: Friday, May 23, 2025 1:25 PM

To: Ned Bolth <ned@richardsonsicecream.com>; Dave Daniels <dave@richardsonsicecream.com>
Cc: Daniel Kessel {MFD) <daniel.kessel@midfire.com>

Subject: Re: 152 South Main - Stop Work Order

Hi Ned,

They are far from complaint, have made no effort. Please refer to my previous emails regarding required permits and
stamped construction documents.

If the property owner is stepping in to resolve please call me to schedule a meeting next week to discuss, if not
unfortunately daily fines will start Tuesday and per the Building Code all fines are issued to the property owner.

The Select Board has also been notified as the licensing authority for the Package Store License.

Thank you,
Scott

From: Ned Bolth <ned@richardsonsicecream.com>

Sent: Friday, May 23, 2025 12:53 PM

To: Dave Daniels <dave @richardsonsicecream.com>; Scott Fitzpatrick <scott.fitzpatrick@middletonma.gov>
Cc: Daniel Kessel (MFD) <daniel.kessel@midfire.com>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] - RE: 152 South Main - Stop Work Order

[CAUTION:] This message was sent from outside of the Town of Middleton. Please do not click links or open attachments
unless you recognize the source of this email and know the content is safe.

Hi all,

Following-up on the Richdale walk-in permitting. | met with the project team today and have updated the
project history (below). The summary below is to the best of my knowledge. | have been trying help Richdale
as best | could without running the whole job for them. After meeting with Zoubaar (project coordinator)
today, | hope we are getting closer to resolving the permitting issues. Please let me know if more needs to be
done, beyond Zoubaar’s understanding which is detailed in the May 23, 2025 part of the summary below.

Thank you,
Ned

Richardson’s

Richdale Walk-in Cooler Project History




August 2023 — Richdale informed me that they were looking to install a walk-in cooler for drinks. To help
them and me understand the required process, | call the building department on August 22, 2023. Here are
my notes from the time of the conversation with Scott F, which | shared with Richdale:

“Town of Middleton Building Permit Requirements: | spoke to the Building Inspector on August 22,
2023. Here is what he needs to allow the project to move forward.

1. Refrigeration Permit for the removal and replacement of the coolers — A licensed Massachusetts
Refrigeration Contractor must pull the permit. The cooler installer in Georgia is not interested in trying
to pull the permit. They are likely not licensed to do refrigeration work in Massachusetts.

2. Electrical Permit for wiring the new equipment — A licensed Massachusetts Electrical Contractor must
pull the permit. “

Note that at the time Richdale wanted to hire a company out of Georga to do the work. | called them and
discovered that they were not licensed to work in MA. Based on that Richdale started looking for a local
contractor.

February 2024 - Through their network of stores they found ALIESA ENTERPRISES LLC dba ALIESA
REFRIGERATION of Merrimack, NH. It is my understanding that they misrepresented themselves as licensed
in MA. | believe they tried to pull a permit and were denied.

Somehow through this process Richdale paid approx. $30,000 for a walk-in cooler kit (walls, doors, refer
equipment). That transaction was intercepted or the whole thing was a scam. They lost all that money.

April/May 2025 — Richdale contracted with Zoubaar El imami of American Supermarket and Food Equipment
Inc. (ASFE) to purchase and install the walk-in cooler kit. ASFE subcontracted the mechanical and electrical
work. Those Subs applied for permits (detail below).

Cooler installation, | do not know the exact dates (i.e., before or after permit applications) - The walk-in is a
panelized wall/ceiling kit with visual display doors. The evaporators to cool the unit are located inside the
cooler and the compressor is located on the roof. The walls and ceiling are self-supported insulated

panels. No structural changes to the building were made during installation.

Permit Applications
4/30/2025 — Electrical Permit Application (E25-000078)
o Master Electrician - JEANPRO ELECTRICAL LLC - Bergeman Jean
o License Number: 23096
5/6/2025 - Mechanical Permit Application (MSM25-000013)
o Mechanical Contractor - KM HVAC — Karrossi Mohamed
o License Number: 1863
o *Incorrect site address on permit: Listed as 230 SOUTH MAIN ST. Should Be 152 South Main

Upon the electrical contractor calling for inspection, he was informed that there were permitting issues.

On or about May 7, 2025 — The stop work order was issued.



May 23, 2025 — | met with Zoubaar, Richdale, and the contracted architect/engineer onsite. Here is what
Zoubaar thinks he needs to close it out:

1. Architect/Engineer stamped plan —complete
Stamped plan showing construction and equipment details. This will show the schematic of the walk-in
and the cutsheets for installed equipment. This is in progress as of today.

3. Electrical inspection

4. Mechanical inspection.

5. The building is not sprinklered, and therefore no fire suppression permitting is required.

From: Ned Bolth

Sent: Thursday, May 22, 2025 1:54 PM

To: Dave Daniels <dave @richardsonsicecream.com>; Scott Fitzpatrick <scott.fitzpatrick@middletonma.gov>
Cc: Daniel Kessel (MFD) <daniel.kessel@midfire.com>

Subject: RE: 152 South Main - Stop Work Order

All,

| spoke to Jack at Richdale. He is the manager and onsite most days. After several conversations with Jack, it
is my opinion that although he is terribly confused, he is doing everything he can to make it right. He is
leaning heavily on the installer, Zoubaar, whom | also spoke to today. We reviewed the mechanical permit
application to the extent | can access it online.

On May 6, 2025, KM HVAC applied for the mechanical permit (MSM25-000013). Zoubaar says that additional
application materials are required to open/close the permit. |asked him to forward me all the documents and
correspondence to date. |1 do not have all that | hand yet, but | based on our conversations | assume that the
mechanical plans are the missing required paperwork. To that end, we have an onsite meeting tomorrow
with a mechanical engineer. At that time, | will confirm that a separate electrical permit was applied for or will
be, post-haste.

Sorry for all the trouble,
Ned
Richardson’s

From: Dave Daniels <dave@richardsonsicecream.com>

Sent: Thursday, May 22, 2025 12:02 PM

To: Scott Fitzpatrick <scott.fitzpatrick@middletonma.gov>

Cc: Daniel Kessel (MFD) <daniel.kessel@midfire.com>; Ned Bolth <ned @richardsonsicecream.com>
Subject: RE: 152 South Main - Stop Work Order

Hello Scott,

We'll check in today on their progress. Does Richdale get the fine or do we get it? Also how much is it? Maybe that will
motivate them.

Thank you,



Dave

From: Scott Fitzpatrick <scott.fitzpatrick@middletonma.gov>
Sent: Thursday, May 22, 2025 11:47 AM

To: Dave Daniels <dave@richardsonsicecream.com>

Cc: Daniel Kessel (MFD) <daniel.kessel@midfire.com>
Subject: RE: 152 South Main - Stop Work Order

Hi Dave,

No movement has been made by the tenant on the required permits. Daily fines will begin to be issued Tuesday
5/27/25.

Thank you,

Scott M. Fitzpatrick
Building Commissioner
Town of Middleton

195 North Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949
978-777-2850

From: Dave Daniels <dave@richardsonsicecream.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 7, 2025 10:25 AM

To: Scott Fitzpatrick <scott.fitzpatrick@middletonma.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] - RE: 152 South Main - Stop Work Order

[CAUTION:] This message was sent from outside of the Town of Middleton. Please do not click links or open attachments
unless you recognize the source of this email and know the content is safe.
Hello Scott,

Thank you for letting me know. | knew they were working on a cooler but assumed their contractor knew what they
were doing. Hopefully they can straighten this out.

Thanks,
Dave

From: Scott Fitzpatrick <scott.fitzpatrick@middletonma.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, May 7, 2025 10:16 AM

To: Dave Daniels <dave@richardsonsicecream.com>
Subject: 152 South Main - Stop Work Order

Hi Dave,

Just wanted to let you know as the building owner we issued a Stop Work Order at Richdale at 152 South Main St. they
installed a walk-in cooler without obtaining permits, the contractor initially applied but was unlicensed and the permit
was denied but the proceeded with the install anyway. This work requires a building, mechanical and electrical permits



(fire protection if the building is sprinklered) and all permit applications must be accompanied by construction
documents prepared and stamped by a Massachusetts Registered Design Professional.

An official Order to Correct will follow and in accordance with the requirements of the Building Code will be issued to
the property owner.

Thank you,

Scott M. Fitzpatrick
Building Commissioner
Town of Middleton

195 North Main Street
Middleton, MA 01949
978-777-2850



TOWN OF MIDDLETON

(To be submitted in triplicate)

Reaquest for Transfer from the Reserve Fund

Date: ___ 6/30/2025

Finance Committee
Town of Middleton

Members:

Request is hereby made for the following transfer from the Reserve Fund in accordance
with Chapter 40, Section 6, of the Massachusetts General Laws:

Amount Requested:
_%$27,740.81

To be transferred to (Account name/number): _01220151-511300

Present Balance in said appropriation: __($27,740.81)

The amount requested will be used for (Give specific reason):
Cover overtime cosis incurred during the wildland fires during 10/24-11/21.

This expenditure is extraordinary and/or unforeseen for the following reasons:
The wildland fires were unexpected; at the time it was not foreseen to cause budgetary issues.

Officer or Department Head

Action of Advisory Committee
- r
Date of Meeting: /7/ 7/) 5 Number Present and Voting: _.J
Transfer voted in sum of $ nf z %2 8/ Transfer disapproved: |:|
e

John Erickson -"’ﬂ) o
ﬂm/ 2025-07-07 N A
18:30-04:00

Chairman, Finance Committee i , Finance Committee

Request must be made and transfer voted before any expenditure in excess of appropriation is
incurred



Request for Transfer of Appropriations

G.L.c.44,5.33B
TO: Select Board
Finance Committee
FROM: Sarah Wood, Finance Director/Town Accountant
DATE.: July 7, 2025
SUBI.: Request for Transfer of Appropriations

Request is hereby made for the following transfer of appropriations in accordance with Chapter
44, Section 33B of the Massachusetts General Laws.

Transfers of appropriations may only be made during the last 2 months of any fiscal year or
during the first 15 days of the new fiscal year to apply to the previous fiscal year.

1. Amount requested: $1.819.62

2. To be transferred to:

Deficit Account Deficit
Town Counsel 01151152-538200 Contractual Services $ 101.90
Town Buildings 01192151-511000  Salaries & Wages 1,523.02
Animal Control 01292151-511000  Salaries & Wages 194.70

3. To be transferred from:

Funding Account Amount
Library 01610151-511300 Overtime S 1,523.02
Unemployment 01913157-571600  Personal Services 296.60

Reason(s) for the transfer:
o Town Counsel overage due to additional costs outside of retainer (arbitrage, court, etc.)
on final invoice
e Library Custodians received overtime for snow removal outside of regular pay that was
budgeted in Library OT vs Town Buildings department
e Animal Control officers budget for split payroll was calculated incorrectly in ClearGov.

Select Board Finance Committee
Transfer amount voted: § - Transfer amount voted: .~ /f (-
John Erickson
[‘M 2025-07-07
—_— _ 18:32-04:00
Select Board Clerk Finance Cgrmnit_‘gee Co-Chair

s




Request for Transfer of Appropriations
G. L.c.44,s.33B

Finance Committee Co-Chair

Date of vote: Date of vote: 7/ 7[/ i/_

Number present and voting: Number present and voting: )



Request for Transfer of Appropriations
G.L.c.44,s.33B

TO: Select Board
Finance Committee

FROM: Sarah Wood, Finance Director/Town Accountant
DATE: June 24, 2025
SUBI.: Request for Transfer of Appropriations

Request is hereby made for the following transfer of appropriations in accordance with Chapter
44, Section 33B of the Massachusetts General Laws.

Transfers of appropriations may only be made during the last 2 months of any fiscal year or
during the first 15 days of the new fiscal year to apply to the previous fiscal year.

1. Amount requested: $101.635.03
2. To be transferred to:
Accounting 01135151-511100  Dept Head Salaries S 2,362.50
Assessors 01141151-511000  Salaries & Wages 947.82
Assessors 01141151-511100  Dept Head Salaries 1,696.54
Town Clerk 01161151-511000  Salaries & Wages 996.50
Police Department  01210151-511000  Salaries & Wages 1,918.73
inspectional Services 01241151-511100  Dept Head Salaries 1,521.22
DPW 01420151-511100 Dept Head Salaries 1,870.50
Board of Health 01511151-511100  Dept Head Salaries 1,521.22
Fire 01220151-511300  Overtime 30,000.00
Library 01610152-538200  Contractual Services 30,000.00
Town Counsel 01151152-538200  Contractual Services 5,000.00
Town Reports 01155152-534300 Town Report 3,000.00
Garden Club 01548152-528800  Garden Club Beautification 800.00
Insurance 01914157-577100  Health/Dental Insurance 20,000.00
3. To be transferred from:
Comp Reserve 01910157-514500  Compensation Reserve 42,835.03
Unemployment 01913157-571600  Unemployment Insurance 5,000.00
Liability ins 01945157-574000  Insurance 23,300.00
Library 01610151-511000  Salaries & Wages 30,000.00

Reason(s) for the transfer:
o Majority of salary adjustments are for three reasons 1) Merit Pay funded in
Compensation Reserve 2) Fire staffing for wildland fires



Request for Transfer of Appropriations

G.L.c.44,5.33B

Library overage due to contractual service need for office coverage

Town Counsel overage due to additional costs outside of retainer (arbitrage, court, etc.)
Town Reports overage due to printing of warrants for a Fall Special Town Meeting
Garden Club saw increase in costs for holiday wreaths

¢ Health & Dental Insurance had an increase in membership vs total enrollment budgeted.

Select Board

Transfer amount voted: $ l 0 ‘ o
g ;\ T i

{ 1/9 }h ,/17*) L./‘/J‘J’ ”It ’:
Select Board Clerk

Date of vote: (p/ 2 [1‘/ 9 5

Number present and voting: L/

Finance Committee

Transfer amount voted: Lot (23 03

John Erickson
f]m/ 2025-07-07
. 18:31-04:00
Finance Committee Co-Chair
5,
/l
Fmanue C’c{;é/t‘tee Co-Chair

Date of vote: 7/ 7/ oAJ

Number present and voting: 5



Justin Sultzbach

From: Jackie Bresnahan

Sent: Tuesday, July 1, 2025 7:09 PM

To: Jackie Bresnahan

Subject: Potential Updates to Employee Handbook
Importance: High

Good afternoon all employees,
There are a couple proposed changes to the Employee Handbook that will be reviewed at the upcoming July 8, 2025
Select Board Meeting.

1. Employees can use their personal days during their probationary period.

2. Parental Leave: the Town would provide some form of paid parental leave concurrent with FMLA (working on
data to identify how much)

3. Bereavement: Additional parties are added to the 5 day bereavement leave including step-parents, step-siblings,
and step-children

| will be hosting drop-in office hours on Tuesday, July 8" from 10 am to 12 noon to answer any questions and receive
feedback from employees. If you are unable to join the office hours, please feel free to send feedback via email or give
me a call. | am available most of the day Wednesday, July 2™ if you would like to make an appointment.

Department heads, please be sure to provide this notice to any employees who do not regularly utilize email.

Thank you,
lackie

Jackie Bresnahan

Assistant Town Administrator/HR Director
Town of Middleton

48 South Main Street

Middleton, MA 01949

Phone: 978-777-3617

Email: jackie.bresnahan@middletonma.gov

Please be advised the Office of the Secretary of State for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts has determined that E-
mail could be considered a public record.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and tended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they
arc addressed. This message may contain confidential information and is intended only for the individual named. If you are not the
named addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this e-mail. Please notify the sender immediately by e-mail 1if you have
received this e-mail by mistake and delete this e-mail from your system. If you are not the intended recipient you ave notified that
disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in veliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited.



Commonwealth of Massachusetts as”

EXECUTIVE OFFICE or HOUSING &
LIVABLE COMMUNITIES

Maura T. Healey, Governor 4 Kimberley Driscoll, Lt. Governor 4 Jennifer D. Maddox, Undersecretary

SELLING YOUR LOCAL INITIATIVE PROGRAM HOME

Dear Local Initiative Program (LIP) Homeowner:

The following is a summary on how to sell your home under the LIP program. We wish to

emphasize that before you may begin the process of selling your LIP unit, your town/city and
the Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities (EOHLC) must review your written

request to sell, and issue a writien response.

To begin the review process, please mail the following information to both your town/city and
EOHLC:

II]/ Wiritten notice of your intent to sell (Conveyance Notice). Your written notice
should include your name, the property address and a phone number where you

can be reached during the day.

[‘Z/A copy of the Deed Rider for your LIP Mortgage. If you did not keep a copy, you
can obtain one at your local Registry of Deeds.

l__ﬂ/A clear color photograph of the exterior of your LIP unit for posting on the EOHLC
Affordable Units for Sale web page.

Ef/ A copy of the completed Property Information Form (attached).

The above documents should be mailed to the following address:

The Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities
100 Cambridge Street, Suite 300

Boston, MA 02114

Attn: Division of Housing Development ~ LIP Program

Please contact your town or city hall for information on who will handle your resale

request.
You may inquire at the Board of Selectmen’s office, the Housing Authority or the

Planning
Department.

100 Cambridge Street, Suite 400 www.mass.gov/dhed
Boston, Massachusetts 02114 617.573.1100



RESALE PROPERTY INFORMATION FORM
Please complete this form and return with your letter of intent to sell

Seller Name: é/ﬂ)ﬁﬁ ﬂ? e/;ﬂ’ﬂﬂ - /72&55
Address: e Cecff S ﬂee‘@ /6 i #4/ g

Phone: Day: 18/- A6 - 104% Evening [ljd bdﬁf‘ ﬂz A
Email: ?4 ’(Mdiﬂ (fﬂﬂd/ 7l 'LP/ -7 7 (-89 ¢ @/&j/
Primary Contact: G laxn ﬁ?c[,,ggf' #‘/J’_ﬁ/j

Phone: Day: T - 77/' FM{‘ Evening: TN2vé - 10
Seller’s Attorney: ( Qﬁﬂ ﬂgﬁhi{:q (ﬂ /_;/ //}1 )Q_q <. ?.

Name of Development: igJ vekviey '17/;,6:(’ 0

# of Units/Homes in Development: ﬁﬁ Size of Home: é[ &Z’ sq.ft. AgeofHome:_ /¢ gf )

Style of Home: (Check One)

P
o _ Single Family Condominium/Association Fee, if applicable: $ qﬂﬂﬂer month
Town Home Estimated Annual Taxes: S&3%2 peryear
| Detached Condominium m’ Town Water Septic System
o Garden Style Condominium

Condo Association: ‘E Wedview P 4 ﬂk

Contact Name:

Address:

Phone: Day: Evening:

About the Unit:  # of Bedrooms: o One o Two 0 Three
# of Bathrooms: 01 n1% w? o 2%
Garage: Mes, # of cars 1 or 2 (circle one) 0 No
Basement: Yes O No
Heat (check one): wfas o Electric o Oil o Forced Hot Air o Forced Hot Water

Appliances included in home sale:

Refrigerator ?es o No - NotSure
Stove/Oven Yes o No -NotSure
Microwave Mes o No - NotSure
Dishwasher Mes 0 No - NotSure
Garbage Disposal ?es o No - Not Sure
Washer/Dryer Yes o No - NotSure
Central Air Conditioning: Q/Yes 0 No

Hard Wood Floors: \{Yes o No

Please list any other applicable description of the unit:

H kv + CAR Py L WY
' J




Department Manual:

MIDDLETON POLICE DEPARTMENT Policy No. 1.01

USE OF FORCE
(RESPONSE TO RESISTANCE)
BY SWORN PERSONNEL

MASSACHUSETTS POLICE ACCREDITATION STANDARDS REFERENCED: GENERAL ORDER

1.2.2; 1.3.1; 1.3.2; 1.3.3; 1.3.4; 1.3.5; 1.3.6; 1.3.7; 1.3.8; 1.3.9;
1.3.10; 1.3.11; 1.3.12; 1.3.13; 11.4.1; 16.3.5; 22.2.3; 22.2.4;

22.2.6; 33.1.2; 33.5.1; 33.6.1

. Issuing Authorit
Effective Date: 8 y
TBD .
William P. Sampson
Chief of Police

POLICY woneveveeeessesseseaseesessesseasassas s ssssasesssesaseaneassensseasasseaseanensesseasesesasessesessesasssesessssastseserssenessssessnesossesasssesasssesasnsoes 2
DEFINITIONS oo vveseeseesvessaesensesssasessesesasessssssasssssesssastssesesssssassassssssssesasssesnsesssessmmsenseseesstenstsesssssessessasasessessesaseaseesas 2
PROCEDURES «..c.veveoeesveseeseesessasseseessssasesesssssaesessnsssssasesseasssssasesstasesssstiesssssesssesssessossssnessstasssssssastasssssssnsassasssosssssans 6
. FORCE OPTIONS +.veovveeeeeeeeee oo evesseeeseess e ssesssesessesseseseeeeeseeseseeesesseseesesseeesseeseee s eseseesesraeseeeeneeseeesresseneseeraen 6

II.  ENCOUNTERS WITH MINORS, EMOTIONALLY DISTURBED, MENTALLY ILL AND PHYSICALLY DISABLED
PERSONS v oveerteesesesssesssessesssseesesseesessesees s eesesseesesseesesessseeees e e assseseseeee e s e seeees e seeseseeteeneeraseareraeseeeeseereneeseees 8
1. LESS-LETHAL FORCE wovoooveeivveesivesseoeestesseesesessesssssesoesesoeeesseesseesseees st esseesesessessseeseseessesessaeeseseseesreeseesreereeen 9
IV.  DEADLY FORCE / LETHAL FORCE ..ovveovesreeeveeeseeeesseseesssesseseseseseessseesaeseseesmesenesasesesesseseesseesesaseseereessoesessessseson 17
V. SPECIALWEAPONS ... .ooeoeeees oo oo eeees s eessseees e e e eeeseeses et s sees et ee s e e et eer e eeseeresestseseserassensostreasesansres 20
VI, DUTY TO INTERVENE o..ovoveovveoeveeseesseesseessesessess s eesesssseesssessest oo eeeesssesssesesseeseseeseeseeseessseseesesessoseeeeereesssiseses 20
VIl.  USE OF FORCE CONSIDERATIONS INVOLVING PLANNED MASS DEMONSTRATIONS..........ceerereeeceecereereeenns 21
VIIl.  ADMINISTRATIVE RELIEF FROM DUTY AFTER FORCE RESULTING IN DEATH OR SERIOUS BODILY INJURY...21
IX.  POST USE OF FORCE INCIDENT PROCEDURES .......veoveeeeeeneeoeeeeseseeeeseeeeeeseeseeeesssess et aeesareseesesssestseessasseees 22
X, USE OF FORCE REPORTING ovoveoeveossesssesssessessessessessssesesssssessesessseseseesoseesseseeseseesossssesssesasseeseessseesersiosesossens 29
XI. TRAINING ceoeeeee oo e oo oo e e s +oesssee st oo s aee s e s esseeseee st ees e ssees e e s s esesees et e eseererasssesanesessereneserserees 32

Page 1 of 40

3\ )




POLICY

It is the policy of the Department that officers use only the force that is permissible under
applicable federal and state laws and regulations. [1.3.1]

This Policy requires strict adherence by all sworn personnel.

When exigent and unforeseen circumstances cause officers to deviate from the provisions of this
Policy, officers are still expected to act with intelligence, sound judgment and in full conformity
with both state and federal laws and constitutional provisions. Any such deviations from the
provisions of this Policy shall be examined on a case-by-case basis.

DEFINITIONS

A. Actively Resistant Individual: An individual who uses physical strength and/or body
movement to resist a Department member. Examples of active resistance include pulling,
turning, or walking away from an officer.

B. Aggravated Assaultive Individual (Serious Bodily Harm/Death): An individual
who engages in conduct that is likely to produce death or serious bodily harm to a
member of the Department or another person.

C. Assaultive Individual (Bodily Harm): An individual who attempts to injure a
Department member or another person or engages in conduct that has the potential to
injure a Department member or another person.

D. Chokehold: The use of a lateral vascular neck restraint, carotid restraint or other action
that involves the placement of any part of law enforcement officer’s body on or around a
person’s neck in a manner that limits the person’s breathing or blood flow with the intent
of or with the result of causing bodily injury, unconsciousness or death. [1.1.2 (1C)]

E. Commission: The Massachusetts Peace Officer Standards and Training Commission.

F. Compliant Individual: An individual who is fully cooperative with a Department
member.

G. Deadly Force / Lethal Force: Physical force that can reasonably be expected to cause

death or serious bodily injury. Sworn personnel are authorized to use lethal force in
accordance with the law and this Policy. {1.1.2 (1A)]

Page 2 of 40



De-escalation Tactics: Proactive actions and approaches used by an officer to
stabilize a law enforcement situation so that more time, options and resources are
available to gain a person’s voluntary compliance and to reduce or eliminate the need to
use force including, but not limited to, verbal persuasion, warnings, slowing down the
pace of an incident, waiting out a person, creating distance between the officer and a
threat and requesting additional resources to resolve the incident, including, but not
limited to, calling in medical or licensed mental health professionals, as defined in
subsection (a) of section 51% of chapter 111, to address a potential medical or mental
health crisis. [1.1.2 (1B}]

Drive Stun Deployment: In Drive Stun mode, the ECW is a pain-compliance facilitator
rather than an electro-muscular disruptor. Drive stun occurs when the ECW is held
against the subject, whether or not probes are deployed. Drive stun may be utilized in
response to active resistance or assaultive behavior.

Electronic Control Weapon (ECW): A weapon that uses electricity to override
voluntary motor responses or applies pain in order to gain compliance or overcome
resistance. ECWs are designed to incapacitate without causing serious bodily injury or
death. [1.3.9 (a)]

ECW Activation: Any time an ECW is turned on, exclusive of training and routine
maintenance/readiness checks.

ECW Cycle: Occurs when probe deployment delivers energy to an individual.

Force: The amount of effort required by police to compel compliance by an unwilling
subject.

Kinetic Energy Impact Projectiles: Flexible or non-flexible projectiles, which are
intended to incapacitate a subject with a minimal potential for causing death or serious
bodily injury, when compared to conventional projectiles.

Laser Activation: The ECW is turned on, activating the light and/or laser beam. Laser
activation may be utilized as a warning technique if drive stun deployment and/or probe
deployment is objectively reasonable.

Less-Lethal Force: Use of force that is not intended to cause serious bodily
harm/serious physical injuries or death. Sworn personnel are authorized to use less-
lethal force in accordance with the law and this Policy.

Objectively Reasonable: This term means that, in determining the necessity for and
appropriate level of force, officers shall evaluate each situation in light of the known
circumstances, including, but not limited to, the seriousness of the crime, the level of
threat or resistance presented by the subject, and the danger to the officer, subject,

Page 3 of 40



and/or community. The reasonableness of a particular use of force must be judged from
the perspective of a reasonable officer on scene, rather than with the 20/20 vision of
hindsight. Determining reasonableness of force must allow for the fact that police officers
are forced to make split second judgments in circumstances that are tense, uncertain and
rapidly evolving. The force used must be reasonable under the circumstances known to
the officer at the time force is used.

Officer-Involved Injury or Death: Any event during which an officer:

1) discharges a firearm, as defined in section 121 of chapter 140, actually or proximately
causing injury or death to another;

2) discharges any stun gun as defined in said section 121 of said chapter 140, actually or
proximately causing injury or death to another;

3) uses a chokehold, actually or proximately causing injury or death of another;

4) discharges tear gas or other chemical weapon, actually or proximately causing injury
or death of another;

5) discharges rubber pellets from a propulsion device, actually or proximately causing
injury or death of another;

6) deploys a dog, actually or proximately causing injury or death of another;
7) uses deadly force, actually or proximately causing injury or death of another;

8) fails to intervene, as required by section 15, to prevent the use of excessive or
prohibited force by another officer who actually or proximately causes injury or death
of another; or

9) engages in a physical altercation with a person who sustains serious bodily injury or
requests or receives medical care as a result.

Passively Resistant Individual: An individual who is uncooperative but does not use
physical strength or body movement to resist a Department member.

Probe Deployment: In Probe Deployment mode, the ECW uses electricity to override
voluntary motor responses. Probe Deployment occurs when probes deploy from an ECW,
whether or not the probes strike their intended target. This includes follow-up drive stuns
when a single probe is attached to an individual. Probe deployment may be utilized in
response to assaultive behavior.

Page 4 of 40



Public Safety Statement: A statement to ascertain the threat level at the scene of
the incident, to identify witnesses or other injured officers or civilians, and to facilitate
the collection of evidence and preservation of the scene. This public safety statement is
a brief explanation of what has transpired and what is presently happening. The Public
Safety statement may be given by the Chief of Police or his/her designee who has
gathered this information. The Public Safety Statement should include the following in
substance and where applicable:

1) The identity of officers and other involved parties to the incident who discharged
firearms and their approximate position at the time of the discharge.

2) The direction and number of shots fired

3) A description of any suspects and direction of flight

4) The identity and location of any injured officers or civilians

5) The identity of potential witnesses

6) The location of any unsecured weapons or contraband at the scene.

Reasonable Force: Reasonable force is determined under the legal standard set forth
in Graham v. Connor, 490 U.S. 386, 395 (1989). Reasonable force is defined as force which
is objectively reasonable because it is necessary to overcome resistance offered in a
lawful police action to compel an unwilling subject’s compliance with an officer’s lawful
exercise of police authority.

Safety Priorities: The Police Department safety priorities are established as follows:

1) Hostages and Involved non-subject civilians
2} Police officers
3) Subject (the person who is the focus of the police operation)

Serious Bodily Injury: Bodily injury that results in: (i) permanent disfigurement; (ii)
protracted loss of impairment of a bodily function, limb or organ; or (iii) a substantial risk
of death. This may also be referred to as “serious physical injury”. [1.1.2 (1D}]

Spark Display: The ECW is activated and the arc switch is depressed, activating the
electrical arc. Spark display may be utilized as a warning technique if drive stun
deployment and/or probe deployment is objectively reasonable.

Stress Disorder: An anxiety disorder that can result from exposure to short-term
severe stress, or the long-term buildup of repetitive and prolonged milder stress. The
person must have experienced, witnessed, or was confronted with an event or events
that involved actual or threatened death or serious injury, or a threat to the physical
integrity of one’s self or others. The person’s response to the event(s) will have involved
intense fear, helplessness, or horror.

Page 5 of 40



BB.

1) Acute Stress Disorder: A category of stress disorder lasting for a minimum of two
days and a maximum of four weeks occurring within four weeks of the event(s).

2) Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder: A category of stress disorder in which the
symptoms last more than one month.

Susceptible Population Groups: Susceptible population groups include those who
reasonably appear to be, or are known to be, children, elderly, medically infirm, pregnant,
or users of a cardiac pacemaker.

Sworn Personnel: An employee of a law enforcement agency who has sworn to carry

out law enforcement duties and has full arrest powers. For the purposes of this Policy,
the term “sworn personnel” and “officer” are used interchangeably.

PROCEDURES

FORCE OPTIONS

A. The amount and degree of force, which may be employed, will be determined by the
totality of circumstances including, but not limited to:

1. The nature and seriousness of the offense;

2. The behavior of the subject against whom force is to be used;

3. Actions by third parties who may be present;

4. Physical odds against the officer;

5. The feasibility or availability of alternative actions; and

6. The opportunity to use de-escalation tactics at any time during the encounter.

B. An officer should only use that amount of force that the officer feels would be
reasonable in a particular situation to accomplish his/her lawful objective or to
protect the officer or another from serious bodily injury or death. Officers should
continuously evaluate the circumstances of the encounter with the goal of exploiting

both verbal and tactical opportunities with the intent of de-escalating to a lower force
level.

Page 6 of 40




C. Equipment, Weapons and Ammunition Generally

1.

Only issued or authorized equipment will be carried on-duty and used when
applying any level of less-lethal force. [1.3.4]

Only weapons and ammunition authorized by the Police Department will be used
by agency personnel in the performance of their responsibilities (listed in
“Appendix A” of this Policy) while on duty unless exigent circumstances compel
the officer to utilize other options. [1.1.9(1)]

An officer shall not alter or modify his/her firearm or ammunition in any way
without the express permission of the Chief of Police.

. Sworn personnel of the Department shall take all reasonable precautions to

ensure that weapons issued to them by the Department are properly secured,
protected from loss, misuse, or theft. Attention is drawn to G.L. c. 140, §§ 131C
and 131L. [1.3.9 (f)]

Officers are responsible for keeping their issued weapons clean and in good
working order. A weapon that malfunctions shall be returned to the Department
Armorer forthwith for the necessary repairs, and a replacement weapon shall be
issued by the Armorer. The officer shall qualify with the replacement weapon
prior to carrying it on duty. [1.3.9 (d)]

Prior to the issuance of any weapons to the officer, the Department Armorer
shall review, inspect and approve each individual weapon. If any malfunctions or
defects are found, or if the weapon is found to be unsafe in any manner, the
deficiency shall either be rectified, or the weapon shall be returned to the
manufacturer for a replacement weapon. [1.3.9 (c); 1.3.9 (d)]

The Department Armorer shall maintain a log for each weapon that is owned or
authorized by the Department. This log should list the make, model, and serial
number and shall indicate the condition of the weapon. A file shall also be
maintained by the Training Coordinator documenting the make, model and serial
numbers of the issued and authorized duty weapons to each member of the
Department and a log of each officer’s qualifications and re-qualifications. [1.3.9

(e)]

Page 7 of 40



[I. ENCOUNTERS WITH MINORS, EMOTIONALLY
DISTURBED, MENTALLY ILL AND PHYSICALLY
DISABLED PERSONS

A. Encounters may arise between law enforcement and those individuals who are known
or suspected of being minors, emotionally disturbed, mentally ill or physically
disabled. Such encounters may require special police skills and abilities to effectively
and legally respond to the given situation. Officers should never, however,
compromise or jeopardize their safety or the safety of others when dealing with
individuals displaying symptoms of emotional, mental and/or physical illness.

B. Should the officer determine that an individual may be a minor, emotionally
disturbed, mentally ill and/or physically disabled and a potential threat to
himself/herself, the officer, or others; or may otherwise require law enforcement
intervention for humanitarian reasons, the following responses should be taken,
bearing in mind officer safety is most important:

1.

2.

Request a backup officer.

Take steps to utilize de-escalation tactics. Where possible, eliminate emergency
lights and sirens, disperse crowds, and assume a quiet non-threatening manner
when approaching or conversing with the individual. Where violence or
destructive acts are not occurring, avoid physical contact, and take time to assess
the situation.

Move slowly and do not excite the person. Provide reassurance that the police
are there to help and that he/she will be provided with appropriate care.

Communicate with the individual in an attempt to determine the root of the
person’s actions. Relate your concern for his/her feelings and allow the person to
express their feelings. Where possible, gather information on the subject from
acquaintances or family sworn personnel and/or request professional assistance,
if available and appropriate to assist in communicating with the person and/or de-
escalating the situation.

Do not threaten the individual with arrest or in any other manner as this will create
additional fright, stress, and potential aggression.

Avoid topics that may agitate the person and guide the conversation toward topics
that may help ease the individual.

Page 8 of 40




7. Always attempt to be truthful. If the subject becomes aware of a deception,
he/she may withdraw from the contact in distrust and may become hypersensitive
or retaliate in anger.

8. Consider containing the situation, establishing distance, waiting for additional
help, and/or the arrival of trained medical staff.

C. While the policies and guidelines regarding the use of force do not change due to a
subject’s mental or physical status, officers should take this status into account
(where the status is known) in their approach of the subject in an effort to de-escalate
the situation.

D. Once a person is under control, officers should consider whether common restraint
tactics may be more dangerous to the individual due to the subject’s age, mental,
emotional or physical status, and consider available and appropriate reasonable
accommodations.

E. As with any use of force, officers should always provide an immediate medical
response to individuals who are exhibiting signs or complaining of injury or illness
following a use of force.

LESS-LETHAL FORCE

A. PROCEDURES FOR THE USE OF ALL LESS-LETHAL FORCE

1. Alaw enforcement officer shall not use physical force upon another person unless
de-escalation tactics have been attempted and failed or are not feasible based on
the totality of the circumstances and such force is necessary [1.1.1(1)]:

a. to effect the lawful arrest or detention of a person;

b. to prevent the escape from custody of a person;

c. to prevent imminent harm and the amount of force used is proportionate to
the threat of imminent harm; or

d. and proportionate in accordance with the regulations promulgated jointly by
the Commission and the Municipal Police Training Committee pursuant to G.L.

c. 6E, § 15(d).

2. It is preferred that less-lethal force not be used if resistance is minor and not
hazardous, or if a lesser degree of force would reasonably achieve the same result.

Page 9 of 40




Officers should issue a verbal warning and allow a reasonable amount of time for
response unless a warning could endanger the officer or others.

Each less-lethal force option is not intended to be a substitute for other options in
situations in which the use of other force options are more appropriate.

Absent exceptional circumstances, officers shall not use less-lethal force on
susceptible population groups, or for the sole purpose of protecting property.

. The use of less-lethal force is not authorized for indiscriminate use, non-violent

behavior or when an individual is handcuffed unless a threat to the officer or
others exists.

A subject who is exposed to less-lethal force shall be actively monitored while in
police custody after they have received medical care. If the subject requests
further medical attention, they shall be transported immediately by EMS to a
medical facility. [1.3.5]

B. LESS-LETHAL FORCE OPTIONS

1.

All officers shall be properly trained and certified, when appropriate, in the use of
any less-lethal weapons before being authorized to carry such weapons. [1.3.4;
1.3.10]

. CHEMICAL SUBSTANCES [1.1.4{1-Chemical}]

a. Chemical substances or sprays (e.g. oleoresin capsicum, commonly known as
“0C”) may be used when physical force is necessary to:

i.  Protect an officer or other person from an assault;
ii. Subdue a person who actively resists arrest; or
iii.  Control persons engaged in riotous or violent conduct.

b. When a chemical substance is used, it should be aimed at the subject’s face
and upper torso. Officers are required to utilize only two (2), one second
bursts from at least 3 feet away from the subject unless exceptional
circumstances require otherwise. Each deployment of OC spray constitutes a
separate use of force and must be justifiable.

c. First aid shall be administered as soon as practicable under the circumstances.
Upon arrival at the police station, the subject shall be given the opportunity to
wash his/her face with warm water. Officers shall arrange transport for

Page 10 of 40



sprayed subjects to the hospital for treatment when they complain of
continued effects after decontamination or they indicate that they have a pre-
existing medical condition (e.g., asthma, emphysema, bronchitis, heart
ailment, etc.) that may be aggravated by the application of chemical spray.
[1.3.5]

d. Once handcuffed, a contaminated subject should not be placed faced down.
Officers shall monitor handcuffed subjects.

3. BATONS [1.1.4(1-Baton)]
a. A baton may be used:

i.  As a restraining or come-along tool in instances where verbalization
and physical strength have failed or would obviously be futile;

ii. Asa defensive weapon to ward off blows;

ili. Asa defensive weapon to deliver disabling blows to non-vital areas of
the body as a means to halt or deter a subject. An officer is justified in
using this type of force under the following circumstances:

a) To overcome the violent resistance of an arrestee;
b) To overcome an assault on an officer or a third party;
C) To deter persons engaged in riotous or violent conduct.
b. For guidance on the use of the baton, please refer to the MPTC/Monadnock
chart for appropriate striking areas and descriptions of “Green,” “Yellow,” and
“Red” target areas, a copy of which appears in the Appendix of this Policy.

4. ELECTRONIC CONTROL WEAPONS (ECWS) [1.1.4(1-ECW)]

a. Only those officers who have successfully completed the requisite ECW
training are authorized to carry and use an ECW.

b. Officers issued and authorized to use an ECW shall:

i.  Ensure the ECW is carried in an approved holster on the side of the
body opposite the service handgun;

Page 11 of 40



Vi,

vii.

viii.

Note: members not assigned to uniformed duty may use other
Department-approved holsters and carry the weapon consistent with
Department training.

Ensure the ECW is fully armed with the safety on in preparation for
immediate use;

Ensure one spare cartridge is available as backup in case of cartridge
failure or the need for reactivation;

Ensure the spare cartridge is stored, carried, and used in a manner
consistent with training;

Ensure cartridges are replaced following the manufacturer’s expiration
requirements;

Ensure only manufacturer-approved battery power sources are used
for the ECW,;

Prior to each regular tour of duty shift, confirm that the ECW is
functioning properly by performing all tests as defined in training; and

Not make any modifications or repairs on the ECW unless authorized
in writing by the Armorer.

c. In accordance with the law, and this Policy, and when it is objectively
reasonable to do so, Department members are authorized to utilize an ECW
to arrest and/or detain an individua!l that has and/or continues to exhibit
behavior that leads the officer to believe the individual is actively resisting or
assaultive and will resist being arrested or detained.

d. ECW Use of Force Response Table

If the subject is: Then the response may include:
Actively Resistant Laser Activation

Spark Display
Drive Stun

Assaultive — Bodily Harm Laser Activation

Spark Display
Drive Stun
Probe Deployment

Page 12 of 40



Aggravated Assaultive — Laser Activation
Serious Bodily Harm/Death Spark Display

Drive Stun
Probe Deployment

NOTE: Department members are not
required to use a weapon of less-lethal
force if use of lethal force is objectively
reasonable.

. Situations in which the ECW may be activated in accordance with the above
table include but are not limited to:

When an individual uses force or violence against the member or
another person(s);

When an individual exhibits violent, threatening, or potentially violent
behavior;

When an individual actively resists an arrest or detention;

iv. ~ When an individual flees in order to avoid arrest or detention in
circumstances where the member would pursue on foot and physically
effect the arrest or detention;

V.  When an individual expresses intent and has the means to commit
suicide or inflict serious bodily harm to themselves or others and ECW
activation does not create additional risk;

vi.  To protect officers or others against an aggressive animal; and

vii. In the course of Department-authorized training exercises or
demonstrations.
Officers shall:

Give the individual a warning prior to activating the ECW, unless doing
so would place any member or person(s) at risk;

Adhere to the Department’s training regarding warnings, which may

include verbal warnings, display of the ECW, laser painting, arcing,
spark display, or a combination thereof;

Page 13 of 40



vi.

Vii.

Viii.

When feasible, make an announcement to other officers or personnel
on the scene that an ECW is going to be activated;

Not intentionally activate more than one ECW at a time against an
individual;

Note: Be aware that an individual subjected to an ECW Cycle may not
be able to respond to commands during or immediately following an
ECW Cycle exposure;

Limit the number of ECW cycles to the least number of exposures and
should last no longer than necessary to bring an individual under
control. Each 5-second cycle is considered an independent use of force
and must be objectively reasonable and be documented in writing.

Avoid continued ECW use as an attempt to facilitate compliance if
circumstances indicate that drive stun deployment is ineffective as a
pain-compliance technique.

Note: Officers should be aware that pain compliance may not be
effective against an individual in a mental health crisis state, under the
influence of a mind-altering substance, or when extremely focused.

Consider potential risk(s) to third parties or bystanders when activating
ECWs.

Be aware that a subject’s heavy clothing may impede the effectiveness
of ECWs.

Aim, to the degree possible, for the following target areas: (a) lower
center mass below the chest; (b) back; or {c) legs.

Note: To the extent possible, Department members should avoid
sensitive areas such as the eyes, face, head, throat, neck, breasts,
groin and genitals.

g. Officers shall not use the ECW:

On a passively resistant individual;

On a handcuffed or secured prisoner; except where the individual
exhibits overtly assaultive, self-destructive, or violently resistive
behavior that cannot reasonably be controlled by other readily
available means.

Page 14 of 40



Vi.

In any environment where the member reasonably believes that a
flammable, volatile, or explosive material is present, including but not
limited to OC spray with volatile propellant, gasoline, natural gas,
propane;

When the individual is located in water;

In any situation where the member has a reasonable belief that the
subject might fall resulting in death or serious bodily injury, and the
circumstances presented do not justify that risk; or

On individuals in physical control of a vehicle in motion (e.g.,
automobiles, trucks, motorcycles, ATVs, bicycles, scooters) unless
exigent circumstances exist.

h. ECW Post-Activation

After a probe deployment, officers shall seek medical attention for the
individual and ensure that ECW probes are removed by qualified
medical personnel or by a Department Member trained to do so.

In any case of Drive Stun deployment or Probe deployment from an
ECW on an individual, officers shall:

¢ Transport the individual to an emergency care facility for
evaluation and/or treatment if any of the following apply:

o The individual requests medical attention or there is an
obvious need for medical attention;

o The ECW was deployed in a sensitive area (e.g., eye,
face, head, throat, neck, breasts, groin, genitals);

o The individual is part of a susceptible population
group;

o More than three ECW cycles were deployed on the
individual or the ECW was deployed for continuous
cycles amounting to 15 seconds or more; or

o More than one ECW device has been deployed on an

individual.

Page 15 of 40



e Use restraint techniques that minimize risk of impairing a
subject’s respiration.

5. KINETIC ENERGY IMPACT PROJECTILES [1.1.4(1-Shotgun)]

a. Evaluation of Projectiles

Kinetic energy impact projectiles will be evaluated on the following criteria:

Accuracy: This is the primary consideration, since proper shot
placement greatly assists in controlling the other two evaluation
criteria. This will be evaluated based on the anticipated ranges of
deployment. A minimal standard of accuracy for such rounds is a 12-
inch group at 15 yards in a secure rest.

Effectiveness: This is the potential of the round to cause
incapacitation and reduce the subject’s ability to continue their
inappropriate behavior. The level of energy to cause incapacitation
creates the potential for injury, but when properly deployed, with low
probability for causing serious bodily injury or death.

Potential for Causing Death or Serious Bodily Injury: The potential
for causing death or serious bodily injury with such projectiles is a
reality. This potential is greatly reduced when impacts to the head and
neck are avoided, and when appropriate medical examination is
provided in cases where the subject is struck in an area that might
conceal a closed injury, including such areas as the chest, back and
abdominal cavities and the groin.

iv.  Deployment Areas: The less-lethal projectiles will be delivered to
suspect target areas based on the circumstances, the established
safety priorities, and the level of force authorized.

b. Deployment

Kinetic energy impact projectiles may be used by an officer to defend
himself/herself or others from the threat of serious bodily injury.

The issued kinetic energy impact weapon will be dedicated to kinetic
energy impact projectiles, and marked with GREEN tape on the butt
and barrel of the weapon. At NO TIME will l{ethal ammunition be
stored with these weapons. Officers assigned will visually/physically
inspect the chamber and magazine, each time the weapon comes
under their control (i.e., beginning of the shift, and/or any time the

Page 16 of 40



weapon was out of their direct control), to ensure the total absence of
lethal ammunition.

The use of the kinetic energy impact projectile weapon SHALL only be
used when authorized by an individual of the rank of Sergeant or
above, or when an individual of the rank of Sergeant or above is not
available, by the Officer-in-Charge of the shift.

The kinetic energy impact projectile weapon shall be secured in hard
rifle or gun cases which are then secured in the assigned officer’s
cruiser.

When engaging a target, the officer should evaluate the effectiveness
of each round during the volley. Compliance and/or incapacitation are
the desired goal, and alternative target areas/response should be
considered when rounds are not effective. Alternative target and/or
response considerations will be based on the circumstances the officer
is encountering and the established department safety priorities.

V. DEADLY FORCE /LETHAL FORCE

A. PARAMETERS FOR THE USE OF LETHAL FORCE[1.1.2(2)]

1.

A sworn member of this Department is authorized to use lethal force only after
de-escalation tactics have been attempted and failed or are not feasible based
on the totality of the circumstances, and such force is necessary to prevent
imminent harm to a person and the amount of force used is proportionate to
the threat of imminent harm. This may include situations in which there are no
viable alternatives available and lethal force is necessary for the officer to:

a. Defend himself/herself or another from unlawful attack which he/she
reasonably perceives as an imminent threat of death or serious bodily injury;

OR

b. Effect an arrest, only when:

The arrest is for a felony; and
The officer reasonably believes that:

a) The force employed creates no substantial risk of injury to innocent
persons; and

Page 17 of 40




b) The crime for which the arrest is made involved the use or
attempted use, or threatened use of lethal force; and

c) There is substantial risk that the person to be arrested will cause
death or serious bodily injury if his/her apprehension is delayed.

2. Where practical, and if time and circumstances permit, officers shall verbally
identify themselves as police officers and give some warning before using deadly
force.

3. A law enforcement officer shall not use a chokehold. [1.1.2(3)]

4. As further outlined in section VI of this policy, officers shall generally intervene to
prevent unreasonable force and shall report unnecessary/unreasonable force.
Harassment, intimidation, or retaliation against an officer who intervenes to
prevent or reports unnecessary/unreasonable force shall be a violation of policy
and subject to discipline. Refer to section VI of this policy for further info.

B. FIREARMS
1. In addition to those circumstances provided for in the PARAMETERS FOR THE USE

OF LETHAL FORCE, a police officer may discharge a Department-issued and/or

authorized firearm in the following instances:

a. At a firearms range for authorized training, target practice or competition; or

b. To destroy a dangerous animal or an animal so badly injured that it should be
destroyed to prevent further suffering. All other options shall be exhausted,
however, before shooting the animal, and the officer shall adhere to the
following guidelines:

i.  Officers shall exercise due care for the safety of persons and property
in the area and shall fire only when reasonably certain that there is no
substantial risk to bystanders.

ii.  Where feasible, ensure children are not present.

2. Warning shots and signaling shots are strictly prohibited. [1.3.2]
3. MOVING VEHICLES

a. Officers shall not discharge a firearm from inside any moving vehicle.

Page 18 of 40



b. Officers shall not discharge a firearm at a moving vehicle unless, based upon
the totality of the circumstances, such discharge is necessary to prevent
imminent harm to a person and the discharge is proportionate to the threat
of imminent harm to a person and all of the following conditions have been
met [1.1.2]:

i.  The occupants of the vehicle are employing deadly force, which the
officer reasonably perceives as an immediate threat of death or serious
bodily injury to themselves or another;

ii. There is no substantial risk to the safety of other persons, including
risks associated with motor vehicle accidents;

iii. Officers have not positioned themselves in such a way as to create a
likelihood of being struck by an occupied vehicle (e.g., surrounding a
vehicle at close proximity while dismounted);

iv.  The officer is not firing strictly to disable the vehicle; and

V.  The circumstances provide a high probability of stopping or striking the
intended target.

4. DRAWING & POINTING OF FIREARMS: An officer shall not draw a firearm
except when there is justification for its use to accomplish a proper police
purpose. However, in responding to any potentially dangerous situation (e.g.,
searching a building pursuant to a burglar alarm or approaching a business
establishment on a report of a robbery in progress etc.) the officer should carry
their firearm in a position that will facilitate its speedy, effective, and safe use.
Officers shall not point firearms at persons in circumstances, which are clearly
unjustifiable. In the event it is necessary to point a firearm at a subject, officers
shall note justification for the use of force within a Use of Force report.

5. OFF-DUTY FIREARMS

a. Any weapon that an officer carries while off-duty for protection or to enable
them to take official action as a police officer, excluding the officer's issued
service weapon, will be considered an off-duty weapon.

b. Any officer who desires to carry an off-duty weapon and be indemnified with
that weapon must first obtain written permission from the Chief of Police by
submitting a written request providing a complete description of the firearm,
and must qualify with the weapon at the range, at least annually. [1.3.9 (e);
1.3.10]

c. All ammunition carried in an approved off-duty weapon must be of a type
approved by the Chief of Police. [1.3.9 (b)]

Page 19 of 40



V.

SPECIAL WEAPONS

A.

When not carried in the locked rack in the patrol vehicle, special weapons will only be
issued, with the knowledge and permission of the Officer-in-Charge to officers who
have qualified with them.

Special weapons may be selectively issued by the Officer-in-Charge if, in his/her
opinion, they are necessary to ensure the safety and effectiveness of police
operations. Officers armed with special weapons shall use those weapons in
accordance with the provisions of this Policy as well as any applicable policies and
guidelines issued at the time.

Prior to issuing any special weapon, the Officer-in-Charge of the police station shall
inquire of any officer to whom he/she intends to issue the weapon whether or not
that officer is currently qualified in its use. It is the responsibility of a police officer
not to accept a special weapon unless he/she is qualified in its use.

VI.

DUTY TO INTERVENE [1.1.1(1)]

A.

An officer present and observing another officer using physical force, including deadly
force, beyond that which is necessary or objectively reasonable based on the totality
of the circumstances, shall intervene to prevent the use of unreasonable force unless
intervening would result in imminent harm to the officer or another identifiable
individual. [1.1.1(5), 1.1.2(5)]

An officer who observes another officer using physical force, including deadly force,
beyond that which is necessary or objectively reasonable based on the totality of the
circumstances shall report the incident to an appropriate supervisor as soon as
reasonably possible but not later than the end of the officer’s shift. The officer shall
prepare a detailed written statement describing the incident consistent with this
Department’s policy. A supervisor not directly involved in the use of force incident
shall complete a report which will include the reporting officer’s written statement(s).
[1.1.1(6), 1.1.2(6A), 1.1.2(6B), 1.1.2(6C)]

Any harassment, intimidation, or retaliation against any officer who either intervened
to prevent or stop an excessive force incident, or made a report regarding the
witnessed excessive force incident, shall be a violation of this Department policy and
shall, upon a sustained internal administrative investigation, be subjected to the
imposition of departmental discipline up to and including termination.

Page 20 of 40




VIl. USE OF FORCE CONSIDERATIONS INVOLVING
PLANNED MASS DEMONSTRATIONS

A. When a police department has advance knowledge of a planned mass demonstration,
it shall attempt in good faith to communicate with organizers of the event to discuss
logistical plans, strategies to avoid conflict and potential communication needs
between police and event participants.

B. The department shall make plans to avoid and de-escalate potential conflicts and
designate an officer in charge of de-escalation planning and communication about the
plans within the department.

C. Alaw enforcement officer shall not discharge or order the discharge of tear gas or any
other chemical weapon, discharge or order the discharge of rubber pellets from a
propulsion device or release or order the release of a dog to control or influence a
person’s behavior unless:

1. de-escalation tactics have been attempted and failed or are not feasible based on
the totality of the circumstances; and

2. the measures used are necessary to prevent imminent harm and the foreseeable
harm inflicted by the tear gas or other chemical weapon, rubber pellets or dog is
proportionate to the threat of imminent harm.

D. if alaw enforcement officer utilizes or orders the use of tear gas or any other chemical
weapon, rubber pellets or a dog against a crowd, the law enforcement officer’s
appointing agency shall file a report with the Massachusetts Peace Officer Standards
and Training Commission (POST) detailing all measures that were taken in advance of
the event to reduce the probability of disorder and all de-escalation tactics and other
measures that were taken at the time of the event to de-escalate tensions and avoid
the necessity of using the tear gas or other chemical weapon, rubber pellets or dog.

E. The Commission shall review the report and may make any additional investigation.
After such review and investigation, the commission shall, if applicable, make a finding
as to whether the pre-event and contemporaneous de-escalation tactics were
adequate and whether the use of or order to use such tear gas or other chemical
weapon, rubber pellets or dog was justified.

VIll. ADMINISTRATIVE RELIEF FROM DUTY AFTER FORCE
RESULTING IN DEATH OR SERIOUS BODILY INJURY

Page 21 of 40




A. In every instance in which any officer acting in an official capacity uses force which
results in death or serious bodily injury to another person, the following steps shall be
taken: [1.1.8 (1)]

1. Any employee whose action(s) or use of force in an official capacity results in
death or serious bodily/physical injury will be removed from operational
assignment, pending an administrative review of the incident by a supervisor not
directly involved in the incident or such other period of time as the Chief of
Police deems necessary.

2. The officer will be given the opportunity to call his/her family as soon as
possible.

3. The officer shall not be allowed to talk to the press. All information regarding the
incident will be disseminated through the Office of the Chief of Police or the Public
Information Officer.

B. Assignment to Administrative Leave status shall be with no loss of pay or benefits.

C. Relief from operational assignment with full pay and benefits is intended to: (i)
address the personal and emotional needs of an officer and his/her involved in the
use of force which results in serious bodily injury or death; and (ii) assure the
community that verification of all the facts surrounding such incidents are fully and
professionally explored.

D. Officers on administrative leave shall remain available to the Department and/or State
Police Investigators to assist in the investigation of the incident.

E. Whenever an officer is involved in a use of force incident that results in death or
serious injury the Chief of Police or his/her designee will make arrangements for stress
counseling. (NEMLEC CISM, dispatched by North Andover Police, at 978-683-3168 or
Massachusetts State Police Employee Assistance Unit @ 781-821-5496 or MSP
Headquarters @ 508-820-2121 or Boston Police Peer Support Unit 617-343-5175
Monday Friday 8:00AM — 5:00PM (all other times 617-594-9091 ask to speak to the
“on call peer counselor) or any appropriate psychological assistance provider for the
officer and members of his or her immediate family, authorized by the Chief of Police.

IX. POST USE OF FORCE INCIDENT PROCEDURES

A. INVOLVED OFFICER RESPONSIBILITY

Page 22 of 40




In all incidents involving: (1) weaponless physical force where either the officer or
the suspect is noticeably injured or claims to be injured at the time force is used, or
requests medical attention; (2) the deployment of less-lethal force; or (3) the
deployment of lethal force, the involved officer(s) shall: [1.1.5]

1.

2.

Notify the Patrol Supervisor;
Request that sufficient officers be dispatched to the scene;

Activate EMS, render medical assistance to the subject and arrange for
transportation to a medical facility for evaluation and/or treatment;

Identify involved officers and witnesses;
Preserve any evidence;
Secure the scene until the Patrol Supervisor has arrived;

File the appropriate incident or arrest report and Use of Force Report pursuant
to this Policy.

. PATROL SUPERVISOR / OFFICER-IN-CHARGE

RESPONSIBILITY

1.

LESS-LETHAL FORCE

In any incident involving an officer’s use of less lethal force including:
weaponless physical force where either the officer or the suspect(s) are injured
or claim to be injured, or requests medical attention; or a chemical substance; or
less-lethal impact weapons, or an electronic control weapon (ECW), the Patrol
Supervisor / Officer-in-Charge shall: [1.1.5]

i.  Immediately respond to the scene.

ii. Ensure that the officer(s) receives any necessary assistance, including
medical treatment, and that any injuries to the officer(s) are properly
documented. {1.1.5(1B,1C,1D,1E)]

iii.  Ensure that the subject(s) receives the necessary medical treatment and
that any injuries to the subject(s) are properly documented.

[1.1.5(18,1C,1D,1E)]

iv.  Conduct an initial review of the circumstances for the use of force.

Page 23 of 40



vi.

vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Identify and interview officers and witnesses.

Photograph the scene. Officers should make reasonable efforts to protect
the subject’s privacy.

Gather and collect evidence. For ECW deployments, take custody of the
ECW and discarded cartridge that was deployed and submit the device to
the ECW Officer for data downloading. The ECW Officer or his designee will
print the data and attach it to the Use of Force Report Form, as soon as
practical thereafter.

Determine if a detective should respond to the scene and the level of
investigative services to be utilized (including photographs, measurements
and diagrams). If an injury or complaint of pain exists, supervisors are
encouraged to obtain photographs.

NOTE: A photograph showing no injury may be as important as one,
which shows injury.

If a supervisor (a Sergeant or above) is not on shift, determine if a
supervisor needs to be contacted for a response to the scene.

File a report prior to the conclusion of their tour of duty.

If the subject is admitted to a medical facility for treatment, respond to the
facility and document the condition or injuries. [1.3.5]

Ensure Incident or Arrest and Use of Force Reports are completed by the
deploying officer prior to the conclusion of his/her tour of duty or
immediately after their detail assignment.

Complete the OIC/Command Review section of the Use of Force Report
Form and submit the report to the Captain or his designee.

LETHAL FORCE AND FIREARMS

In any incident involving the use of lethal force; or discharge of firearms,
including a kinetic energy impact projectile, the Patrol Supervisor / Officer-in-
Charge shall: [1.1.5]

Immediately respond to the scene.

Page 24 of 40



vi.

Vii.

viii.

Ensure that the officer(s) receives any necessary assistance, including
medical treatment, and that any injuries to the officer(s} are properly
documented. [1.1.5(1A)]

Ensure that the subject(s) receives the necessary medical treatment and
that any injuries to the subject(s) are properly documented. [1.1.5(1A}]

Conduct an initial review of the circumstances for the deployment of force.
Identify involved officers and witnesses.

If a supervisor (a Sergeant or above) is not on shift, contact a supervisor
for a response to the scene.

FOR INCIDENTS RESULTING IN DEATH OR EXPECTED DEATH: I[n any
incident involving the death or expected death of an officer or subject, the
Patrol Supervisor shall also notify the Massachusetts State Police CPAC
Unit and the District Attorney as soon as possible, and secure the scene
until such time that the CPAC Units arrives. In any incident involving the
death or expected death of an officer or subject, the Chief of Police or his
designee shall respond, assume control of the scene and conduct an
investigation.

FOR INCIDENTS NOT RESULTING IN DEATH OR EXPECTED DEATH: In any
incident not involving the death or expected death of an officer or subject,
the Chief of Police, or Captain, or their designee shall respond, assume
control of the scene and conduct an investigation.

FOR OFFICER-INVOLVED SHOOTING INCIDENTS: In any officer-involved
shooting incident, obtain a Public Safety Statement from any officer who
has discharged a firearm or witnessed an officer-involved shooting
incident, unless that officer is medically incapacitated, invokes his/her
constitutionally-protected right to remain silent, or requests to consult
with legal counsel.

C. SHIFT COMMANDER / OIC RESPONSIBILITIES

1.

The Shift Commander / OIC may respond to the scene of any incident involving
weaponless physical force or instances of less-lethal force.

The Shift Commander / OIC shall respond to all incidents involving the use of

lethal force, whether or not such force results in death or serious bodily injury.

Page 25 of 40



The Shift Commander / OIC shall make all resources, facilities, and personnel of
the Department available to assigned investigators;

The Shift Commander / OIC shall ensure that the involved officer(s) is provided
with appropriate Federal/State civil rights protection.

The Shift Commander / OIC shall politely refer all media requests for information
to the Public Information Officer (P1O).

If the circumstances are such that the continued presence of the officer at the
scene might cause a more hazardous situation to develop, (unruly/violent
bystanders/crowd), that officer should be transported to another, more
appropriate location.

The Shift Commander / OIC or authorized investigator shall determine whether
the circumstances of the incident require that the officer’s duty weapon be
taken for laboratory analysis. Where the duty weapon is taken, the OIC shall:

a. Take custody of the weapon(s) in a discrete manner; and

b. Replace it with another weapon, or advise the officer that it will be returned
or replaced at a later time, as appropriate.

The Shift Commander / OIC shall immediately institute an investigation into any
incident involving the use of lethal force whether such force results in death,
serious bodily injury or no injury at all, and shall notify the Chief of Police (or if
unavailable, the Captain) of the situation.

D. DEPARTMENT RESPONSE TO INCIDENTS RESULTING IN

DEATH OR SERIOUS BODILY INJURY

In any event resulting in the death or serious bodily injury of an officer or subject, the
following protocols shall be adhered to:

1.

Involved officers shall refrain from speaking or discussing the incident with anyone
except with those directly involved, medical or mental health professionals, legal
counsel, or union representatives.

Involved officers shall remain available, at reasonable times, for interviews and
statements regarding the incident.

. During any period where the involved officers are required to remain on the scene,

but have no immediate duties to fulfill, the officer(s) should be taken to a quiet
area away from the scene of the incident. A peer counselor or other supportive

Page 26 of 40



officer should remain with the involved officer, but should be advised not to
discuss details of the incident.

. If involved officers are not required at the scene, a supervisor should arrange for
the officers directly involved in the incident to leave the scene as soon as possible,
and be taken to a quiet, secure setting, such as police headquarters. The
supervisor shall;

a.

Require that involved officers abstain from ingesting caffeine or other
stimulants or depressants unless administered by medical personnel.

Conduct a brief interview of the involved officer consisting of only minimal,
preliminary questions. The officer should be advised that a more detailed
debriefing will be conducted later (but as soon as possible).

Advise all officers not to discuss the incident with anyone except a personal
attorney, an attorney appointed by the Department, a union representative, a
departmental or authorized investigator until the conclusion of the
preliminary investigation.

Instruct involved officers to notify their families about the incident as soon as
possible and assist them with the notification. Where an officer or officer is
unable to do so, an agency official shall personally notify the officer(s) family,
and arrange for their transportation to the hospital.

At all times, when at the scene of the incident, handle the officer and all
involved personnel in a manner that acknowledges the stress caused by the
incident.

Debriefings shall be held as soon as possible after the incident. The Department
shall ensure that there are officers on-call or on-duty at all times so that
someone is available shortly after an incident.

. Any Department or authorized outside agency investigation of the incident shall
be conducted as soon and as quickly as practical.

. The Department should privately brief other department Sworn personnel
concerning the incident so that rumors are kept to a minimum. Department
Sworn personnel are encouraged to show the involved officers their concern.

. All personnel involved in a shooting incident should be advised that they are not
permitted to speak with the media about the incident.

Page 27 of 40



Q.

In order to protect against harassing or abusive calls, personnel should be
advised to have phone calls answered by another person for several days if their
names are released to the public.

10.Personnel directly involved in a shooting incident shall be required to re-qualify

with firearms as soon as practical.

E. OFFICER WELLNESS CONSIDERATIONS

1.

Law enforcement duties can often expose officers and support personnel to
mentally painful and highly stressful situations that cannot be resolved through
normal stress coping mechanisms. Unless adequately treated, these situations
can cause disabling emotional and physical problems. It has been found that any
action in an official capacity resulting in death or serious bodily injury to a citizen
or a fellow officer may precipitate such stress disorders. However, such disorders
can also be created by accumulated stressors from seemingly minor incidents as
well. Consequently, it is the responsibility of this Department to provide all
personnel with information on stress disorders and to guide and assist in their
deterrence.

This section is meant to provide guidelines that shall be uniformly applied
following any officer-involved incident that has resulted in death or serious bodily
injury, in order to minimize the chances that involved personnel will develop or
suffer from post-traumatic stress disorder. Moreover, officers are expected to
monitor their peers with the goal of interdicting potentially debilitating and
harmful stress disorders that can severely impact the fellow officer’s career,
family, and health.

Since some post-traumatic stress disorders may not arise immediately, or the
officer/officer may attempt to hide the problem, each supervisor is responsible
for monitoring the behavior of unit personnel for symptoms of the disorder.

Some symptoms of post-traumatic stress disorder include:

A feeling of being numb;

Feeling out of touch with what is going on around them;

A feeling that this is happening to someone else;

Withdrawing and avoiding anything to do with the traumatic situation or
police work;

Avoiding other people, including one’s family;

Intrusive and recurring thoughts of the event and feeling that it may be
happening again;

Irritability;

Sleep problems;

o0 To

oo

o

Page 28 of 40



i. Difficulty in concentrating; and
j- Hyper-vigilance.

5. The Chief of Police may order an officer to seek assistance or counseling from a
mental health specialist upon a reasonable belief that stress may be disrupting the
officer or officer’s job performance. [22.2.3; 22.2.6]

6. Any officer whose action(s) or use of force in an official capacity results in death
or serious bodily injury will be removed from line-duty assignment, pending an
administrative review of the incident, or such other period of time as the Chief of
Police deems necessary, after the officer or officer has completed his/her report
of the incident. [1.3.8]

7. All officers directly involved in a shooting incident should contact a department
designated specialist for counseling and evaluation as soon as practical after the
incident, even if they believe the incident did not impact them negatively.
Involved support personnel should also be encouraged to contact such specialists
after a shooting incident. [22.2.3; 22.2.6]

8. The Department strongly encourages the families of sworn personnel and civilians
to take advantage of available counseling services, as well. [22.2.4]

X. USE OF FORCE REPORTING

A. FORM OF USE OF FORCE REPORT

All Use of Force Reports filed in compliance with this Policy shall be on the Form
attached to this Policy and accompany any incident or arrest reports filed by the
officers involved.

B. USE OF WEAPONLESS PHYSICAL FORCE [1.1.6(1D), 116(2)]

The handcuffing of a compliant detainee will not require the completion of a Use of
Force form, nor will the application of “soft hand physical compliance techniques” or
“come-alongs”.

A Use of Force Report (appendix D) shall be completed and filed for any greater use

of weaponless physical force (to include strikes (knee, palm, etc.) or instances in
which a subject is taken to the ground with force).

Page 29 of 40




A Use of Force Report (appendix D) shall be completed and filed when the use of
weaponless physical force results in an injury (either noticeable or complained of) to
the officer or detainee.

C. USE OF LESS-LETHAL FORCE [1.1.6(1C)]

. In all incidents involving the use of less-lethal force, all involved officers shall

prepare and submit a Use of Force Report. This includes spark displays of an ECW,
except when a spark display check is conducted to test the device at the beginning
of an officer’s shift.

Always remember that each application of the ECW is a separate application of a
use of force and a separate Use of Force Report must be filed for each
application.

If an ECW is deployed, including a spark display of an ECW, the supervisor(s) /
0IC(s) of the officers involved must complete the OIC/Command Review section
of the Use of Force Report Form.

All Officers-in-Charge and the Captain or his designee will conduct a written review
of all reports concerning each incident where less-lethal force has been utilized.

The Department shall ensure that the Executive Officer of Public Safety and
Security (EOPSS) ECW Use Reporting Form is completed and submitted as required
by EOPSS in accordance with G.L. c. 140, section 131J and St. 2004, c. 170, section
2.

D. USE OF LETHAL FORCE [1.1.6(1B)]

1.

All officers involved in the use of lethal force shall file a separate Use of Force
Report.

All supervisors shall file a report on the incident and his/her observations with
the Captain.

. It is not necessary to complete a Use of Force Report when a badly injured

animal is destroyed. However, the officer shall submit an Incident Report
according to current departmental procedures.

All officers involved in any instance where a firearm was pointed at a subject
shall file a separate Use of Force Report.

F. USE OF FORCE INCIDENT REVIEW

Page 30 of 40



1. Allreports concerning any use of force incidents shall be forwarded to the Captain
or his designee, who, after reviewing these reports, along with any accompanying
comments or recommendations, shall take appropriate action. [1.1.7(1)]

2. With respect to all instances of use of force, the Tactical Sergeant or a Lieutenant
or a Captain shall be responsible for the following: [1.3.7]

a. Ensuring that a thorough investigation was conducted and that all reports
were prepared and submitted; and

b. Reviewing all reports submitted to determine whether the use of force was in
compliance with department policy and procedures.

c. This review shall be conducted by an individual not involved in the incident. If
the Tactical Sergeant is involved in the incident, the review shall be conducted
by an alternative individual as assigned by the Chief of Police.

3. The Department will adhere to at least the minimum standards for internal
agency review of complaints of officer-involved injuries or deaths as established
by the Commission.

4. The Department shall adhere to all reporting requirements established pursuant
to G.L. c. 6E, and such further requirements as may be promulgated by the
Commission.

G. ANNUAL ANALYSIS

The Tactical Sergeant will conduct an annual analysis of all Use of Force Reports,
activities, policies and practices. A review of incidents of force may reveal patterns or
trends that could indicate training needs, equipment upgrades, and/or policy
modifications. The review should identify: [1.1.14, 11.4.1]

Date and time of incidents;

Type of force or type of weapon used;

Types of encounters resulting in use of force;

Race, age, and gender of subjects involved;

Injuries (to subjects, agency employees, others involved);

Trends or patterns related to race, age and gender of subjects

involved;

o Trends or patterns resulting in injury to any person including
employees; and

o Impact of findings on policies, practices, equipment, and training.

O 0O O O O O

Page 31 of 40



Such analysis and any conclusions shall be documented annually in a written report
to the Chief of Police specifically summarizing any patterns or trends identified, and
indicating whether any changes to department policies, practices, equipment, or
training are needed. [1.1.14(3), 1.1.14(4), 11.4.1 (e)]

Xl.  TRAINING

A. GENERALLY

1. No officer of this Department, either new officers or existing officers with
regards to a newly issued weapon, will be authorized to carry any lethal or less-
lethal weapon until he/she has: [1.1.13, 16.3.6]

a. Beenissued a copy of this Use of Force Policy (and any other relevant
policies), received instruction and successfully passed a written examination
on same; and [1.1.13(1A,1B,2A,2B)]

b. Completed the necessary training and qualifications promulgated by the
Municipal Police Training Committee (MPTC); and

c. Signed a receipt indicating that he/she has received a copy of this Use of
Force Policy (and any other relevant policies) and has been afforded the
opportunity to discuss it and ask questions regarding the policy, which shall
be maintained by the instructor and/or Training Coordinator.
[1.1.13(1C,1D,2C,2C)]

2. All weapons qualification records and officer scores shall be documented and
maintained by the Training Coordinator. [1.1.11 (4)]

3. All training in use of force shall be conducted by MPTC-approved instructors and
shall comply with MPTC standards. [1.1.11 (5), 1.1.12(2B)]

4, At least annually, all officers authorized to carry weapons are required to receive
in-service training on the Department’s Use of Force Policy and demonstrate
proficiency with all approved lethal weapons and ECWs that the officer is
authorized to use. In-service training for other less lethal weapons and
weaponless control techniques shall occur at least biennially. [1.1.10(1,2A,28),
1.1.11(1A,1B,2A,28,2C), 1.1.12(1A,1B,2A)]

5. Alaw enforcement officer shall not be trained to use a lateral vascular neck
restraint, carotid restraint or other action that involves the placement of any
part of law enforcement officer’s body on or around a person’s neck in a manner
that limits the person’s breathing or blood flow. [1.1.2(3)]

Page 32 of 40



B. DEFENSIVE TACTICS AND DE-ESCALATION [1.1.1(2)]

1.

All recruit officers shall receive training on defensive tactics and de-escalation
mandated by the Municipal Police Training Committee during the recruit officer
training academy.

Annually, all officers shall continue to receive the in-service training on defensive
tactics and de-escalation mandated by the Municipal Police Training Committee.

C. ECW TRAINING

1.

Basic User Training: Six (6) hour certification course is mandatory training for
all officers. [16.3.5; 33.1.2]

In-Service Training: All officers who are certified to carry and deploy the ECW
shall complete annually a minimum of one (1) hour in-service documented
proficiency and legal update training, conducted by certified weapons instructor
with remedial training available, if needed. [1.3.11 (a); 1.3.11 (b); 1.3.11 (c);
33.1.2; 33.5.1; 33.6.1 (a); 33.6.1 (b)]

Instructor Training: All department instructors are required to complete a
sixteen (16) hour ECW manufacturer certification course, and an additional
instructor training course from the Municipal Police Training Committee (MPTC).
Instructors are required to be trained and re-certified biannually. {33.1.2; 33.6.1
(a); 33.6.1 (b)]

Supervisor Training: Annually, superior officers of all ranks shall receive
specialized ECW awareness and After Action Report (AAR) in-service training by
qualified instructors so they can intelligently investigate, properly document and
report ECW deployment incidents. This training shall be in addition to the annual
ECW in-service training requirement and shall be not less than two (2) hours in
length. [33.1.2; 33.6.1 (a); 33.6.1 (b)]

D. FIREARMS TRAINING

1.

All recruit officers shall receive training on firearms mandated by the Municipal
Police Training Committee during the recruit officer training academy.

2. All personnel authorized to carry a Department-issued weapon shall qualify with

their issued weapon and any other weapon they are authorized to carry while on
duty at least annually. [1.3.10; 1.3.11 (a); 16.3.6]

Page 33 of 40



3. All approved lethal weapons shall be under the direction of the department's
Training Coordinator and approved Municipal Police Training Committee (MPTC)
weapons and tactics instructors. [1.3.11 (a); 16.3.6]

4. Following a period of training and practice, all officers will be expected to qualify
in accordance with the standards established by the MPTC.

5. Only officers demonstrating proficiency in the use of Department-issued or
authorized weapons will be authorized to carry or use those weapons. [1.3.10;
1.3.11 (a)]

6. Qualification and proficiency shall include an inspection of any firearm used by
the officer to ensure that it is in good working condition.

7. If the Chief of Police approves an off-duty weapon, the officer must qualify with
the weapon at the range, at least annually. [1.3.10]

8. All officers authorized to use any of the Department's special weapons, such as
shotguns, will qualify with the weapon(s) they are authorized to use, in
accordance with the standards established by the Municipal Police Training
Committee (MPTC), the manufacturer, or the Department's Weapons and Tactics
Instructor, at least annually. [1.3.9 (a)]

9. A listing of all officers who have qualified with each special weapon will be
maintained with the weapons and with the Training Coordinator.

10.Training in the use of extended range kinetic energy impact projectiles will
consist of an annual recertification by department firearms instructors.

. POST TRAUMATIC STRESS DISORDER TRAINING

The Police Department shall provide officers with training pertaining to post-
traumatic stress disorders and the uniform practices contained in this Policy on a
regular basis.

. ADDITIONAL/REMEDIAL TRAINING

Any officer who requires additional training and/or instruction will be given an
additional amount of time to demonstrate proficiency and if necessary, remedial
training, while removed from line duty assignment. If it becomes necessary, the
officer will be sent to additional remedial firearms training until such time as he/she
successfully passes the MPTC qualification course. Any officer who is unable to

Page 34 of 40



qualify with an authorized weapon must receive remedial training PRIOR to use of
the weapon as part of their official duties. If use of the weapon is required as part of
their official duties, they must receive remedial training prior to resuming their
official duties. [1.1.11(6), 1.1.12(2C)]

. SPECIAL WEAPONS

Any officer authorized to carry or use any special weapon shall complete training on
such special weapon at least annually. [1.3.11]

Page 35 of 40



APPENDIX A

Middleton Police Department
Authorized weapons/equipment

MPD Authorized Weapons

Platform Make Model Caliber Duty Ammunition
Pistols Glock 17(MOS) 9mm 124gr Hollowpoint +P
Glock 43X (MOS) 9mm 124gr Hollowpoint +P
Pistol Optics Holosun SCS
Rifles Bushmaster | XM-15 5.56/.223 | .223 55gr ballistic silvertip
.223 62gr tacitical bonded SP
5.56 62gr
Colt M4 5.56/.223 | .223 55gr ballistic silvertip
.223 62gr tacitical bonded SP
5.56 62gr
Windham WW-15 5.56/.223 | .223 55gr ballistic silvertip
.223 62gr tacitical bonded SP
5.56 62gr
Rifle Optics Aimpoint PRO
Vortex Sparc-AR
Shotguns (Lethal) Beretta 1301 12ga magnum slug
Rifled Slug
Less lethal
Weapons Remington | 870 12ga Drag stabilized beanbag rounds
Mossberg 500 12ga Drag stabilized beanbag rounds
Axon X2 25 Taser X2 - two 25' Cartridges
Sabre Red 0OC 1.33% | Sabre Red OC Spray SKU: 52CFT10 - Stream
Monadnock | Collapsible | Baton Autolock or AutoLock Ii 26" Baton

Page 36 of 40




APPENDIX B

(] onaonocs

BATON CHART

Escalation of Trauma By Vital
And Vulnerable Striking Areas

Hollow behind
Ear (16)

Ears (2) Temple (1)
Eyes (3)
Upper Jaw (5)

Throat (7)

Back of

Bridge of Neck (15)

Nose (4)
Lower Jaw (6)

Collarhone (8)

Upper Arm

Shoulder
Blade (17)

Rib Cage

Shoulder Kidney (18)

Upper
Ahdomen

Solar
Plexus (9)

Inside of

Wrist (21) Elbow

Forearm Joint {22)
Lower Back of
Abdomen (10) Hand (23) c Tail Boln;i
Buttock ocoyx |
Knee Joint (12)
~~Calf
Shin (13) .
Instep {14) ‘T‘::Jg:s(zo)

YELLOW

REASONING
Minimal leve! of resultant trauma.
Injury tends to be temporary
rather than long-lasting, however
exceptions can occur.

Except for the HEAD, NECK,
SPINE, the whole body is a Green
Target Area for the application of
haton blocking and restraint skills.

REASONING
Moderate to serious level of
resultant trauma. Injury tends to
be more long-lasting, but may also
be temporary.

REASONING
Highest level of resultant trauma.
Injury tends to range from
serious to long-lasting rather
than temporary and may include
unconsciousness, serious bodily
injury, shock or death.

Page 37 of 40



APPENDIX C
LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Page 38 of 40



APPENDIX D
USE OF FORCE REPORT FORM

DATE TIME LOCATION CASE #

SUBJECT'S NAME DATE OF BIRTH HEIGHT WEIGHT RACE / ETHNICITY

REASON THE USE OF FORCE WAS NECESSARY {check all that apply):

O TO EFFECT AN ARREST O TO DEFEND SELF O PREVENT ESCAPE
O TO DEFEND ANOTHER OFFICER / PERSON O PROTECTIVE CUSTODY / SUBJECT SAFETY
O TO DISPATCH ANIMAL 0O OTHER:

LIST MOST SERIOUS OFFENSE(S) AT TIME FORCE USED:

WAS SUBJECT INJURED? WAS REPORTING OFFICER INJURED? MEDICAL TREATMENT PROVIDED TO/BY: PHOTOS TAKEN BY:
O YES O NO 0O vyes 0O nNo

DESCRIBE INJURIES: DESCRIBE INJURIES:

SUBJECTS THAT RESISTED: # OFFICERS PRESENT: SUPERVISOR NOTIFIED / TIME / BY WHOM:

AT THE TIME OF ARREST, THE SUBJECT WAS:
O SUSPECTED TO BE UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF ALCOHOL OR DRUGS O MENTALLY IMPAIRED / EMOTIONALLY DISTURBED
O UNDER THE INCLUDE OF ALCOHOL OR DRUGS [0 OTHER:

OFFICER’S PERCEPTION OF INDIVIDUAL’S ACTIONS (USE NARRATIVE TO DESCRIBE PERCEIVED THREAT({S) POSED BY INDIVIDUAL):

O PASSIVE RESISTANCE —
{dead weight or non-compliance to Officer's lawful verbal direction, but offering no actively resistive movement)
ACTIVE OR ESCAPE RESISTANCE —
(actions such as pushing, pulling, evasive arm movement, flalling, flight, muscle tension, etc. to avoid control)
0O ASSAULTIVE / HIGH-RISK -
(agitated, combative state, physically assaultive actions and/or behavior that poses threat of injury to another — e.g. punching, kicking, etc.)

O LIFE THREATENING [ SERIOUS BODILY INJURY

(actions that may result in death or serious bodily injury)

OFFICER’'S RESPONSE OPTION(S) (PROVIDE FURTHER DETAILS IN ATTACHED NARRATIVE REPORT(S)):

{0 PRESENCE: [J FULLUNIFORM [1 PARTIALUNIFORM [O PLAINCLOTHES
NOTE: Officers not in full uniform, describe means of visual police identification (e.g. raid vest or jacket, displayed badge/iD, etc.)
0 VERBAL COMMANDS (Describe details in Narrative Reporti:
0O COMPLIANCE TECHNIQUES (Describe details in Narrative Report):
(Force used to gain control — restraint, come-alongs, takedowns — use of hands, arms, feet, legs)

0O CHEMICAL SPRAY /{ CHEMICAL AGENT [Describe details in Narrative Report}:

Number of Bursts: Duration of Bursts: Distance from Subject:

(m]

lication / di ination:

impact Location: Time b

0O IMPACT WEAPON / TEMP. INCAPACITATION (Describe details in Narrative Report):

[0 ELECTRONIC CONTROL WEAPON / DEVICE (Describe details in Narrative Report):
O Laser Onty [ Spark Check [3 Drive Stun [J Probe Deployment Impact L tion: Number of Cycles:

Unit #: Serial #: Cartridge Serial #: Dist from Subject:
[ POINT A FIREARM (Describe details in Narrative Report):
O DEADLY FORCE - Firearm or other {Describe details in Narrative Report}:

0O OTHER:
RESTRAINT METHOD USED: [J HAND or FLEXCUFFS [0 LEG RESTRAINTS [1 BODY GUARD [J SPITSHIELD [JNONE [J OTHER:
OFFICERS PRESENT AT SCENE DURING FORCE APPLICATION: SHIFT OIC(S):
OTHER WITNESS(ES) / PERSON(S) PRESENT AT SCENE: SHIFT OFFICER(S):
AUDIO-VISUAL EVIDENCE: [0 YES [ NO OIC(S) WHO RESPONDED TO SCENE:
If NO, explain:

COMPLETING OFFICER(S): IF ADDITIONAL SPACE IS REQUIRED IN ANY BOX USE THE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT;
ATTACH ALL RELATED NARRATIVE REPORTS, SUPPLEMENTS AND STATEMENTS AND
FORWARD TO SHIFT QIC PRIOR TO END OF TOUR OF DUTY

Page 39 of 40



CASE #

WAS SUBJECT(S)INJURED? *0O YES [O NO
*{Complete Diagram Below)

OFFICER(S) TAKING PHOTOS

TOTAL # OF PHOTOS

DESCRIBE THE EXTENT OF THE SUBJECT'S INJURIES AND PLACE ON THE DIAGRAM:

*0 YEsS 0O NO

* (Complete Diagram Below}

) J . }‘" DESCRIBE THE EXTENT OF THE SUBJECT’S INJURIES AND PLACE ON THE DIAGRAM:
I(-_- ) X Ir"!\v"' ™~
| a N
i L g i‘ \"41?_1,\

WITNESS(ES) OR PERSON(S) WITH KNOWLEDGE:

ADDRESS:

PHONE #:

i no, explain:

OFFICER’S NARRATIVE: Did Officer prepare a detailed incident report describing facts and circumstances leading to the use of force? O YES

anNo

OIC / COMMAND REVIEW

REPORTING OIC (Name and Badge #)

DATE AND TIME OF OIC REPONSE

LOCATION

OFFICER WHO USED FORCE (Name and Badge #)

WAS SUBJECT(S) INJURED?
DYES ONO

WAS OFFICER(S) INJURED?
OYES ONO

0IC'S NARRATIVE: (Document steps taken to review and evaluate Officer's use of force.)

A/V EVIDENCE AVAILABLE / REVIEWED BY QIC:
OYES [ONO Date:

AJV EVIDENCE AVAILABLE / REVIEWED BY
OFFICER:
OYEsS [NO Date:

AN EVIDENCE AVAILABLE / REVIEWED BY

COMMAND STAFF:
O YES [ONO Date:

COMMAND STAFF REVIEW NARRATIVE: (Confirm proper and complete investigation was conducted.)

OFFICER REVIEW (Print / Sign / Date):

OIC REVIEW (Print / Sign / Date):

COMMAND STAFF’S REVIEW (Print / Sign / Date):

0IC / COMMAND: REVIEW & CRITIQUE USE OF FORCE WITH INVOLVED OFFICER(S).

NOTE FINDINGS ABOVE AND FORWARD COMPLETED PACKET TO CHIEF OF POLICE

Use of force requires an ON-SCENE review, including a narrative report from the responding OIC. This is REQUIRED for incidents
involving - Chemical Spray, ECW/ECD deployment or Drive Stun; any incident resulting in injury or complaint of injury; or any other
time deemed appropriate by a commanding officer.

Page 40 of 40




»xa01EP BIMRY
J0j panpayas ag 0} (Aiopeq
Mg} IS 100YIS 0Fxas

awdojanap

snoafiejueape asow

10 saiuadoad omy ay; jo

Juifiesoed, yenuajod ay)

pue jadied 193]S 1Snao7

apnjaul 0sje 0} UoIssnasig

Bunaay pieog 129195 SZ0Z ‘Yis Ainr
‘anj 3y} 1@ passnIs|p 3q 0] IS UIRW 'S 8Y

jU0)3)PPIW 40 SJUBPISAL aY) WOl Jeay 0] axyi) p.am ;dojaAapal ‘aalasasd ‘uiejal )es

isaipadosd paumo umo) asayy Joj Jxau s Jeypm
saliag wnJio4 angnd sanadold smding

UO}31PPIN JO UMO]




VIN ‘uola[ppIN

720¢ ‘8¢ aunf

AQNLS ININNVId ? ININNVYIIOUd

LS NIVIN HLNOS 487 + 81

T1VH TVI4ON3N NOLITdalN




S193LIKIBY

BNy

Z2N71 £ =5 juswdojensgsse
g & T
"asn pasodoid mau sy) Joj Auadoid ay} Jo Juswidojanapal
9yl 10} 44y uanbasqns e wiojul 0} SOLIBUIIS
T r——— guiwwelgold o uoneuaWnop aalsuayaidwos aanpoid
IO} UIPY UL ‘YaRRZINS uRsng pue 193115 UIBJ\ UINOS Y81 B 817 10} (S)asSea asn aininj
NOL310QIN 40 NMOL

10 snsuasuod dojanap 0} Si Apnis siy Jo |eos ay|

Bujuue)q aje1s] |eay ‘JUapIsald 9917 JOIUAG ‘JIAN,O 3are|D

1NIWdOTIAIASSYIN "S9ljiuawle jeuoljealdal 0] aWoy >_Em\_\_=o S|
JauBlseq ‘smiz asii3 Yarym [aaJed Y8y ay} Se ||am Se }88ilS Ulely yinos gy
18 WAl ‘U0IBIPPIN Ul ||BH |eows|y Sursixa 8y} Joj Apnis
jedivulld ‘ezesteg Janag Asuey
SL9LIHONY 2017 BIGNLS duiwwelsold ay) sazllewwins podas suimoljo} au|
NV3il

AQNLS ININNVId B INININVYIOYUd

T1VH TVI40N3IN NOL310dIN




m:.................... ................ ....wzo_E_imazm_Ew_"_;_nz.ﬂ_&;
e AN NS | X1 Ad
e -
A S
e O
L e A A LNAAOD
e T AL
e L0 LS 2

.v CEmNNRREESASEEARAEAERENEERES CNE R A EAENARESNAA RN NS RRNERNENEEARNISSEMEEERESEEEEEY zc-—.u:ccm--z- -—

Sjuajuog Jo ajgel




=1

NOILINAOYLNI 'L




S13LHIEY

§ Mmﬂm wuawdolarag :‘ Apnig Suiwuweddold |jeH [e4OWSA | YIN ‘UOBIPPIN
nis
‘lleH ferowsjy

JU0)SIy Fulwwesgoldal YIm pIemio) Sanow ) se
Umo} 3y} Suipte ‘U0ISIPPIN JO UMO] By} Joj J1j0) e
se FuIAeS ‘sawsyds ugIsap pue SUOIJEpUALILIOI3I
wieldoid asayl saunno podar Fuimojo) ayj

“aoeds ay)
J0 Spaau |eIn}aalyale Jueynsal ayy pue Ayadoud ayl
10} Sulwwelgosd ainjny a1enjeAsd djay 0] aduelsisse
|€4n}08}IY2Je 10} pase3ua SEM SJI8NYILY ZNn 0IpNIS
'saldajen)s ugisap |eiusjod pue Fuiwwesdoud
ainny  otweufp Juluysp ‘umo) 8y} Jo Spasu
Jljewwelgosd ay} pue ndus AIUNWLWOI UG paseq
S1 180418 UlBJ\ YINOS YQY PUB Qf 10} UDISIA MBU BY]

"s]asse Aunwwo se |enuajod 1eais pue
90I18S o Muojsiy gue| e uipjoy ‘pajedoy A)|eljusd
ale |sed Jeal sy pue Fuip|ing 3y} ‘18815 UIe
UInos Y8y pue gy 1e palenis "awod 0} Sapedap o}
Ajunwiwod uoja|ppIl Jepim 8y} JJauaq ||im Jey] {jeH
[ELIOWS 10} UOISIA M3U B 3}B31D 0} JaY}asd0} awod
aney uawdo[dAa(sSeyy pue uola|ppl 1o umoj ay|

M3IAIaAQ 193l01d

[ UOTAIPPIN ‘edrBLly 40 SaSewy wolf 38ew| TJooydS B1URY 2Y) 18 {|eH [eLowRy Je jo) Buivied Kep Juasaid ayy) pied ay) ul Aeid Je sjuapms

MITAYIAD LO310Yd

NOILINAOYLNI

0 199l014

M3IAIBA

—
=3
[an o
b
(=)
o B
=
(o
i
o
=




S133LIHTUY

juswidojaragssein ‘

Apnig SutwiweBoid [|eH [elOWDN | YIA ‘UolalppIN

*3Wayas yaea ul
UoHeIopIsU0d 0ju! usye] Uaaq sey ‘A}unwiLiod sy} Aq paysanbai se y3nosyl-Jna peos olew e Joj ferjuajod ay) Surpnjour
‘fyadosd 8y} 10 uawdojanap aininy Jo uogedianuy Fuiwwesdord sasusp poddns o sapesddn oj)das pue ‘aoeds
usal3 pue uoijeassas anssed Jo uoneasasaid ‘suondo Buisnoy asIBAIp apnjoul syesse AINUas 1STZ Yans “UOSIPPIA
40 UMO[ 34} }1j3U3q 0] BNUILIOI [|IM Jey} sjasse Ainjuad JsTz se AUadoad pajeifiye pue [jey |eLowsly uolysedal o)
palinbal sapesddn Buipuodsailod ay) pue synoke| 1o} suciido Jayo alay pajuasald sawayas ugisap |en)dsauca ay)

"U01}RJAPISUOD GJu1 UaX e} udag os[e aAey Juawidojarap [iejas pue Suisnoy a3pugs||IA pue
¥a|dwio) [ediaruniy uojaippIN 84} S yons syuawidojanap aingny 1oy uoljedionuy "se1Z8leNs als aly) pauLoju| Sjaaled
M1 31} U0 SUOIIPUD 31 BpiSBUO[R ‘Bale 3y ut swelFoid Bul)SIXg "U0JB|PPII 4O UMOY 3y} J0 sanjea sy} yum Sudaay
Ul ‘lien [enowaly 4o sajoeteyd By} 9AIasald 0) SUOPU0I UKSIXG SZIWIXEW 0) SWie alreuads SunuwesFod yoeg

“pieog 1a31as 8y} pue Ayunwiwod ay) £ Suiwweldoid paiajald sy) pajesodioaul jey)
$3WaYIs uBISaP [en1dIIU0I Y)IM UMO] BY} papinoid Zn} 0IpN)S *YIRQPSa) ANUNWWOD pue sishleue s)is |etjiul uo paseg

:sopleuass Sunuwesdoiyg

JuswaBe3u3 Aunwiwed } xjpuaddy ul punoj aq ues sdoysiiom ay} Wy papioasl elep |y

*sdno.3 Jasn sjdiynw woly
duiuel3oid Jo SnsuasU0a Joj pamol|e swiope|d ajdiynw ssore ssaonsd Juewadedus Aunwwod a|qixa)) e Suljeary

*3INJINJ1S [[BH [eLOWBl
UI1sIX9 pue s[adsed oM} Y} 10} SOUBUSIS ASN-2ANINY WO 0} AHUNWWOD SUIPUNCINS 8U) Jo Spasu e welSold
3lj3 aulw.a)3p 0} A|ge Sem Zn] olpnis ‘FaAIns suljuo ue pue sdoysyiom Jo saas e ySnoiy} Indul Aunwwos Supay)ey

$$S330.4 Juawageduy Aunwwe

"Uley 1anog Y8 + 8 18 SulwwesFoid Joeduwt i 1eY) eale oleIpaww 3y U] sjuswdofaasp aimny
BuLapIsued pue ‘ease ayy ul Buiuoz pue Sulwweidoid Suiysixe Jnoqe YoIeasal SuNInpuod ‘sSummesp ueyd pue sdew
BIA BaiE FUIDUNDLINS PUE 3)IS 8y} 4O SUOIYIPUD Bunsixa JuluawINdop papnfoul SisA|eue siy| “Uole|PPIW JO UMO] By}
PUE ||_H |BLIOWAIN J0 JusuiuoliAug 8y} dSel3 1$9q 0} 1apIo ul SIsAleuE a)is e PaJINPUed Zn ApniS ‘APMS Siy} 110 Yoy of

sisfjeuy aus

|IeH |eLIowaly JO 8in)ny Y3 piemo]
$da)s 1xau sansind }1 Se UoJd|PPILN O UMO] By} Joj
aping e se FuInss 's|aaed om) ay) 10 SOLIBURIS
Bulwwesgord anyny e Yoo anisusyaidwos e
apiroid 01 si Apnjs 3uimojio} 9y} Jo |eos ayj

“Hodal sIy}
ur pazuewwns Fuiwwelgosd papusiwodal oy}
Bunesodioaur ‘sawayds ugisap |enydasucd pawoul
Juswagesus Anunwuwoed ay} Jo synsal ayj “ays
JueIRA 3( 0] UOOS By} SulwwelFoidal 10} SNSUASUOI
auiwielep 0] ssaaud Juawagedus Apunwwod
yidep-u ue sapinoxd Apns Sulwweldord siy)

“Indut Apunwwos Aq yuoj 19s
sjuswalinbas djewwesdord mau ay} poddns ued
12} suolyIppe Jo/pue sjuswsnoidw |einjoajyaie
Yum ‘Kuunwwod ayy o) syesse se asn |erjuajod Joj
199135 UlBly YInoS Ygp 1e Apadoud Jeas ay) se |jom
se ‘||eH [eLiowsay ‘iely yinog gy Sulwwesoidal
o} uoIsiA & sapnjour Apnis siy} jo adods ay|

MITAYIA0 34038

NOILINAOYLNI

0 8doag

M3IAIBA

—h
=
==
-
=)
o
=
o
e
=)
=




S193LIHOHY

Apnis Sulwwes3old j|eH [elIOWBA | YIN ‘U0Id|ppIN

‘puejiam pajaeloid e sainjes) jaoled ayj Jo
Jeal 8y "ogazesd Ayunwwiod e pue ‘pjay spods ynok
‘sjied) uyjem ‘puncisheld e yum adeds |euciyealonl
Aunwwod e S| Y8y ‘|1el Sunjjem pages) 0} adueluS
U} Se |[om SB ‘Y81 %3 8f 4oy Sunjied sainjesy a)is &y |
"3SN MaU 0} uado ainyona)s ay} 3uiaes| ‘Suiow ale
SRIIYQ UMO] 3Y] “,SBINQ UMO] 8y} Suisnoy Ajpusund
‘saljIAI}oe fedialunw SNOLIBA JO a)IS By} Udaq sey {|eH
[ELIOW3IA ‘0981 Ul |00YyIS aijua)ay} se Suiuado s} asulg

"fjlunwwo? uoja|ppIy 8y} 10} syasse
3SaU) JO alnjeu paajuad-A}unwiwog ay} adueyus pue
ulejuiew o} swie Apnys Suiwweldesdal sy ‘Apunwwos
8y} 0} aoueanyiugis Aep-juasaid pue |edl0lsIy 1y} 0}
ang sdnos3 Apunwiwod jo s3uel apim B SaAIAS pue
‘fHlunwwod 3y} o) 1asse |euoljealdal sjgenjea e s
[901ed juaodefpe sy "098T 9IUIS UOB|PPIN JO UMO]
3y} Jo auo)siauled |ediolunly pue |ein}dsyyale ue
U33(q Sey |[eH |e1oWa}y ‘umo} JO Jajuad ay} ul pajenyis

198.41S Ul UyInos 48y 3 81
Xajuog ays

013145401

2"yue3 2|8005 wouy AdSew [ende yum zn ojpnig Aq weidelp Alepunog UORIPPIW 4O UMOL

L -_ £ \
E:on_zq_mﬁw_..ﬁ

M3TAYIAO LX3LINOD

NOILINAOYLNI

(<
(=)
—
=
><
r—+
(@)

)
=3
=i
J
=)
-
=
O
—
=)
=

M3IAIGA




SNOILIONOD ONILSIX3 "2




SLIILIRIUY

2N
o1d
niLs

O3
e

juatudolenagsse ‘

Apmig Sulwweldold |[eH [elIOWR | YA ‘UOIB|PPIN

1S NIVIN H1NOS 48t

‘zn apnig Aq jeang :.ms_ INog ¥8y Jo 010ud aNS ‘UCIBIPPIW jo umal Aq aSew) |jeH [eLowa

o 1S NIVA HINOS 81
A TIVH TVIIOWIW

dYIW 1394vd

SNOILIANOJ INILSIX3

SERILE

X3

C

11S

-
0
o
=)
o}
—

]

SUol




S1924HAMY

Apnis Buiwwe.sold [|EH |elIOWS|A | YN ‘U0IRIPPIN

2] olpNIS AG WRIBRIP YIS *IS UIBW YINOS 81

(4S 0¥ 1€ |euoHIppY)
Juawasey pasiey ‘paysiuLun e

107 3unjied leay e

Zuip|ing swesq Jaquiy A0S 67 »
(££91 "d) |0042S 213ua) A|SNoIAalY »
SU011911}SaY apedeq JL0ISIH e

[|_H umoj Ajsnoinald e

S3IL4) UMOJ, [[BH |BHOWRJN e

(eale paysiul) 43 0829

13341S NIVIN HLNOS 8t

& "UOJIIPPIY 4O UMOL 3y Jo AS1N0d 3dew| “|leH [erowa

13341S NIVIN HLNOS 8%

SNOILIANOD INILSIX3

m
>,
7
—
s |
Q
e
o
-
ks
-
(=]
-
(70 ]




SLIILIKIYY &ul-.l?_
A )
1 2N m?v% wewdolonegssen i Apmys Suluwieloud |[eH |elOWS | YN ‘UOIBIPRIN

81IS U0 0gazed pue '|lesy Supjem ‘spjal) suods e

N
m
<,
%2
e
-

o
=,
o
s
e
=
o
pomn
%]

u013ealds) oy Apueurwopaid pasn e

SOV 7'9 ~
13341S NIVIN HLNOS 48t

13341S NIVIW HLNOS ¥8Y

SNOILIONOD 9NILSIX3




S191LIHIEY

&..Wm justudojonagssen ‘
S g

¢

= (Z02) wooy adualajuo)

Apnig Suiwwesdold ||eH |elioWwsy | YN ‘uciaippiinN

‘noysnosyy sapesddn swajshs pue Ayjiqissasae
sapesd3dn sainbai ey |euowsyy “ainjoniselul || pue 83eio)s 10}
pasn AJualing si ||eY |EUOWAY Je JUBWASEY paysIuun syj "usyayy
|lews & pue sadiyo |eucijippe Auedwaaze aienbs g9 pue [us||es Joo}
alenbs (g ue ‘J00j} pUeDS ALY LUQ “[AAS| UIBLLE BU} U0 SSBIFR JO Sueaw
OM] JO aUO si Yotym ‘Kemisyus ay) 1e dwel Aiesodws) e £q 8|gIssadoe
ApEW S| Jooj }5M1) 8Y] “wooljsal suo pue siafo) K1jua om} UM oog
1541} 3y} U0 SBAY0 JO SISISLOD 'fjBH [BUOWAY 10 JRANS UIRY YInoS 8

SNOILLYAY3ASEO0 13341S NIVIN HLNOS 8Y

LS NIVIN HLNOS 8%

SNOILIANOD INILSIX]

N
m
e
v
=
-

o
=,
o
=
o2
=
o
-
(2]




S1T3LIHDEY

Apmig Buiwe.gold |jeH [ROWSA | YIN ‘UCISIPRIN

0gazen

pret4 jeuonearasy

‘Rpadoud ay) punouns sasuapisal £|iwey-a)3uls Supngy ‘weais
B pue spue|jam pajoajoid yym apeld das)s e S| s Ay} jo Jeal ay} 1y
*J83115 UOUISA "IN Jo Aem Aq Jo ‘||ey [eLIoLIay 10 Jeal ay] u) Jo| Sumyped
3y} y3nosy) passaazae si [doled ay) ‘s3ulsayled Aunwuwod 1oy pasn
oqaze3 e pue ‘punoidfe|d e ‘s|iel) Sunjjem apnjdul soeds ay) jo sasn
|BUOIMPPY "PI214 ||BH [BLIOWA 1B S31)IA}IE AjUnuiwod pue spods yinok
SE YINS U0IJE3II3] 10} UMO} 3y} Aq pasn Ajjueuiwopaid pue| Jo sa1ae 7'9
fj@1ewixoadde S| yaiym 133135 UIB LINOS Y8Y SI JIEH [BUOWA J0 15E]

SNOILYAYASEO0 1334 1S NIVIA HLNOS 48y

punoidfeld + speil mc...s.m_‘s.

IS NIYIN HLNOS ¥87%

SNOILIANOD INILSIX3

N
m
=,
%)
—
o
UQ
%
Q
|
Q.
=
O
-
72




14}

S132LHIUY

Juswdolenagssew ‘

Apnis Bunwwe.3oud [|eH [elIOWI | YA ‘UOIBIPPIN

o

081

£zl

A9

207 01PMS £q Ueld YIS Suopuo) Busixa

"SU0IJII]SAI AUOZP0O]4 T |1e Ylm Ajdwiod
1MW pue .,s1eak g Xau ay} JaAo Suipooy) 4o
39UBY2 %57 & pUB FUIP00]) J0 39URYO [BNULE
%1 € 519191} Jey} Sutuesw ‘auezpoold 3y oy}
UIUHM 218 [a21ed SIY} JO SUDIO "PUB[IaM
pajaalald e s| 210y} ‘9)S 84} JO sl UL IY e

‘ONVILIWANDZA00T O

‘[01uo3 poay) spie pue ‘Jegey aji|p|im
sanlasald ‘ueayd Jsjem auy) daay sdjay uoasiold
Sy ‘pemo|je Jou s| Juaiwdojanap ‘1a1em ayj 4o
007 UM JeY) Bulueaw 4Ieqias JUOILIBALY
002 © 1313y} 'ay U01J98)04d SIoAY BU} Ylim
aouel|dwod u| "puod U03a|ppiy 03 Sulloauuod
"8Y Yy3noJy) sassed yo01g uold|ppI ‘oUs

U1 1e agueyd apets ay) 0} UOIJIPPE U]

‘N004d NOLTI0GIN (B)

“sieadde 31 ueyj Ja|jews

A)s ay} jo eale ajqedo(anap oy} sayew siy|

"3|qedojanap Aj1Ses ssa| a)Is ay} Jo syied ayeur
9JS 2] 0 tead oY) Je sadueyd oped desls e

N
m
2.
()
=
-

T
X,
o
)
Q.
=
o
-
(72

“FINVHO F0VH9 (@

STYIV ¢°9 YUY SSOY9
NV1d 31IS

LS NIVIN HLNOS ¥8% + 8%

SINIVYLSNOD 31IS




Sl

S1TILIRIYY

20

i,
ey

juswdoleragssen ‘

Apnig SBulwiwel301d ||eH |elJOW3A | YN ‘UDI3IPPIN

sogL

[

321440

|0l

g

EEE o)

scpl

[Eoi ]

ERIEEL]

ERIFEe}

331440
8H0OSs3SSY

.

J5592

SUYHLSIDIY

T1IvH

321440

18088

301440
SNYITD NMOL

AYLNA

Y,

13341S NIV HLNOS

=
@ &L 4 hd 0

*(9) Juswaseq sy} 03 K1jua J01IB)XS
pue (3) fBuwiys pasnhun  Auaung
Y] aJe 3jou JO S3IN]R3} JOII9IXS FW0S

'(4) Woossa)
9|qIssanae yqy Ajuo s3uip|ing ayy
pue sadlyo |euciippe ssinjes) ‘(9)
uclippe uadsi alow s3uip(ing ay]
"Juauiaseq pue I00J} puodlas ay} o}
Juipes| suejs sey yaym (g) Jako}
Wxa/Kua  Alepuodas oyl 0} spes)
Youum ‘(@) femiey ulew sFuipjing
ay] [0 JJO youesq SO |esnss

*J00}) pueaas ay} o} Suipes| Jie)s pue

Jafoy Aus ue o) spes) (y) aJuespud
‘9qISSOE  ‘UlBW SjBH [elowaly

S 0V1°¢ <(40074
aNNOY9) 391004 JYVNDS SSOYH

NV1d 340074 ANMOYD

1S NIVIN HINOS 8%

SNOILIANOD INILSIX3

N
m
>
%%
=
-

0Q
=,
o
-
=
=
o
s
o




9l

S193LIHTHY

Apmig Suiwwedold fleH |etows |y | YIN ‘UoIBIPRIN

15059
102
421440 SHOLVALSININGY NMOL

=

T

=
Ce

@

SorL

NIHD1D4

[ 1]

T

= 11—

5522

[sez]
301440 NIWQY
SUOLVALSININGY NMOL

Jssze

[soz ]
301340
SHOLVYLSININY NMOL
INVLSISSY

MvH

TIVH

ﬂ—:\

s008

Adanves

i

@E

1vH

301430
SINVYILIA

133418 NIYW HLINOS

—
@ 21 8 * o

*Buwweisord
911gnd Aue poddns jouued ‘sepesddn
Ailiqissaode Aue Jnauyim ‘Buip|ing sy}
ey} sueaw A)[1qissadde yqy Jo yoe|
SIUL “Io0)) pUodBS BU} 0} KyjIqIssadae
Yay Jo jae} ay} a1 anp 3|gissadie
10U §1 (3) woolisal 3unsixe ay) *(q)
9J30uaydy jlews e pue ‘ageso}s
Joj pasn ueujwopard si ey} (q)
f19||e8 adie| e 'ad1yj0 sJojensiuiwpy
UMO} 9y} se pasn 3uldq Apusund
SI ey} {4) woos 3IuaIRJUED B3IE| B
'saalyjo [jews aaly} ale alsy] "alje
paysiujun 3y} 0} SSaloe SUIBUOD
eyl ‘(y) oIngnsen JiEws e 0}
Suado 100Jj puodas S||eH |erowal

1S 0P1°€ * (40014
(N0D3S) 39V1004 34VNDS SSOYS

NV1d 400174 ANOJ3S

IS NIVIN HLNOS 8%

SNOILIANOD INILSIX3

N
rm
=
n
=
=
=
X
=)
=
o
=
=)
=
7]




SISATYNY LIS €




8l

S133LRIHY

juswdojenagssen ‘

Apn1g Bujwwel30oid [|eH |BIIOWSA | YN ‘U0I3|PPIN

‘2n7 oIpnys Aq sdew sjuawdofesa Aqieap pue asy) weiSoly Sunsixg
£UCIB|PPIW JO umol ay) Joj saiBojouyaa) |y Aq pasnpoud dew Suiuoz

*UOIB|PPIA 1O UMOL BU3 404 SUIUOISIA ||R4SA0 3U] UILYIM "AJIUB.LIND SISIXS JeYM JO dLqR) '19941S UIBY UINOS ¥8E Pue gt 10 Suiwweigoid
SH} UIYPM S)} 81IS By} JO 8SN aininy 8y} Joj BUIUOISIA 8Y) JIWIOUOID pue |B(dos a3y} ulyum sy Suiwweldoid Jey) 0S 24NN} USSOYD I0) SISN B|GBMOJ|E PUBRISIBPUN O} JBPIO UJ
12U} 24NSUD 0} PaJapISuod aie eale ay) u) siuswdojarop may  jueliodiul S1 NS no Jo eae oy} U swesSoud Sunsixe BuizAjeuy  SISA[EUE Sy} Ul PS4apiSU0D 8q 1SNW 8pod BUIUOZ S,U0l3|PPIA

SINIWAOTIAIA AGYYIN 1SN WYY490dd INILSIXT ININOZ

eale 3y} u sjuawdolansp aininy Jo JulisIxa yim sjoiyued jeyl uiwwedosd Juepunpal Suijessd oYM ‘Kpunwwod ay}
J0 $811S3p 8Y] YUM Juswugije ul ‘pooyloqysiau syl Jo Jlige) SULISIX8 SY} UIYIM 1 SuoisiA Sulwweldold ayy Jey) aInsud SuoljeIapIsuod asay| “Juiwwelsdold
puaWLL09al 0} Jopac Ul s|aa1ed om] ay] 3ulpunolins eale sy} Ul syuswwdojaaap Sulwoaul Agiesu pue ‘Buiwwesdold Juiisixe ‘Suluoz ay) pelapisuiod zn opnis

INIWANYHYDO0Hd AIWYOINI

SISATVYNY 31IS

jeuy aMiS ¢

-<
L
7




S193LIH28Y

61 m_wm wuswdoranagsse g Apmig SulwesSold [|eH [eLOWS | VIA ‘UaiRipaIN
ALS (6%
sUOIBIPPI J0 umol 3y} Joy saiBojouyaa) |y Aq paanpoud dew Surez ssINISNE a8 (d'S oo0'0%) IONIAISTH A - .
(S340V 2) IUNLINDINOVIVIINGAISSY v || (4's 000'02) IONIAISTY  BLY
(A RUISTRY] ) [emsnpUp o AHLSNAN! LHON W IVILNIAISTY IOVTIIA - &Y - s
(N BIOH = N} IB)oH o _—
(A) BO4J0 SSAUISNY = {N) 831jo ssauisng o 1
{A) JueInEsay o (N) Juenejsey a
(A) doys apes) o (N) doys opes) e
(A ery o (N |le13y o
(N) Bulfamp Awesniny - o (N) Bulljamp fjiweyny o "-"“'
(N} 3unamp Ajiwej-om) (wiad) Bujamp Al1wej-om}
0} ABWER)-3{BUIS JO UOISIOAUGY e 0} Alile-5|BUIS JO UOISIAAUOD o u
(N) quijiomp Allwej-om) o (Mwiag) Bulliomp Awep-om; o
(N) ui(jamp (A) Buifjamp e
payaeisp Allwel-3jduis o payaejop Allwey-a3us e —
1o141s1d4ans 9 13141S1089nS Y1y
SF1dNVYX3 3Isn

-l
L,
n

"3p02 3UIU0Z JuaLINJ 3y}
lapun 8}is yoea uo Fuiwweldoid psmojje
a[qissod moys sajdwexa asn mojaq ayj

"(e1Y) |enuapisay se pauoz sI ‘(ygy)
joosed Jeal sl seasaym ‘(g) ssaulsng se

pauoz sI (1S UlBl nog gy)jaated ayy
"asn Jou)sal ABW LDIYM ‘SYOLIISIPANS
Buiuoz syeledas omy ojur Jijds ale ays
siy} dn eyew 1eyy sjpased syl YW
‘UOJIPPIA - UIYMM  JILISIp  ssauisng
|BAJURD B Ul Pajenyis S| |leH |euowaly

dVIN ONINOZ

SISATVNY 31IS




S19321438Y

0z mqm yss%_%%mms_‘ Apnig Bulwwessold |[eH [eLOWRN | Y ‘UDIBIPPIN
niLs
‘zn) aipmsg Aq dew asyy wesSosg Suisix3
*J991}S UIB Yinos Jo oy

dnayew o1jewwesgold uilsixa ay) 0} ueAs|al
ulewal o} suoljepuawiuedal ojewwergold (e
Ul paiapisuod alam sasn Juipunoung “Apnis
siy} Joy Sulwweidosd ays 8|qissod uuou
$910UI.[pe 8S8Y ] "SAPIS |BIAADS UO $AIUBPISA)
Alwej-af3uis snge Ygy 3liym ‘yinos ay} o}
aJuapisal Ajlwe; 3j3uls ajeaud e pue ‘yuou
3y} 0] A18Jowa) wWeLlay duolsly 3y} singe
IRl ynos gy ‘ajdwexa o4 "sasn |euisnpul
pue ‘uoijeanpa ‘uoljealdas ‘sasn jedidunw
aidiynw ‘Sunwwelgord Aunwwos ‘adeianaq
%% POO0J SapN|aul eale S|y} ‘sasn |elIswwod
pue |enuapisal 0} uolippe uj ‘|feH |eLows
Sulpunouns sasn wesdosd Jjo unpw e
pamoys sisfleue no ‘(e1y) |enuapisay
pue (g) ssauisng Jo} pauoz Ajjueuiwopad
Si J93l}§ UIE|N yinog S,U0RIIPPIN  elluM

dVIN WYHO0dd DNILSIX3

=

TIANLY WU 5 R

INVTd INTW1VIUL H3LIYM SEIANVD

LR TTER Y | NONNNG 7 SONEENRANDR TTRgizn Jae - e

s TNV

ISN WYYO0Y¥d DNILSIXT

SISATVYNY 31IS

e
.
7

jeuy 34S €




$193L1H94Y

e

Apnig Sulwweldold {|el [elIOWSIN | YIN ‘UoIBIPRIN

*ZM OIPNIS Aq det sjuauwidesanag Aqrean

*€£202 U1 paje|dwiod sem Jey) 1o
puE GG S}NPE J0) SBWOYUMO} AINXN| G 0 pooyloqudiau
e S| juswdojaAdg UsAeHN|g U234 S,UOIBIPPIN

LNIWdOTIAIA NIAVH N8

nuswdofaasq 318153 [eay a8pLgaljiA Jo Asalnod asew|

*|IEH JBMOWS Je UOHI9sIalul
8yl 01 Jujes] Jed pue jooj 3uug |[1m juswdojarsp SIy}
‘goeds |eI0J3WUWIOD MaU 40 193} auenbs QOO'ST puE '[e10}
s}un |e1juapisal AIXIS punole Yl "SHUn |ejual a|qepiojje
spnpoul |im juawdorep gov pesodoud syl ‘19eaS
uiely yinog o} 3uisnoy Asuap sysiy suuq o3 sasiwoid
swdojaaag BuisnoH 88puUARIA BU} ‘}Ingun ey og

(ITTERTETTITL g .

LNIW40TIAZA ONISNOH 3DAIHEITHA

o1UOIBIPPIA JO UMD] BY) JO Asaunod slew|

AieiqI 21|gng Juil4 ay3 ul 1o ‘Buisod syl 03 Joud
luelnesay s,ea1|98uUY Ul Pjay Jom ey} SJUIAS se yons
'S3I}AI}0R 3AI309]|00 10} J3JUAY AJUNWIWIOS MBU puelq e
pue ‘uoljeaidal aAISSEd JO) UOWWOD UMO] B puB ‘uoilels
9114 pue 321j04 ‘Suldy Uo [12uUnoY) dUY] SE ||9Mm Se ‘sasnoy
AJUBLND ||BH [eLOWSA 1By} SUOIJ3UNY 8U3 apn|oul fjim
xa)dwod mau ay] ‘JjeH |euowdy SulwweiSoidas ui Jojoey
luepodw ue s ¥9|dwoy) |edidiunp Mmau S,U0R|PPIN

13JU8Y) ANUNWWO)  »  BuiBy uo pounv) e
leHumoy o Buipping A1BLes aijgnd e UOWILLOY UMOL o

XF1dWOD TVdIDINNN NOLITAAIN

9}S SIY] JO Y3NOS L0IIed0|
pa1epi|osuod auo o} sulrow s Sulwweldosd fedidiunw S,UMO} 3y} Jo Auew d|iym ‘||leH
|elIOWS Y puUnoJe eale ay) 0} paonpoJiul Sutaq ale |1eja. pue sjuswdoljaasp Suisnoy man

. WY N TINADY

X3NN0D W4IBINAN
NOLTIOOIN

SINIW4OTIAIA AQHVIN

SISATVNY 131IS

|[euy alS ¢

<
L.
7




-

INIWI9YINI ALINNININOI ¥




SLIZLIKIUY

Eaan_gwnmmmE‘ Apnis Sulwwel3oid ||BH |eUoWa | YA ‘u0la]ppin

*zn olpmg Aq ydeis jusuweBedua Hiunwwogy

Riqiseay |eioueuy

133)§4 10U Op S)|NSaJ pue ‘sjRIaueUly 40 LorjeIuasald sy} JNOYHIM PIJINPUCD SEM BSIIAKE
SIY} 18y} 930U 3S3|4 "3IUO UBYY I0W P3)OA ARY ABLY SIAGUIAW KNUNWHLOI 2J0J313Y}
pue sasuodsal Pamof[e 4o JaquInu Y} Jwij JoU PIP ASAINS BUNUG 3Y] JAWILLISIQ,

SJUBWWI0Y JamsUy UadQ PUB SUONISaNY UoISSNISIQ AJAUNS INITNO HINOW L
s)nsal [|n} Jo} Juswasedul Aunuwwog) 3| xipuaddy aag

LUAIOY J093YILY 8] 8g,, pue ‘suol}sanp uoissnasiq dnasg ‘uoljejuasald 1990014 *dOHSHHOM NOSHId-NI 80/40
“yodaJ sIy} ui 318y pazuewuns ase

Suosang oIssnasig dnog pue uoileluasald 19301d dOHSHYOM TYNLYIA LO/H0 $$3201d sIy} Jnoydnouy} palayies synsal ay) -a|qissod

se saJuaipne Auew se painyded ssaaoid juswagdesus

001 08 09 ov 0z 0 Aunwwos ayy eyl amnsua o} (doysylom uosiad-ul
f T _ _ T ue pue ‘doysyiom [enuIA e ‘faans snouolydukse ue)
Juawagesua Jo Swlo) JualsIp aaI1y} y3noly) siaquiaw

dOHSHYOM TYNLYIA AIUnWwwos woly ¥oeqpaa) pasayies wes) yelod ay)

"}9311S UIBI YIN0S ¥ PUB 8 JO 8SN 8INJNJ Y} IO UOISIA
paseys e dojaasp djay pue Auntuwiod ayy Lo spasu ayy
10 pueisiapun Joyaq e uled o} ssedooid Juawegesus
Aunwwod yjdap-ul ue jusmiapun weay j09foud ayy

dOHSHHOM NOSH3d-NI

SINYdIJILHYd

‘|ie 1s3uowe Aunwwod

10 9SU3S B ainunu yjoq 1snw sadeds |einjosiyale
suiynsal ay) pue ssad0id Jawagedus AYunwwod ay)
‘uoisnjaui pue ‘aansnl ‘Ausianip ‘AUnba Jo sjeos anaiyoe
“doysyIOM [BNUIA pue ‘doysyiop uosiad-u| ‘kaning surug 0} Japio u| "soe|d pue 3uIFuojaq jo ASUIS BAIJI3||0D

'SWNIpall 381y} ssoide ssadosd Juswasedu3 Apunwwog ay) ul pasesus sjuspisay U0RIPPIN ¥11 e Sugdwe ‘diysioumo Jo asuas B JA1SO} UJIym
siuedioneg JuawoeSesuz Aunwwos | $ededs Jo uoreald ay) smojle Juswedesus Aunuiuwo]

) # Jawagesus funwwon

AFAINS ININO

(SINVIQILYYd FTT) AJAYNS INITNO + 'dOHSHYOM NOSYId-NI 'dOHSHUOM TYNLYIA

ININIIVINT ALINNININOI

P
9
S
=
e
=
-
-<
m
=
op)
b
G
m
=
m
=
—




S132LIHINY

bz 2n1 uswidojenagssep ‘

Apnig Bulweidold |jeH [eLOWR | YN ‘U033 IPRIN

“SINsal Jejluls payas)al sdoysyIom ENMIA PUB Upsiad-U) WDi) SISUSSUOD aAGMOH "83U0 LIBLY B0L PajoA 3ABY ABW SIaqUIaW AJIUNUILI0S 810jajal) pue sasuodsal pamaj[e Jo J3quny 3 Ny jou pip A3Ains auljuo sy ] :sauleyas]
s p ysy i | Wiy w q ! ! ! ! 1813510«

“zn7 OlpRIS Aq ydeid uswadedua Aunwwon

08 0L

L 1

s}|nsas ||n} Jo} Juswadesu3 Ayunwwoy :| xipuaddy aag

09 06 114 0¢ 0¢ 0l 0

1 1 1 1 1

NOILYIHO3Y NN

43H10 m
VL w

™

G._
TYdIDINNIA m

39¥43A38/0004 c—.
INISNOH 318YQY044Y m—
ONINIAYYO0Yd ALINNWNOD NM = =

¢ INISSIN NOLTTAQIW ST IYHM

AJAYNS INITING JOHSHHOM NOSHIA NI JOHSHHOM TvNLYIA

"sasuodsal Jnoj do) ay) se agelarag + poo4 pue ‘Suisnoy ajgepoyy ‘SunuwesSold RAunwwo ‘voneasoay 3uisi suedioiued 1o Aiolew
9Y} YUM “uola|ppiy ul Buissiw Suiuweldod doj ay) Jo Snsuasuod o} paj Juawadesus Jo Sepow JUaJaIP da1y) Y} SS0Ie S)INsal Jualagesus Alunwwon

ZBUISSIN uola|ppIl SI 1eYM

(SINVAIQILYYd 7TT) AJAUNS INITNO + ‘dOHSHYOM NOSHId-NI ‘dOHSHEOM T¥NLYIA

INJNIIVINI ALINNNINOID

o
T
o
=
=
o
=
-
-<
m
=
T,
>
P,
m
=
m
=
—




S133LIKDUY

2Nn71 %  juslidojeragssel
sz old Mrﬂ% fensa s_‘ Apnig Sulwiwiel3old [jeH [eidoWdln | YIN ‘UOIBIPPIN
nis s
*S}|nsal Jejiuns pajas)yel sdoysyIom [BnpIA pue Losiad-U| Lidl) SNSUISUOS ‘USAIMOH "a0U0 UBL) 10Ul Pajoa anel Aew SIaquiB AIUNWIWOI a10jaay) pue sesucdsal Pamoe Jo Jaquinu au) Jiu) Jou pip AaAINS suTjuo Bl :JSWR|IsI],
“ZN7 OIPNIS 4 LdeJd juswaBedua A unwuiog s}|nsal ||n} Joj Juawadedu3 Ayunwwoy) 3| xipusddy asg

*213 ‘suapieg ‘pajqesia/Aliap|3 104 20edS UCESIdaY 3)qIsSaITY Yied 300 'UCIERI9Y 100DU) [SY HONS SHIAMSNY SIANTONI «3DVdS NIJO/NOILYIHOHY

08 0 09 05 Oy O 0z 0L 0

SWYYI04d SNIJATIHI /7 FUYIaTIHI N !
TYdISINOW m :

uoyafppI J0j usnoy ajgepioy
Buisnoy ajgepopy

A2131dwad )y [eLOWIBY umep Jea]

$301440 TYNOISS3404d N —
NMOG 11 ¥Y3L

funwwod sy} 10} Suiwweldoid
|eauioysy 1o ‘spe ‘|esnyng

TYUNLIND /IUOLSIH

ayjen Suuonuaiy Jo YBney}-nd
peas e Suipoddns Juiwwesdoly

NOILYIELIW 2144YHL 19VdS N340/
‘SIaMsUY Ul-23M Jejndag NOLY3IYI3Y .vm

JOvH3A38/0004 M—.
ININWYHD0Yd ALINNIWNGD M.v
ONNOYIAYd ﬂ@

¢343H 335 0L INYM NOA 00 LYHM

A3AYNS INIINOD dOHSMYOM NOSHIA"NI  dOHSHYOM TVNLAIA

"MOJ3q SISMSUR UI-aLIM,, SB PalsI] ‘ 1ayjo,, Jo A10331BD 3y} Ul SISMSUR |EUOIYIPPE UI-3)0IM SJUBpUOdSal awog “sasuodsal aai1y} doj sy} se uiwwelsdold
Ajunwwod pue ‘punoidAe]d ‘vonessday uijsi| sjuedioiped Jo Auolew 3yl YUM (1S UIBW YInoS ¥8p) [31ed Jeal s)i pue a)is (1S Ulely yinos gv) f1eH
|elowsyy 8y} uo Sutwweldoid 104 sysanbal doj 8y} Jo SNSUASU0J 0} pa| JuawaZesua Jo SAPOW JUBIAYIP 3IY) Ay} SS0IIE SYNsal Juawagesua AJunwwo?)

;j8lay aas 0] Juem nok op 1_YM

(SINYIOILYYd 7T1T) AJAYNS INITING + ‘dOHSHYOM NOSHId-NI 'dOHSHYOM TvNLYIA
SITNS3Y ALINNIWWOOD . ¢3¥3H 33S 0L LNVYM NOA 0Q LYHM.,

INFIW3IVINI ALINNWINOI

s
>,
Q
=
=
o
-
-
<
m
-
G
=
G
rm
=
m
=
—




S1I3LIRIUY

2071 uswdolersgsse,
% ®la . e Apn}S BulweiFold {2 [2LOWSI | YIN ‘UOIIRPIN
nLs
“synsal Jejius pajosfjel sGOLSHIOM |BNYIIA PUE UOSIBA-U WO} SNSUASUOD JBABMOH 300 UEY) a0l Pajon anel AR SJaquiatll JIUNWIWOD a10jIal} pUe sasuadsa) pamo||e Jo J3GLINU ay) JIWip 10U pIp A3AINS BU(UO Y] ewielasigy
‘2 o1pmyg 4q ydesd JuswaBesuas Aunwioy S)§nsas ||ny oy Juawadedu3 Ayunwwaos :| xipuaddy 8ag

001 08 09 114 02 0

1 1 1 1 1

TIV13Y NIYHD mh

sdoys ynpe ssanesuadsiq
Pao} 40 jlejas o
Fuisnoy gop-uoN
uorjealna; pajefndaiug
fopituod ano/uve J [
1IBH |BHOWRY UMOp Jed] o h
43H10

QYIS U puny Aue Jo Juswidojanap ay
ONISNOH -
INIW40T3A3Q ANY AMAVA-LEIN mm el
a)Is uo pupy Aue o Buisnoy oy E_mzma IG_ I .. -
INISNOH ANV o

¢343H 335 OL INVM LON NOA 00 IVHM

1S1amsuy ug-aiim tepndo,
Ve snted AJAYMNS INIINO JOHSYUOM NOSH3d-NI JOHSHHOM TYNLYIA

"MO[3q , SJamsue UI-a)lim,, Se pals| ‘ 1ayo,, Jo A038)eD ay) Ul SIBMSUR |BUOI}PPE. UI-3]0IM SJUBPUOASa) BWOS "$3)0A
jsow 3y} j03 , Zuisnoy Ajiwe4-ninpy Ausuaq y3iy,, J9AamoY ‘paiodjam aq pINOM Sad10y2 papiAoid 8y} 0 3UOU Jey) SNSUSSUCD & Sem 313y “SuiwwelSold
Uaym pioAe 0] JEUM pue)sIapun Ja)aq 0} ‘19311 UIB YInoS Y8y PUB g 1e Juem Janau pinom A3y} Jeym aas 0} syuediaiyed o) payse sem uoljsanb siy|

ZdJal aas 0} jJuem JoU nok op 1_YM

(SLNVAIDILYVd #TT) ATAYNS INITNO + ‘dOHSHUOM NOSHId-NI 'dOHSHYOM TYNLYIA
SITNSIY ALINNWINOD .¢3¥3H 33S 0L INYM LON NOA 00 L¥YHM.,

LNJINIIVINI ALINNNINOD

o
L,
o
=
=
o
=
—
-<
m
=
G
e
GJ
m
=
m
=
—




S191LIHOUY

2N71 Py uawdojanagss
“ ola Ner weddorreasseN g ApMiS BuIlWRIB01d |[BH [RLOWSIA | YIA ‘UIBIPPIN
Q19 S

“zn oipMiS Aqg sweaBetp yaeosdde ayug

%1l
(uoijea0; Jusnind ayj ui Suippng io Suipjing
oy} Suieootsl Aq sayi1a) apede) 210JSIY ay) jo *8ujwwesgoid
Jpjoeleyd oyl Bunasald ajiym ‘Uo1IINISUOI MaU Mau o} 28ej00) aienbs alow apiacid “aoeds ay} Jo asn-al pue Sujwwesdold
10} aoeds mojje 03 aunjonns Susixe ystjowsd 0} 1ul4diooy Buip|ing paseatou| mau poddns 0] uoijeAous [BLIIUII
NOLLYLdYAY JALLYIYI D NOISNVdX3 g ASN-34 TYINININ °VY

%LS

%l -2

-apedey duiisixe
Sy JO U0I30NJISU0I34 1o uoljeasasald swnsse sayoeoidde ||y ‘yoeosdde ayis 1594 Ay} SUIUILLISISP USYM UOIIBIBPISUOD 0JUI UYe]} aq PInoys asnal
[ewiuiw Yum pealerdosse sspesddn padinbai ay] "aainigiyosd 1503 aq Aew ays siyy je sapesddn A}1)1qIsseade pue swalsks palinbai sy} 'YSASMOH
‘yoeoidde siyy 4o} pajoa sjuedioiped JuswageSus A1UNWWOI Jo jjey ueyy aJopy "Sulwwessold mau s31 ojul Sulp|ing syl Suiig 0} UCITBAOUSI J[QISIA
feLUIUIW YPM ‘198J3S UIRIA UINOS 8 18 paAlasald 2q 01 2in1on.is Builsixe ayl Jajaid pinom ALlunwiwiod sy} Jey) ajesipul Apnis siu} Jo s3uipuly sy |

£913y aas 0} 3y1] noA pjnom yaeoidde ays Jeym

oo 0 o ot e S U (SINYdIOILYYd ¥IT) ATAYNS INIINO + ‘dOHSHYOM NOSHIA-NI ‘dOHSHHIOM TYNLYUIA
N e SLINSIY ALINAWWOD . i3¥IH 335 0L INIT NOA GTNOM HOYOUdY ILIS LYHM.

aseald ABAINS BUIUO SNOUOIYIUASE LE pue Sdoysyiom

om) ssosoe ssevoid Fuiuoisip JuawadeSuz ANunwWwo) l—l z m E u w < w z u > |—l Z : E E
no ul pedeSus sieqWBW AIUNWWOD UOWRIPPIN PTT

o
T
-
=
=
=
—
~<
m
=
T,
b
P,
m
=
m
=
—]




S103LIHIUY

i wewdopragssen Apmis BulwesFold |[eH [eLOWS( | YIN ‘UCIBIPPIN

*uIp|ing ay3 jo uoiypuod ay} 03 anp Suiwwesdosd jewiuiw poddns Ajuo ueds pue aalyqiyosd 3500 3q Aew } ‘Ayunwwiod ay} yum Jejndod Jsow sem uoljdo
LOSN-9Y |ewruipy, ay} ysnoyl -Suiwwesdosd 3)S |BUCIJIPPE PUB MOJ} dHjel) J8)3Q 10} MO 0} ‘98NS UD ‘panoW 8¢ |[IM ||eH |eLowsly 1ey}
awnsse sayoeoidde ays awoS 'Suipjing a3y} Jo 9zIS pue UOIJPUED 3Y) 0} anp SMOjfe A[Juaund fley (euowsly uey) Sujwwelsoid siow uoddns
0] paudisep aiem soleusds yoeosdde aus asay| -sanjeA Ajunwiwed uole|ppiy yum Suidesy ul ‘epedej |leH |eHOWSY 8Y} JO UOINIISU0IAI
10 uonenasaid 8y} sawnsse yoeoidde 3)s papuswiwoddr yael ‘Suipling ey |evowsy Sunsixa ay} Joj yoeoidde 3y} punoie 1Si) PaISPISUOI
SEM NG ‘UOKOBUUOD pPaNUIUO) B FuIWINSSE ‘Iayjoue BUO YUM uoijdunfuod ul paujwislap sem sjsaied om} a3y} Joj yoeoidde asus ay)

*slaquiaw AHUNWwWod Ag pajsanbas se ‘as ay} Y3noiL) uoijeao(dl peos ainyny 10}
A)1ge 8y} anIg Aely -preog yosjes Aq papoddng + Ajunwwoy auy woly asuedssy g#

NOILYLdYQY JAILYIHI

.:o_s_cwsmss_mcmwmmam;msmsgsnm_zm::u::m:comm
*Buip|ing ay Jo uoi)ipuoa ay) o} anp Sulwwelsord [ewuiw poddns fjuo pue
am1IqIyold 3509 9q e AS-aY JEWIUI J3ASMOH *ANUNWIWOY 3U} Wolj asuodsay T# a

NOLLINYLSNOIIY s
/3SN-JY TYWININ S 2104

13311 Ulely yinos Y8 + 8

*suol}epuaLwodsal yoeosdde 8)1s Jo 1S SuImoj|0) 3y} aulwa)ep padjay Uol3|PpI JO UMO| By} pue pleog 198|eS ay) wolj
YIeqpas) YUm uonaunfued ui ‘ssaaoid juswasdesua Auuniwwod sy} wel) synsal suiwwelgold pue ‘Sunwwelsold pauue)d pue Suilsixa ‘a)Is ay} jo sishjeue uy

oyt 1 a1 suros o e ST P (SLNYIOIL¥Yd ¥11) AIAYNS INITNO + 'dOHSHYOM NOSYId-NI ‘dOHSHYOM TYNLYIA
P oLl PRANPUCD Sk SSDIEE S UL Blou SNOILYANIWIW0DIY HOVOYuddY LIS

ases|d “AoMuNS Juljua SNouoIYdUASE Ue pue sdoysiyiom

om} ssosoe ss8004d BuiuolsiA juswaBedu3 Kjunwwon —l— < m & & < u |—- —
ino ul pededus ssequiewl APUNWWOD UORIPPIN TIT

O
=
=
0Q
-
0
=
M.
=
Q
+
=

suiuue




"YNINNY1d + INININYYI0YUd °S




S1334iKDHY

o¢ 2n 1 Apnig Bulwwes30id ||BH |BlJOWIN | YA ‘U0IdIPPIN

"Sp|al} |euoI}RaI3] By} SUISN 3SOY)} J0/pue SuapIsal Joj Sulwwelsold [eunwiwod 1ajuad AJUnLIWoI-uou a}ea|pul 0 Sulwwelsold
pooy10qu3Iap se palsl| usaq sey Suiwweldold Apunwwos ‘Suiwweldold papuswwiodal sy} uj papnjoul Jou S| ai0jaiay} pue ‘ying aq o} pauueyd Apeasje s|
U0 MBU B ‘U0l8|pPI 1o sjuapisal ay} Aq pajsenbal Ajysiy sem Suiwwesgold sty ysnoy) xejdwos ediaiunyy uols|ppi auy Joj pauueld Jajusy Ajunwiwio)
M3U BY) SB Yans ‘paiapisuod alem sjuawidojaasp pauueld ‘Kjjeuoiyippy 198135 UIB YINOS Y8 1€ SISIxa Jeym anlasald o) AJSSaoau sy} Sulwiojul alojalay}
‘flineay pasn pue umo} ayj ul pajiwi| 1 adeds |euoijealdsy oqazed pue ‘punoidfed ‘pjaiy 18200 ay} Suipnjaul ‘uowwo? umo] pagel) KIuay Jo sudwWaYd
10 uolleAIasald Se [jom Se ‘U03|PPI 10 umo] 3y} o} Juedodwi SI jjey |euowaly o Jajoeieyd By} Suinasald Aunwuod ay) Aq pajsenbal se ‘(punoihed
pue ‘ogazed ‘pjay |euciesidsl Ay} Se yans) aps ay} uo Juiwwerdold Fuysixe awos Juawa|dwod pue snssald 0) swie ulwweidold papuswIwIods 8y)

umo] wouy poddng + pieogloa|as Aq pajsanbay
INISNOH 319vad044v

ININWYY90Yd E::EES wolj mwcog_ws..__ e#
QOOHYOGHIIIN € ININ d ALIN

pieogiae|ag Aq papoddng + Ajunwwos) wouy asuodsay z#
ONNOYIAYId

pieogios|as Aq papoddng + Ajunwwoy woij asuodsay [#
NOILYI¥I3Y

19948 UIBN LanoS Y81 + 8

"suoljepuawiwodas Sulwwelord Jo 19s Suimo|jo) sy} sujuLIalap pad|ay uoja|ppIy JO UMO] BU} pue pieog 193]8S 8L} woi)
yoeqpas) YUm uorouniued ul ‘ssagold Juswagedus ANunwwod ayy wolj synsal sulwwelgold pue ‘Fuiwweldosd pauueld pue uiisixa ‘ayis ay} Jo sishjeue uy

SNOILYANFWNOO3Y WYYDO0dd

ININNVYYI0dd

o
5
J
Q
0Q
j
o)
=
MI
-
0Q
==
.

suiuue




S193LHIRY

A%

g g sseN
le m—_,.m ﬁwn%m RdorReRa ‘ Apnig Suliwesdold ||eH [eLioWS | I ‘U0¥BIPPIN
niLs .

2N 0priS Aq sweuBeip weidoid uoljesIday

"yue3 e(Boog Wos) (WOLLOE) 1eH3E PRI V1S Aq oloud (JOL) Pal puncie [res

SQYVA 8 X 88

s TIn-1INn

ONLSIX3

Q7314 S1¥0dS HINOA

‘pansind si y3noiy3-1nd peo. B SSajUN UIBWISL [{IM YdIym ‘|led]
[ellowB|A Hages] 0} aduesjus 8yl S UIB YIN0S QY 18 8}IS UQ ‘Ulewal p|noys
pue ‘ayis sy} Jo ped juepodwi ue ase aoeds |euoijesloal sAlssed pue s|ies
3uiyjem Bunsixs ay) ‘A|jeuoilippy "olieusds Sujwwelgosd Aue ul panasaid aq
PINoys }I pue ‘suoissas juswadesuy AJUNWWOY Ul SJUSPISSY UOIR|PPIW 40}
A11014d doy e sem plal) BullSIxa a3 JO UOIIRAIDSDI *UOIIEaIdR) onIssed Se |[am se
sHods UnoA Joj pesn Ajjuauind s| 19a41S UIB UINOS Y8]Y 1. piall Suiisixe ay|

NOLLY3dI3Y °

SA1V0T0dAL ALINNWINGD + TYNOILYI¥O3Y

NMOdYVv3Iyg NVYI0dd

M3N + ONILSIX3
SH1Vd INDITYM

o
o
-
Q
oQ
-
Q
=
=4
-
0Q
=+
O

suluue




[YEEHEL

P 3

¢ mq_ﬂm wrp% pedomeassEn gy Apmg Bulwwel3old ||eH [LOWSIN | VI ‘UoIBIPPIN
nis
ST GIPQIS 3 S BEIR e e puneia el “yue3 9j8oo Woly (WOLLOA) [Bliae Pl *y1S 4q ojayd (4Q1) puncidded Bunsixy
455X 6L
{dvIwIS ¥o) DNILSIG
aNNOY9AVd

"pajuawane,/panoidwl Jo pansasald aq punoi3ke|d sy} 1ey} papuawiwoass si )|
‘yoeqpas) SIY) YUM “plal Juadelpe ay) uo sjuana guspods Sunp sejndod Aejnaiped si
}| "eale 3y} Ul spunosdhe|d auoj sy} Jo auo pue ‘AMunuiwioed ay} 0} Jasse ue se pajou usaq
sey punoidfe|d 3uiisixe ay) 1S Ul UINOS Y8 PUE 8F 1B 98S 0} 8Y1| pjnom Aau) Jeym
payse uaym Apunwwod 8y} Aq wei3osd pajoa Jsow puoass ay} sem aseds puncidheld

&
A,
—
o
0Q
J
ja¥)
—
Ml
-
rQ
=
-

suluue

S3I90T0dAL ALINNWWNOD + TYNOILYIYOIY

NMOGXVv3idd Wvy3d0dd




S193LIHOUY

Bl

INISROH M3N 01 4313INNOD
456297~

33vdS GQOOHYOSHOAN OO ANNOYI

CTAMTNOSLINN ¥ OLdN

TIVH WidOoW3IN

$20YH9dN SWALSAS
+ ALMAISSIIIV HLIM
456297~
30YdS OOHYOEHIIIN 13431 ANROYD
¢ TBAITNO SLINN ¥ 014N
TIVH VIHOWAW

S3AVYOdN SWALSAS

+ MMIFISSIOV HLUM

1S 6pT'e~

ININWYHOOYd Yy "33

40 GOOHYOSHOIIIN 40 STIAIT €
TIVH TVIHOW3N

INILSI
083Zv9 L439VUL AUNIH

NOILONYLSNOD3Y TIVH TYIHOWIN
$319070dAL GOOHYOGHIIIN TIVH TVIRIOWINW

Apnyg Bulwwe.3o4d ||BH |BLOWR | YN ‘UDIB|PPIN

‘Fulwwesdoid
[eunwwiod Jo} panasald aq ||Im ogazey) pagel]
fiuay 8y} ‘|ley [euoWSJy Juaund ay} 1e palsyo
guiwwergosd pooyloqysiay ayl 0} uolyppe uj

"Juawdo|anap |e1juapIsal paysene ue
10} Sunwwesdold [eipuapiSsl 911991109 J0 U187
82In0Sa) UMO) & ‘sdeds Supjiom aAijeloge}|od
pooyloqysteu e ‘48juad ue pooysogysieu e
‘pl2l sHods 3y} Jo IS Ul SWO0 19YI0|
pue asnoy pjay e :apnjoul Aew  Julwwesdolyd
pooysoqusian, Sy} Jo  sajdwexa awog

‘J93NS Ul yInoS Y8y pue
9y 18 aoeds [euoljesldal ay} Suisn asoy) se |jam

se ‘quawdojansp 3uISnoy mau Jo SuspIsal ay}
Wauag f|im eyl Suiwweldosd pooyloqysiap,,
|eunwwos puawwodas sm ‘x3|dwoq [ediounpy
U0)3|PPIiN Mau Ay} Je Jajuag Alunwwo? ulwodul
8y} 0} ang *, weidold AHunwwios, sem sisqluaw
funwwoes £q wetgoid Joj-pajon Jsow paiyl ay}
‘ssanoid Juawageguy Arunwwony 3y} Suung

ININWYYI0Hd
(00HYO0GHIIIN

S319010dAL ONIWNWYYD0dd AOOHYOGHDIIN

NMOAXV3Idd WvYYI0dd

o
d
J
=
0Q
-
X
=
S,

|d + du

suluue




SI93LIHTUY

ve mﬁ_m Hswdolansassen i Apmis BurweiSold jleH [eLOWal | YN ‘UolRIPPIN
nis c-—
.le._ oipms Aq sweiSelp s3180(0dk) Buisnoy o .
IN0IS3H /00O vowmus () woowsse () woowmz | Woowszar | O
j
‘pooyioqysiau 3uIpunosIns sy} o3 1asojd Alsusp pue 0
1310e1RY9 B BUlIs)o ‘Kjus umo SH ypm 3as) alenbs Qo1 Ajaiewixoidde SWO0Y038-334HL 3
30 PINOM JYUN WI00Ia] 891y} 0BT *| £} SBLIO}S 321y} Je 483 'SasnoyuMo} S3500HNMOL NODUTHA & -
woolpaq ¢ o pasiidwod si uondo 3uisnoy ‘tejnpow 1K ‘Asuap-moj sy e
"SHUN Wo0IPaq 981y} pazis-Ajiwey Jo SLN _\sgmﬂwﬂw m_ﬂ M .
pasudwos ‘syun Z1 0) dn sapnjoul uofydo 3uisnoy Aysusp-winipaw siy| %9078 0ONOD ATIAVA-ILINIA u
oQ
"80eds [eunwwoo SLINN WODUGIE-OML (21) +
JUBPpISal 100} PUN0IS Y)Im Sjuswpede WooIPag oM} PUe auo Jo XIW e Jo SLINT WOOYA3E-3ND (9)
pasuduiod ‘spun g o} dn sapnjour uondo 3uisnoy AySUap-wnipau sty HODTa LKEIY TSI H

"S3UI|[aMp A}ISUBP JOMO] 10 SBUSIM SAPUNWILIOD BUY) Y)IM BUIJ UL ‘3IS SIL] UO SAI)ISUSp pue SULI0J JUBIRINP
aye) pnod sjun 3uisnoy 9|qepioyse sy} yoIym ui skem ale sajFojedAy Suimoyios ay| -poddns Apunwwiod pauled yoym INISNOH .q
‘Bulwweloud 1y} ul )SaI9)Ul JBINJIPRG PamMOYS Pieog 103}ag ] “uol3|PPIN 40 UM} 3y} o} paau e S| Fuisnoy ajqeployy 118vay044v

o
=
=
=
rQ

S319070dAL ONISNOH

NMOAXY3IHE NYYI0Ud




S¢

S1931IKIEY

juswidojenagssein ‘

Apnig Buiwiiel3old f|eH |el4OWIIA | YN ‘UolBfpRIN

12201313 Ue AG pajen|eAs aq pInoys pue paumwiaap aq o} Jak st y2noiy) Ind suej-z e Jo )|

*19911G UOUIBA ‘I wol) Ss333e Fulsixa ayy 3uszi|ian ‘Y|y ojuo pooyloqudiau Jusdelpe

alj} Suipuajxa ‘Suiyied pajaeuu0d pue sHUN B|qepIoge Ajsuap-mo| 9 0} dn ypm padofansp aq pinom Y8y J0 Jaused
1seayjnos ay) “punoidfeld pue spjalj ayy Suluas J0] YOBY € pue o] ||eH [eLoWaly j[ews e uaamjaq dn Jjds aq pjnom
Bunped “SujwwesSeid pooyloqydiau Jsyle 1o pjay suods Yoy ay] 1oy asnay plaij mau e Loddns pue ‘gl [aaled o Juo)
U} 0} PajeJofal 8q pnom |[eH [eLowaly “siaquisw Apunwiwed Aq pejsanbas se ‘YInoy)-Ind peos 79 S1noy suel-¢ e Joj
«+[13U9300 3y} 3jepowwoaTe 0} SaBUEYI eInjonliselul [eus)od Joj Bujuueld ‘)s ay) suoISIAuI-al A|213]dwod 7 dwaydg

IN3Nd013A30A3Y 29 LN0Y - ¥ Olleudds

"a)is ue punci3Aeqd ay) 3uijesojal pue ‘aqazesd pue piaiy ay}

FuInasald “3WaYds SIY) U1 UGIIUBAISIUI [BWIUIW SRY Y¥gp “|[39.ed 8f aU} JO I3 3U} U0 }{Ing 8] 0) SHUN Juswede |ejuas
3|qeploye 91 03 dn 1oj Buimoyje ‘dn pauado s s ay) Jo teal ay} Juidioo) 1o) Suiyied sy Suln3iucsay “Buiwwelsdord
pooyioqy3iau Joj aaeds ajeala o} Bulpjing ay) SulanIysu0IB! ‘||BH |EUOWS JO Juiidiooy BUl)SIXe By} SUB)8) € WIYIS

TIVH TVIH0WIIN INIININYHI0d43Y + INILINYLSNOIIY - € oleuads

“ajs uo punosdie)d ay) Suneaojal

pue ‘0gazes pue pJal) 8y} Sulniasald ‘awayds 1Y} Ul UBKUBAIBLUI [BUUIW Sey ¥gt "Fulwweldold peoyiequdisu
3INJE3) PINOM |jEH [E1I0WS}N JO J0o|) pUN0I3 8y) “}|as)l jIBH |10Waly LIYIm SHUN ¢ o} dn pue ‘BInjonns ay) pulyaq
SALOYUMD] 3|GBPI0JJ ANSUSP-mo] g 0] dn o) Buimoj|e ‘|adsed au3 Jo Juol) 2y} 0] |{eH [BLIOWAJ SA1BD8[8) Z BWAYIS

HIV0ddd¥ ALISNIQ-MO1 - € OLIBU3IS

*a)is uo punoi3e|d ayy 3uijeao|a pue ‘ogazed pue pjay ay; Suinasaid

‘aWayas 1Y) Ul UOIFUIAITIUL |BWIILIW SBY YR ‘100) PUDIAS Y} UO SHUR |BJUBI B|geploye 7 0} dn yjim ‘100j) punoid

3y} uo ujwwesdold pooyloqySiau Juapisal apiaod mou pInOM YaIYM jeH [BLIOWS HINgal & 0} 3Ur}d3Uu0d ‘Ieal 8y} Ul
SHUN WOO0LPaq-33Iy} |eIU3) 3|qepIoye ZT 01 dn Jo UOILPPR 94} YRm SUIp|INg [|eH |BUOWSIY JINGa & SAWNSSE T Alayag

NOILIQQY + NOILYLAYQY JAILYIYD - | Olleusds

|

‘apedey ||ey |eLowaw L0¥sIy
3y} JO U0N}ONASU0IR) JO uoljeAIasald sawnsse Ul
pauijino sayseoidde sy} jo yoej ‘Julwwelsold
mau ay} uoddns o) pannbas sapes3dn swa)sAs
pue Ayjiqissadae Aoy aiinbal osje [|im OLBUBDS
sulwweisosd yae3 -oueusds gulwweldord yoes
J0 suonjedl|dwi jeijeds sy} sjenjeas 0} padojansp
sem Sawayas uejd Jo 19S |9ng| djewaYyds-ald y

"fpadosd 8y} Joj spoja Suluueld ainjny
Aue apin3 djay o3 saryjiqissod Judlapp sy} ssalppe
0] wie soueuads Sulwwesgold asay) “padojasp
sem soueudds FulwwelFoid Jo 18s & ‘Suisnoy
9g|qepioye pue ‘Suiwwesdosd  pooyloqysiau
‘punci3fe|d ‘uoijeassal Jo 19a1S UIBY Ynos Y8y
pue gy Jo} weisgosd papuswwodal ay} uo paseg

INISNOH T19YQY044Y a _

ONIWINYHO0Ud INIISTH/Q00HUOGHSTIN e

133Y41S NIVIN HLNOS ¥8Y% + 8¢

SOI4VN3IIS ININNVYIONUd

ke
d
=
=
Q
-
o
=
=1
-
rQ
+
i

guiuue




SIWIHIS LIS + ININOISIA 9




SI03LHIY

L 2N wswdojanagssei i

‘zn olpnys Aq wesdelq 1 swayos

QNNOYDAYTd ONILSIXT IAYISTYd -

STIVHL ONTATYM -
(114 S1H0dS -
30VdS TYNGILYIYIIY ONILSIXT FAYISIYd -
083749 ONIESIX3 JA¥ISIU -
INIWG13AI0 140ddNS 0L J11dIS MIN -
30544 TIVH WIMOWIW 0 YILOVYYHD NIVINIYA -

Ql4VEL AM-0ML
404 MOTTY OL TTVH TYIYOWIW 31¥D07134 B HSIOW3A -

TIYH YIYOWIW 10 NOLLYLAYQY JAILYIHD

SINIWIACYUAWI 3LIS

S30VdS INMYVd vy

STIVIL INDITYM -

SA1314 SLY0dS -
CUHVERRYE]

0832y9 -
30¥dS ALINNWWOD INIQISTY 4007 ONNOYD -
(1334 DS 009'1~)
TIVH TYISOWI NI SLINA TYLNIY T19vay044y WWNOILIGQY () OLdN -
SINIWLHVIY NOONAIS-I3YHL (1) 0140 -
(1334 DS 000°8T~)

ININWYYI0Yd

NOILYLdvaY 3A1Lv3H) (£

"8)IS-U0 $98J} 9y} JO %G8
15e3| Je saalasald awayos siy) "ays ue punoiFheld ayy Suneaojal pue ‘ogazed pue play ay} Suinasald ‘awayas
S1Y1 U UOIJUSAIBIUL [BUILUIW SBY Y "J00J} PUODAS 8Y) U0 S}UN Jejual 8jqeplojje ¢ 0} dn Ym 00|} punosd ay) uo
sulwwessosd pooyioqyF1au Juspisas apiA0Id MoU PINOM UIIYM ||BH |BLIOWSR YINGSI B 0] FUIJIBUU0T L1831 By U SHUN
W001Pag-aallf} [BJUDI 8|qepIoye 2T 01 dN JO LOIHPPE 84} UHM Buip(ing ||eH jeLiowaly HINGal B SaWNSSe T aWaydg

20 13AT1 SLNN TYANIH TTEVONOISY T
3904S ALINTWWOT T3A3T GNNOYD

SLIND TYINTY TIBVAUOIAY 5T 0140
ONDBIYYY 13437 ONNOYD

530VdS DNINVd £

~,

ININWYY30Yd

| OI4VN3IS INININVYIO0NHd



S193L{HINY

P

. m ﬁ_d m ¢ .Mu\m juswidojaragsseiN ’-
nLs

zn7 o1pn)g Aq wesSelq Z awayag

UNNOYDAYTTd ONILSIXT IAHISIUd -

STIVHL ONINTYM -
Q7314 SLY0dS -
J0VdS TYNOILYIYOTY ONLLSIX3 JAYISIUd -
0432v9 ONILSIX3 IAYISIN -
INIWACTIAIQ LHO4dNS OL D1LdIS MIN -
30594 TIVH TYIMOWIW 40 ¥ILIVHYHO NIVANIVA -

J144viL AVM-OML
404 MOTTY 0L TIVH TYIHOWIW 31¥J073Y 3 HSIOW3A -

TIYH TWIHOW3W 40 NOLYLYQY JALYIYD

SINIWIA04dII ILIS

$30VdS ONIMYYd b

SvYL ONTYM -

SA13H SLA0dS -
NOILY3u93y

043zYy9 -
3¥dS ALINNWIWOD IN3QIS3Y Y00 ANNOYD -
(1334 °0S 009°'T~) INIWWYHI0Ud INIQISTY/TODHYDEHIIIN
TIVH TVIHOWIW NI SLINN TWINTY T18YQ¥044Y WNOILIAaY (v} 01 dN -
SIWOHNMOL WOOHQ3E-I3¥HL (3) 0L dN -
(1334 'S 000'1~)

ININWYYI0Ud

NOILYLdYaY 3A1LY34) (§F)

"3}IS-U0 $331) 3y} J0 %G8 1sea] e saniasald aliayas s1y) ays uo punaidfe)d ayy Suneaoyal
pue ‘eqaze3 pue pjal) Y} Suinasald ‘BWayas sy} Ul UoljusAIBYUl [ewjUIW Sey ¥gy “BuiwwelSoid pootioqySiau

8IN]23] P|ROM [|BH |BIIOWS} 10 J00)) PURCIS Y[ "J|3SH |[eH [BUOWAY LIYM SN § 0) AR U ‘31njoniis ay} puiyaq

Y

SOUIOY O] 9|qepaoyLe Asuap-mo] g 0] dn 1oy Suimoj|e ‘|adled ay) J0 Juoij Ay 0] |{BH [RLOWAYY S31EI0JAI 7 BWBYIS

QIAOVIZH NOLKaaY
4 £071IATT SURA TYINY TTEVAUAIY Z 0L 4

30V4S ALINTWINOD T3ATT ONACHD

INIWWYYI0Ud

S3SNOH NMOL TNEVAHOSIY ALISHITMOT 8 02 4t

ONINYYY TIATY GRACHD

534S ONINNYY LE

¢ OI4VN3IIJS INININVYYIO0Ud



S1331i804Y y !‘3@.
6e 2071 "m‘r.ﬁa ucman_mEn_mmms_e

cla PO
nLs i
‘zn] o1pnis Aq wesBeiq € awa == -
pilloa i Unaiic — NOILINYLSNOIIY
+ 3SN-34 TYWINIW
ONNOYDAYTd DNILSIX IAYISTUd - _ INTTIST Ewozc___\*,_m__\__cqu_m..w_un
_ "8)1s-U0 S3a1) 8y} J0 %08 15ed] !
STIVAL ONDITYM - Je saniasaid awayas siy) “ayis uo punas3Aeld ayy Buesofl pue ‘oqazed pue piai ay) Suiaiasald ‘awsyas sy Ul
1314 514048 - uoUaMa)ul [eWIUIW SeY YR} “j30Jed g By 40 Jeal sy} up J|ing aq 0} SR Juatpede jejual ajqeploye 97 o) dn
304dS TYNOLY343H INILSIXI IANISTHd - Joy uimol|e ‘dn pauado 1 alis ay) Jo Jea) auy ‘Juudiooy jo| Junyied ayy Bundiuossy “Buiwuweloid pooysogySisu ] ﬁ_.
10} 99eds 9]88J0 0} BuIp|INg 3y} BuRaniSuLIal |jey [e1IoWa 10 JuLd)00) SUIISIXG By SUIBIAI £ BWAYD
OIS ST } 1 } SUIp|Ing 8y} sunan.y {BH [eLIowWa} J0 Julidjoo) Sufjsixs ay) sulela) ¢ swdBYdg ONINWYY04d

INIWAOTIAIE L¥0dNS OL DILA3S MIN - -

30y5v4 TIVH TYRIOW3IW 40 ¥3LIVEVHD NIVINIYW -
107 INIMYY 40 NOLIYINFIN0-3 -

TIYH TYINOWIW 40 NOLLYLAVOY IALLYIH) e S -

SINIWIAOHAII 3LIS e .

R e
S30VdS INIMYUYd 6€

STIVYL ONIMTYM -

SAT314 S1¥0dS -
NOILY3¥I3Y

 SLINN TWLNZY TI0VQ¥013Y 95 OLa

043zv9 -
30VdS ALINNIWINOD INJQIS3Y TTVH TYIHOWIW DNILSIA -

{1334 "0 000'9~) 9HIMAYII04d THICISI/000R0THA1N
SINTWLYYAY NOOYQISE-OML (9T) 0L dn -
(1334 05 000°61~) : r \

ININWYHI0Ud p P

€ OI4VYN3IS INININVYIO0Yd



$19aLHIUY

zn7| o1pnys Ag weuBel ¢ aweyog

juswdolenagssen é

0837vO ONILSIXT AYISIUd -

ANNOYIAYTd FADW -

STIVHL ININTYM -

Q1314 SLY04S -

30V4S TYNOILYIYIFY ONILSIXT IAYISTHd -

INJNOTIAIA LH0ddNS OL J1Ld3S MAN -

30y3¥4 TIVH WRIOWIW 40 ¥ILIVYYHD NIYINIYI -

AYMIAIYA + (€} SLOT ONINYYA MIN -

TIVH TVIYOWIRK 40 NOLLYLAYQY JAILYIYD

SINIWIAOUNI LIS

S30V4S ON

STIVYL INDITYM -
NOEERI L[N

IMdYd 02

LUIIVERHEH]

0832v0 -

ONIWWYYD0Yd 140ddNS

NOILYIYI3Y /30VdS ALINNINNOD INIQISTY TIVH TYIHOWIW ONLLSIXT -

(1334 DS 000'€~)

SIWOHNMOL WOOYAIE FIYHL(9) 01 dN -

(133405 000°E1~)

ININWYYI0Ud

NOILYLdvaY 3A1LY3H) (§F)

*3US-UO $831) 9Y) JO %469 1sed] 1 sanasasd awoyds sIug 1S
LoUIaA ‘I Woly s$a39e Junsixe ayl Suizijin ‘Ygy oluo peoyoqysiau Juadelpe ay) Suipuaxe ‘Juied pajzeuuod
pue sHun 3jgepiojje Asuap-mo| g 0 dn yym padejaAsp aq pInom ¥t 40 131100 seayinos ayj puncidfeld pue
spjaly auy3 Suiaias 10| YIeq € pue 10| ||BH [eLOwWA ||EwS B udam)aq dn ds aq pnom Suiyieq “Suiwwessod
pooyloqyaiau Jayjo 4o plaly spods Ygy auy Jo) asnoy plaly mau e poddns pue 'gy |adied Jo juolf 8y} 0] pajeso|al
3Q pnom ey Jersoway "ssaquisut AHunwwod Aq paysanbal se ‘Y3noiy}-1nd peo) g9 anay suel-z e 4o} lenusjod
9y} alepowwiesae 0} sagueys |esnjoniseljui [eluajed Joy Suiuueld ‘ays ayy suoisiaul-al A[8)8|dwod ¢ awayag

*133uIBu3 ue Aq pajeniens aq E:S_Im pue paujw.ayap aq 0} 1k s1 _._m-_s__ﬂ 103 Buel-Z e jo KN)Iqiseay 3y,

ININWYYIO0dd

SNINAYHD0HA GQQHHQBHIIN

SHIVE DNDYM 3ALIINNDD

9L43S 107 INBRIVEHIAND
SITVAS DN BT

QINOW DEIZVS DNLLSDA

~ HSOQUHL-LNG QY0 FUNL TVIINILOE H03 SMOTIY

(5104 0Z) DNDRYS BNISTION 31NEISad

‘SLINN TYN3Y 318VAN04FY ST OL at |

b 2 1314 830905 I2ISNOILVINIR INUSUE

¥ OI4VN3I3S ININWVYIO0Hd



Sd3LS 1XAN 'L




(44

S1I3LINOUY

5202 HI8W3Ld3S - 5202 AINr
NOLLI3T3S ¥3d0TIAIA / MIIATY d4Y °S

S20Z ANNr
d44 INSSI v

G202 AYW - SC0C HOYYIN
*[a5Un0g Aq MalAeY

d4Y INIATY + M3IATY '€

SZ0Z HOMYW - S20Z AMYNNYT
d4Y 40 14v4d 15414 2

LNJWIA0N4INI HINS Y04 SLSOD
ALINGISY3d ANY 340IS FHL GNVLISHIONN OL
180434 INIWIA0HINIE TYHNLINYLSVHINI
ONY AGNLS ALITIGISYES JILVINIHOS

~34d V¥ ONILINANOD NI SLSIANI NMOL

444 ONINSSI 340434 AanLs
ALIEISY34 JIVINIHOS-34d S30E NMDL

N

©,

yo

R R R R R R P P R T PR R TP I

SINIWIA0YLINI

FUNLINYLSVEIN] + AQNLS ALIIBISYIL

JLVINIHIS-3Yd ¥ INLLINGNOD 30

S1S00 3H1 135440 01 A143d0¥d 3HL 40 3TVS
3HL NO NMOL HLIM S3LYILOD3N HI40T3IA3A S

5202 AV - 5202 HOHVYIN
NOLLII13S Y3d0TIAIA/ MIINTY ddY

5202 HOYVYIN
448 3nssSi €

G202 HOHYW - 5202 AYYNNYT
‘[asunog Aq mainay

d4d INI4TY + MIIATY 2

5202 AVNNVT - ¥202 1SNaNY
dd¥ 40 14VHO LSYId "1

.J/
43407330 V HOd d4d NV SINSSI NMOL

\1
S =7

Sd31S 1X3N @

m-_am Eman_?mommms_‘ Apnig Buiwiwel30o4d j[eH |elMOWS|A | YAl ‘UDIBPRIN
niLs
\| 9202 'T AVW J
1S ey UINoS Y8t + 8 18 SuiwwesSord mapy
Y43 350 MIN 6

9202 114dY - HOUVI ‘1adojanap & 3u103[3s a10jaq ‘UM Jjay} U0 Jo ‘JUBYNSUOD B Jo dj3Y Ay} yHm
ALY3d0Yd 40 1N03SA1I NMOL "8 d4Y ue Jesp uayy few ume) 3] 4y ue Jo SuInss| sy} s104eq Juawanoidwi
o207 HOWYIN- ANYNE4 |einjanijsesjul Jof paiinbal ag Aew Jey) 3ujoueuyy Jojpue 3uipuny ayy Jo
XI1dIN0D TYHIDINAN Bujpuejssapun syai8 yied siy| "jesodoid ansuaysdwod e aledasd pue ays
NOLITQ0IN M3N 01 JAGIW $391440 NMOL "L 3y} puejsiapun J9jjaq ued s1adajansp |eijualod jeyl os 4y ue 3uiyelp
202 ZAWIAON - NIHOL90 210J9( ‘SA0(E Pa}e]S aS0U) SE YINS ‘S)UBWAA0IdWI BINJINIISBIJU] PUB SBIPN]S
(_ SLOVHINOD/ SNOLIVILO93N 3ZITVNH "9 ) Ajigisesy Aessaoau BUIJINPUOD UO)R|PRIL JO UMBL AU} YNM sUIBag 4 11k
*3sn mau Joj sasedaid ) se Apadold [|ey |euowWSa}y 3y} Jn0asod
- — ) ) N UBD umo] 8y} Yodojanap Palas[es ay} Ym saIpnis asay} Fuljanpuod sy

"|92Jed "1S UIBIY YINeS 8¢ 5Y3 U y8nalyl-ina zg ‘aly ainny e o Ayjiqissad
ay} pue ‘syuswanoidwi 1amasyondes se yans ‘aus uo spasu swalshs ay)
puejsIapun Japaq 0} SaIPnls Janpuod ued Kayy ‘1aylaso “sjuswanoidl
aImonAselul pue saipns Ajjiqisea) aljewayas-aid Jo Sujaueuy ayy pue
fuadoid ayy Jo 8|es ay) a)e1j03au 0] JadejaAsp 3y} UM YoM UBD UOJIPPIN
10 umo] 8y} ‘uasoya s Jadojanap & usyp -0} puodsal 0} siadojansp o}
s|esodold Joj jsanbay e 3uinssy yum uidaq 0} umo) 3yl smofje v 1ied

APUNWLOY 3y} Woly Justuadesus panuiuco
pue y2eqpaa) 1131j0s 0} SJUaPISal Y} Ypim jesodoid n1ay} saleys sadojanap
Pa193[as 841 ]y} PUSIUI0Ial S) "UOIR|PPI JO S)uapisal ay) £g yim pagesus
pue 0] paanpoijul uaaq Apealje sey Sunwweldold ay} eyl aq ||Im 44y sy}
10 Y)3uans y “soleusas usisap papiaoid ay) ysnoayy joefosd 8yy uo piq 0}
s1ado[anap Jaeiiye 0) Aem e se ‘ndul preog 19819 8y} PUB A IUNWWGI Y} Wol)
pajesauad ‘[aaled siy uo auop salpnls 1daouos [eiiul 3y apnjoul Aew 44y 8y}

‘31| MaU S
pue Suip(ing sy} SwiAIS o} Aem ay) uo umoy sy} djay ueo |sosed Jeas sy pue
lleH |euoway Buiwwessoldss spiemo) sdals U S0} aping siyl uold|ppIN
10 1¥a}u03 Ja}ead ay} ypm Furdasy ul pue yIeqpas) APUNWILI0I JO aAI}I8|Jal
S| Jey} NS 8y} 10} UCISIA M3U B Juawajdw] 0} UOKEIapISUOD pue Jugnou)}
|njaied annbal fim ey |euowayy 1e Sunwweldold mau Suuswajdwi 0}
ujed ay3 ‘Apnys sy Aq pauiune)ep soveusas welgod s|qissod syl Ag paping

35N WydI04d MIN 0L SHIVd

Sd3ilS 1X3N

U
o

==t=
-
e
o

=

=
=
D
><
={=
(Jp)
P
(g0
g -
(75 ]

guiwwesgolda




SLALIRIUY

\ﬁyvl :

s

L:w juswidolenagsse *

A

s

Apnig Suiwiwel8oid |jeH [eHOWaA | YA ‘UOIS|PPIN

"2 0jpMms Aq 38ew| IS UIBW YINOS ¥BY UO 0gazen

< "UOJS(PPIW §O UMOL BU} $0 ASN0D aBeW) *|(2H (elous |y

(ajqissod aiaym) seas} Sunsixg -
oqazed Sunsixy -
{1eJ} LaBeaL AU} 0] L0NIBUL0D + S|Iel) Busy|em Bunsixg ~
Pl uoneaidal Bunsixg -
apedey j[eH [eLOWAl By} 4O Ja)deseyd Funsing -
:s|esodoid Juawdojanap Kue 10) UCIRIAPISUOD GYUI UYE) BQ PEROYS SUOIYIPUBa Sunsixe Suimafjoy ay) Buiasesald
*31qIssod a1aym a)is ay) Jo suolyipuod Bulsixe ay) anasald 0} ailssp 8y} SSAIPPE 0S|e PINoyYS euaNI J4Y ‘JUsWFeBud AUnwwod ayj wol) }Ieqpas) uo paseg

SNOLLYYIQISNOD 3LIS ddd

Butsnoy afgepioye paulofuod Yym |jeH [elouta Jo uoeidepy saneals -
Ju3Wdo[anap 3uisnoy o|qEPIOLE 81BIEdaS U)IM ||BH |BLIOWAL JO UONINISUGIRY -
:3uisnoy
3|qepuojje jo Juswdojanap mau 1o} Buimolje aiym ||BH |eLDLIA Jo Jaideseyd Fupsixe au) saasald 0] NS SIY) 40} BjGRYNS G pINOM Sayoeodde a)Is Buimoljos sy

‘444 ue 3uidojanap uaym sayzeaidde ays a|qissod ojur syyBisus (njasn spiacad uea (JusteBesud Alunwwod pue siskjeue ays |eriul 3y} AQ pausioul)
£pnjs s1yy Ul passedwooud SaWaYds ays Ay ‘a}Is AU} Joj UOISIA S,Um0) Y} Ypim Juswugife uy aq 03 sjesodosd [eiyul 112y} Jojre) s1adojaaap djay ued Jjas) 44y syl
U} suoieIapISUNS ays pue yoeaidde ays passap ay) Suling 44y ue Suidojaadp uaym umo} auj Joj uDjeIapIsucd Juepodwt Jayjoue 3q jjim yoeoidde ays ay)

HIVOYddY LIS d4Y

‘Bulwwesdozd pasodoid fue jo spaau Buryied Jueynsas ay) SS3IPPe OS[E PINOYS BUBID J4Y
punoidfeyd -
U0I}EAIRY -
Bulwweidold Juapisay/pooyioquaay -
Fuisnoy ajqepioyy -
:Buwwer3o1d Jumo)fo) ayy Juswajdw) o} siadofaasp adeincous
PINoYys d43 Y1 ‘Aunwiwiod sy} WwoJj pasoyles yaeqpas) aul ym udife of 44y ue uidojonap usym PasapISUed aG pnoys APIs Siy] Ul papiAcId SUOIEPUIWOIA! aY)

SNOILYONIWNO0DIY INIWNYYI0Yd d1Y

*pJEDY 13335 BU} 0} UOIEPUIIWIOTAI B YEW PUB (*313 ‘SMIlAA)UI ‘Mainal sjesodoid) sSaoord majaal ay) uf pie o) pajuiodde aq os|e ued 3a))Wied
uojjenes ue 'sjesodoid 3uta1aoal uodp) “ays YIBa 1o} UOISIA S,UMo] ay) Jo spaau ayl yyim sudije 44y auj Jey) ainsua djay o} sapiwwod LosIApe te yiim Buoje 44y
ue dojaaap umo) ayj djey o} pally aq p|nod JUBYNSUOD i ‘B30T AIOSIAPE UE 10 JUBYINSU0D € J0 Suedlt Aq 44Y ay) 3uINss| Joj 0ULISISSE Has 0S|e URI UMO) Al
'3)1s Y9ea Jo Juawdoanspal ay} Joj UOISIA SuMO] ay] syeaw [esodoid yIea Jey aInsua o) 44y ay) Buinssi o) joud esodosd Yaea o UOILRN[RAD BY) 20) LAY OIS
SaysI|ge)sa usmay ayy jey] Juepodw s1 3 “sado[saap [B0] 0 J4Y UE 8nsSS] 0] 8Q pjnom ajs ay} Je Suitwel3ed mau Suijuswaidw] Joj poylaw UOWWIOT 1SOW 8]

_ SNOILYONIWWO0I3Y (d4Y) ST¥S0d0Yd H04 1SINDIY

SNOILYANINNOJ3Y T¥S0d0dd 404 1SIN0DIY

Sd3i1S 1X3N

4 0} 4led

guiweigoida

L

_—
M
<
==
(72
==
9"
=
(72




144

S1I3LINDUY

b 3 B T w EmEanSmemms_‘
ola
nLs )

Apnig Bulwwel30id ||BH |eLOWS | WAL ‘UoI3|ppIN

"Sulwesgold mau Aue poddns 6} sapesddn pasnbai suiwialap o}
Paien|eAa aq Pjnoys pue pajep-no aie ‘|esiueydsw pue ‘Kjajes ayl) ‘ondas
Fuiquingd ‘|ealnda(a Bupnjoul ‘[ieH [elowsayy e swaysAs Sunsixa sy

1S 9|deyy 01 1S U0JSOg LWO0LY 29 a1y 108UL03 0} Y3noay) sepe3dn waisks o

-In2 e Jo AY[IqIsea) 8y} puB)SIapUN 0} JAPIO Ul PajaNpuod aq o} Apnis
FuLBAUIBUT |IMD PUB 314RI) € 10§ PAPUBLIWIOIDI Si 1] “UOIB[PPIW Ul yjel}
g1edijiw 0} aYs 8L} UO Y3noiyl-}na pecs e 1o} payse sey ANunwwod ayp

‘suoijenoud) pauue|d Aue poddns
0] AIBaJul [INIONIIS 4O} PSIENIBAD 9q PINOYS 3INjanJ)s Sumsixa auj
suofjeAousy 1oy Ay13ayuf |eImonas

Anisead Aemygiy 7 Apms Jupasuidu (1A e
1001} 1841} 8y}
up 3|GIS5399€ Ajuo Afjuanina si ||ey jenowsyy “3uiwweldosd [eijuajoed mau
||e 1o} pamatnal aq pIneys sapesddn A|iqIssadoe pue suoljeslduwi apod
suonealdw] apoy 3 sapelddp Au|iqissaady e

. Juswdojanap mau

AUl woly pajesauad foedea Jajem pue agemas al) uo aye) o) papesddn

9§ 0] pasu [|Im anjanaselul das 3uisixa ayl ‘[|leH [euowsyy jo

UGIINJISU0I $,008T |BUIBN0 Y3 Woi) WwaysAs ondas ayy Suizijin Ajuaing
ondes e

1334IS NIVIN HLNIOS ¥8Y + 8Y

:mojaq payst| ate SulwwesSosd mou Woddns 03 palinbal aq Aet Jey} SUOIIBIAPISUOD UOIIEAGUS) puE sapes3dn Suipjing Jueayludis 1souw ayj Jo auiog

"U0JO|PPIY Ul JosSe AInJuad IS¢ & se Bujwweidord
MaU asnoy o} A|Iqe S,a}s By} SSASSE 0] JpI0 Ul PaYINpU0d aq pinoys saipms AIjiqises “sepeiddn paninbas Suipfing ayy Jo ajels ay} o} anp suoljealjdw| 1S09 pappe JUealjugis anel pue
Sunuwesdosdal Joy saguaeyd juaseld Aew |jeH |eLOWSYY JO IN1INKS FULSIXS BUJ UILHM %I0M 0} SS00UD Jey) awayds Aue Jey) pajou aq pinoys Jf “Asuap mo| e Je Fuuwes3oid mau
Funuswsjdwi ajiym ‘alis uo saal| AJuaLing Jey) SuiwwesSold (BUOIIESIIBI SB ||aMm SE ‘||BY |BHOW]) JO apedey oL0)siy au} aauaseld 0] Jajard pinom AURLLIWIOD 3U) JeYy) pajeanal Apms siyt

S3avyadn aNIaTIng

SNOILYYIQISNOD NOILVINIWITdII

Sd3ilS LX3N

=
=
<D
=
D
=]
i
oo
=
(o)
=
=)
(o=
-
Z3
o
(4>
=
Q)
=
(o)
-
(72

sdals IXaN "L




14

S1921IHINY

Juswdojenagsse ‘

Apnis Suiwwei3o4d ||BH |elIOWSA | YN ‘U0l13|ppiN

fuaede ondas Funsig

poday Juadwssassy supping y

boday apog (Ing ¥

(9s-9Y Jewiuiy Jo ased ay uj) |ley eHowa

Uoday [eUBWUIAUT e
uoday (ealuy290sy e
Y3noIy-Ing z9 "aly Joj Apnig JHeIL B (N e
fjoedes JaMag UMO) e

S|3dled ygp pue gi
:0] pajiwi| Jou Jng ‘Suipnjaui [aased 1agle)
3lj1 pue ||BH [eUOWA J0 SJuteIIsu0a alis a|qissod ay)

ssasse 0} Apnys A11)1q1seay anisuayaldwod e apiaoid o}
(9 yied 10 v yied) Aemyied e 109]3s pnoys umoy ay|

SIJIAYIS INYLINSNOY

'SUOIJa1IJ$81 BUOZPOO)4
3¢ 12 yum Aiduiod Jsnw pue suozpool4 3y ay UIYNm
ale {90sed SIY} JO SUOILO IBqIag JUQILIBAIY 007 &
S| 919Y) JBY] SJBIS YOIUM ‘JOB U0IJD30.d SIBALY dY} 0}
Ajdwoa 3snw 15 ulely yInos Y Jo Juswdojarap Auy

=
gt
D
=
D
s |
=
oo
L
o
-
()
o
=3
Z
o B
<D
o
.
o
puss
(2]

=]
P
D
><
=
(7]
=
D
=)
(7

NOILJ3L04d INOYI¥INIY / ONVILAM )

*s19d0jaAap 03 dA1JoRINIR BI0W 8IS
3y} jew pue Juswidoanap 10} Sa8uR|jey2 ZIWUIW 0}
44y ue no Supnd sjiym A|snoauelnu|s pasap(suod
g 0s{e pjnoys sj9a1ed ayy Sujuozal Joj AHpgissod ay)
"23uerien e annbas Aew juswdojanap pasodoid ayy
‘444 3y ul ypoy ind Buiwwessord ayy uo 3uipuadag
‘|fuspisay BT-Y 10} pauoz s IS UIB YInog Y8y
3|lym ‘ssauisng g 10} pauoz s1 ‘IS UIBW UYINoS 8y

ININOZ

suollelapisuos uoneawajduw)

SNOILYH3AISNOD NOILYLNIWITdINI

Sd3i1S LX3N




- ——

LNIWIOVINI ALINNIWINOI I XIONIddY '8




JUdlU0Y uoljeludsald Juawasesuy Ayunwwo)



8t 2071 %ﬁ.ﬂw EmEan%QmmﬁS‘
o1 S
D._.m

Apms Suiwwes3old ||eH |eLIOWSIN | YIN ‘UoI3|ppIN

l:l#‘-
pomsoseny {id v uoipp

DoON
0ol §

'ISN A3SOdOHd MIN 2ul 1o) Alisdoud ay3 jo uswdoleaapal syl
10} d+H uenbasgns & wiojul 01 SOIHYNIIS DNINNVHDOHJ i°
uoleIWNO0P aalsuayaldwod aonpolid pue 1 334LS NIVIN HLNOS
H8Y 2 8b 10} (S)o5eD ISN JHNLNA jo Snsuasuod dojansp 03 si [eob ay |

NOISSIN

vivd

80 uoissnosiq uado
{sainuiu o) Avaloy ubiseq

198)YdIY 3Y1 39

{S3INUIL OE) SUONSANY) LOISSNISIC] 17
210\ [euosiad

(s OF) doYSHIOM (lEeH {eLoWwa

{sainuiul O1) uoRoNposu] 309fold

VAN3OV

(NOILVLN3IS3I¥d NOSYId-NI ONY TvNLYtA) SIAITS NOILYINISIYHd

INFJNIIVINI ALINNININOD -1 XIONIddV



519311HUY

s, g
gn1 & K | ucoEno_maommmE‘ Apnis Buiwwel3o.d |[eH |elJOWB | YIN ‘U0lappiN

olg Yo
nLs o
M}ﬂ WO AQES L ..ﬁl— .N:m...u WeurcsasgeEeY o
§id ¥ YW uORipPIN aig L3 fn\. W HORIN

1X81U09) IS UIBN *S dew snooy ays

(NOILYLNISI¥d NOSYId-NI NV TYNLYIA) SIAITS NOILYINISIY

ViVad LNJNIIVINI ALINAWNWINOD *1 XIAN3ddY



S1930M08Y

%

uaudojenagsse
0s olaga %=« ¥ ! ‘ Apnig Bujwiwes3oid jleH [BLIOWR | YN ‘UOIRIRPIW
nLs
N._m..._ sy o0 . N..:‘u pasropasageorH iy &) '
oig f.x Y HOIDPIN ota A M “UOIIBRIN
fls nis
e @en
odvvlf\u\
[ ) 0 (euyspe; ; ~
WRe L \ =
(i) #nyje ssoursng N 8y 3mag o 4
(hwuneEsg o Dwueg -
Wyt oapey o Nidonsspey o
Wy « ey o
i Usmanp {ram-on : Supamp jumy-ot

asn weisoid 8uisixy

vivd

| @Ay O USAAE) > O Kuei-mie UMMM o
| o Pe Aweon, o

tuwing) Iuiop Ao, o

L L
PRpERN &!E . PRRepp -__s»n_-. s -
Lows0ans e LomSIOens Ty

S3TdWVXI ISN

N
i

ANBANVIGEING OOV
eI TvDinan

SLONLUSIA AVTHAAC

AWSNONLIKON I |

seanIma @ |

{FBOVT) ERLINOWOY TYLNZQIEAN  YH |

f————

(ISO00DH INEAUETS WY
(5000'02) 3ONFUTZ  E1)

SUIMGNG AVMHOIH UVISHIING WL [

(NOILYINISI¥d NOSHId-NI ONY T¥NLYIA) SIQITS NOILYINISINU

INFNIIVINT ALINANINOD 1 XIANIddV



S193UHIUY

e

2N £ <% juewdojenegssen

ora K22 v

nLs i
wam imaomagrny e u ] YN "UDL3IpRIR 3hd e
nis nLs

133418 NIV H1NOS 8¢

watudoprag maN

suonpuo) 3ursixy

(NOILVINISI¥d NOSYId-NI ANV TYNLYIA) SIAITS NOILYLINISIUd

ViVd LNJWIIVINI ALINNNINOD °1 XIONIddY



S19201K 7Y

Apnis Bujwwesdold ||eH [RlIOWAK | YIN ‘UCIR[PPIIN

z5 2N Juswidojenagissepy
old ‘
nis
207 wmimocmmgy [
&g " & (o VI HOIRIPPIA
als

Q ==
V1G04 3UVAS 55049
NYTd H0074 GNNOHD

suonpuo) Susixg

YN ‘HOWIFPIN

“poyneiq) sapeddn sweishs pue Ajssee SRNbRY -
K uBenvgs s pontt Ryuesary ot ey prysiogiy o

oy
oS & pie 5040 Visd! 43013003 £ 053 KAEE 1500 10 EISIEU03 100G PUSHS. o

‘soae o Sisiuca ey punaly
SUDIASISAY MRS WU o
15028~

133U1S NIYIN HANOS 8F

suoipuoy Sunsixy

(NOILYINISI¥d NOSYHId-NI ANV T¥NLYIA) SFCITS NOILYLNISIYd

ViVA LNJNIIVINT ALINNININOD 1 XIAN3IddY



S133LIK38Y

m__,_m . Apnig Bulwwesdold |[eH |BUOWSN | YIN ‘UIBIPPIN
nLs
mmm yomoreageeery JW« Y "uTiapRI wq_.m it 4 as.\.....,k.z YA "UORIPRA
nis n.s

3
NV1d 30014 ANOD3S

991004 JUVADS 50X

133418 NIVIN HLNOS ¥st

stuonIpuo? 8uijsix3 suaiypuo2 unsixy

(NOILVINISI¥d NOSYIJ-NI ONY TYNLY¥IA) SICITS NOILYINISIYHd

Vivad INJNIIVINT ALINNWNINOD ‘I XIONIddV



S1031HI8Y

m__—n_m uCNEQO_mEQWMNE‘ %ijw ME_C(_ENLMOL& {leH |etloWsy | YN ,:Ou@_—u—u_E
niLs
Rt 4 m.w Vi ‘U0IADPUA W.._,m,m pecmcrennaewe i m..w W URPPIA

. - fusdod oy fo
g on= NYId 3L D e Bt seaer By o
N punsikely «
1 JA. an
. 3 T o (paned) 1] Furgiem o 10 181 e dwemsprony p 490l dels »
....!.J.l- -k oY WEIY . Wiy aNisszg o
s\l I T e [T TePU topfutymed wlaui peasuay
e
| : WoZIUNG 001 ST~
—— o | g /
ed 4
Y= vy pg 52 A32UIS NIVW HLNDS ey
o N [ \ s o rvere puEey
\ l\\ 7, TAVUNANOZIODY
-
L~
YORUNS WU 002 ¢
oyt 0 g0 By
P
o6 Josru e april dsalg o
\ -, . ELo

\ pliscdier ¢
SINIVHISNOD 3LIS

suoIpuo) Sulsixg

Su0iIpuoY) JuNsIxg

(NOILVLNISIY¥d NOSYId-NI NV TYNLYIA) SIAITS NOILYINISIHd

ViVa INJNIDVINT ALINNNINOD I XIAN3ddV



S133LIHBEY

.
z2n1 &

8 0ila %
nis =«

& e ucmc._asgwummm_z‘

Apnis Buiwiwes3oid ||eH |RLIOWD | YIN ‘U0I3|pPPIIN

asq) 1edrajiinn ‘g

adeiarag 3 pocd 4

ésp jreaey 3

Hunnueidolg Aoy g

#3E0S vl
£ 8S[ [euoNERIIRY g

BulnoH IPIOUYE

Woom o4 Siuzapd o)
GuIw3S puy iSpPEy U3 A0} SPoL 040m
WOLLPDAIV, )

SHUBPISAU VA 4o} GUN)| D|qUpatie
apIAaad pue hpuuauies v paoddns
Guisvoft 2avpaoliv 'a

{SHURIIPLSIA J0)
h3LIA 249U DAVY 93 271U 29 pJom
2bvaoNag P peod 4

LY -
;BuISsIW U0IRIPPI SI 1eyM

asf ediaiany g

adeiaaag y poo4 4

450 sy 3

SupmeiSaly Kuunuimag g

asmls naip
£ a5 [BNONESISY T

3910\ |eu0SIad

duisnay afgepioNy @

=
®
)
(724
®
=i
@
=
(7]
<
=
=
J
[ .l
=3
o
=
0
=
e
i

N i
;BuISSIW U0YAIPPIN SI 1BUM

dJI0A |euosisd

e
®
&

7]

®

-
®

=

7

-

)

=

J

~—
=
o

=
0Q

=
4
a

(NOILYLNISI¥d NOSHId-NI ANV TYNLY¥IA) SIQITS NOILYINISIHd

Viva INJNIIVINT ALINNININOD 1 XIANIddY



98

S133LiNDEY

4 i i .%..w@a juswidojeragsse ‘
olg w& Apnig Suiwiwes3oid ||eH |BLIOWSK | YIN ‘U0R|pPIN
n.Ls ik

(vt o)

4PHNF) 197
e ssamishg, jpus

w0

B suvsamiow 5

3910\ |euosiad
3910/, |eu0Siad

SLINA *02

ONISTIOH ONISNOH

AN
ALISNZG HSIR 3

i
B cuwvriUink
ALISNIG HIIH 2

U o
<D D
ot 8
(744 w
1] (1]
=R Lon g
@ @
= p =t
7] w
- <
= o
= =
- —
e [
- -
Q o
e L=
va rQ
- -
[ i
Z Z

3131 33s 0} ayl{ NoA piNom 1eym ;a13lj aas 0} ayi| nok pInom jeym

(NOILYLNISI¥d NOSYId-NI ANV TYNLYIA) SACITS NOILYINISTYd

Vivd LNJWNW3IVINT ALINNININOD :1 XION3IddY



uuuuuuuuuu

juawudojenagsse ‘

Apn1g uiwiwe3odd ||eH |BLIOWSA | YIN ‘UsIB[PPIA

Y
ViaA2g, 290dS JUpIvA
S0 7 pood

SLiNA - 09

ONISOOH - ;
ANAYSILINW y -

ALIRNAIG HSIH D =~ e 8BNI2 WYE'Y

“sjysnoyy 1noA sn ||3) aseajd

;alal} 39s 0} ayi] LON nok pinom 1eym

3910/ |euosiad
2910\ |eu0SIad

il = Y 3 :
— .
— — ~ i
W\ e ¥ ¥ A
- ‘% ~
| P, s
i i | J
Sl SLIND <03 A A W
ONISNOH - P
ANNM-ILINN =2
ALISNIT HSIH D ey 8012 HYR Y

=
D
o
w
1
=
e
=
(72
-
L=
o=
J
-
-
=)
=
vQ
=
(8181} 93Ss 0} 3)l] LON nok pjnom 1eym «

(NOILVLINISI¥d NOSYId-NI ANV TYNLYIA) SIAITS NOILYLNISIY

ViVa INJNIDVINT ALINNNINGD I XIAN3IddV



SIT3LHIEY

2071 jusiudolersgsseiy ‘
% 0lg Apnys BulwweiBoid |[BH [BIOWSIN | YN ‘U0I3IPPIN
BARIE) OIS BY JO UONEAIBSEIS BUINSSE 38yDROIATE NS [y, SpenLy I By} jo uonzAWSeid Biunssy SBySTOMIDE aNe Iy,
{uenea) Jarnd (ones0( pasn3
aup ur Burppng 1o Bunpping sy Xupeaoyas iy Burpjrag 1o Busppog awy Bunesojar
g jo rajoeieyy Buranurrdesd may a38ds A 12ypz) apEI%s HIGISIY Y JO 1ITIEYD Burunuefosd sas aaeds
Ay Buiasasasd pfigm ‘VOIDINSUDD M3t 0 Joj efvjony atenbs aww apisasd ayy po asn-2s pae Fuuigrford ay) BwiAtasard ajigm UOGINNSIHOD MAY 10] inj a8rjnoy anenbs aiou apiaosd ay) o #sn-a1 guet Bunuuwieisord
2aeds mojie of asyanns Fujsixs ysgowag o} unsdyooy Junprting peseasauy MU Honidas 0} BIIEATUS JERIUIK PIvds MO[(F 0} RiNJINGS BusiXa ysowsg 0 11000) Buippng paseaiouy MY LGNS 01 LONFADUS! (ViR
NOILYLdYaY IALLYIYD "D NOISNY4X3 ‘8 SN-34 TWINININ Y NOILY1dVOY JAILVIED "D NOISNVdXT 4 ISN-34 TYWININ Y

v §°
150} Frid
. wou 2% 7y A2

vl 427 s 4

;alay aas
031 ay1] noA pinom yoeoisdde ays yaIyYM

3210/ |euosiagd

jaiay aas

o
)
Y]
172]
D
[
s
=
7]
<
o
=
J
[ =l
=r
o
o
oQ
%
(71 0] @)1 nok pinom yoeoidde ays yarym

3910\ |euosiad

-
)
)
»
®
-
@®
=
7
<
=)
=
J
-
=
o
=
gQ
=)
)
“n

(NOILYLNIS3I¥d NOSY3Id-NI NV TYNLYIA) SIQITS NOILYLINISI¥d

ViVa INJINIIVINIT ALINNININOD

| XIAN3ddVY



$1932IRIU¥

dl
e odmiommms_‘ Apnig 3ujwweldosd ||eH [eLOWBIY | YIN ‘U0l IPPIN

A

Vi 20IR1EPIN

DON

=2 3

noa !
%

. ~
L8010 0 w250 Mty S K o [ Tpr—

AR AL 0} 8 104 P BoRAe£XOm 6 i) KU <

Bt WO B VI =
P ——————— P = — — @ ———

a®
"SR 4Gt B B B {0 SINA) BU} 0§ VOB 00K B 358 ML) U4 Mg 40 S a3an)d ‘Kiuaptagut 0 Kul ¥ 3y < .
DY 9 NAY SSOYY

. vasiedepy sgessy

NYd 3US

— we| Bje)S
13pun [2A0idde UOISSIULLILY

(v} UO1jEARSUY 0} Jaalqns St
SPUR|JoM A4] PUNQIZ BAIR 3Y}

;luasaidas

nok op iapjoyayers
wieiduid jeum

o} ey Auy 51NV LR 0

pansasald
a0 || Syest Supyjes

b kg _ ajand o ssea%Y <571Vl

panesald oq {jim Aojewad
e 815 0] S3890Y 4313010 0

sakopdl (edidmpy | {padojansp BaLe 51ty
295 0} JuEM 110K pInom ‘{fep
ansieN 0] “3) panoLs st PRt

1aquay Apununo)
SpodS A )| 071310 SIN04S Y

Rudesp e A sudofanag _
SNOILIWNSSY

KBRS BUS DY) RO1IS 1OUMQ S5IUISITR }
f/ \\ wamsay /..‘ - — —’ NOIIVAYISIYd

ilJ31IHOYY 3H1 39

YWY

suompuo? 3unsixy

(NOILYINISI¥d NOSYId-NI NV TYNLYIA) SIAINS NOILYINISI YU

VivVvad LINJWIIVINI ALINNNINOGD 1 XIANIddV



09

S103LIHOYNY wy
NDI.— = c&v

,.. nw.,u:mEanBn_mmmE
ol1a %.:f <
:._.m

a7

Apnig Suiwiwelsoid ||eH [RUOWSW | YN ‘UsI|PPIA

N 4DUL 4 AR 1Ly R, K

s ity a9 08 w1 oy BunaunesN )0 20N JUM,

ut Ui PRI I
‘SR S T Bir S O BINAJ DY 104 UOISA INOK SRS FUE AN} U8 M 16 SRm aBemd KjEprAipvt s0 Hel ¥ 3y

o
voysassey/ nbesspmy

0@
T

ayedipy snsay s

ey N

BhUHERp B noA

/.w_za: s ) RIS

3

i13311HIYY JHL 38

e
hejay

aMAIAS jEULISTOLY

;luasaidas

N0k op sapjoyayels
wiesdoid 1eym

g
ubdbjdury podiaiupy
1Agwaly Ayunwiniog

wiolanaq

UM SsauIsng

Lo o N 2 JaK PR R M o
ariy MaBRY 965 O S £ ok AL 10 A Rk

J A
SRt 4gy T G 243 10 MnIRy S 53y 015 160K Sajd Bs 94} 60 WD 40 Syl aseard LlABPAIBYl o K4 ¥ 3y

i
!
i
i
j

1

i
3
t
1
t
3

.
sy

!:__,:;1]_,-.-.
=y

it
o
1
4
L

NN S

ORI

7

wogmaisay s sdsaspory

uomsepy saysary

I BN

wawaday

ot

Bty ey

-

Budisap 28 noA
_/ Bayens ayis oy 33610

i1J3LIHJYY 3HL 39

fwasaiday

nof op iaployanins
werdoud seym

S iy oy

Mgy
dojeang)

1atMm{) SSILISAG

(NOILYLNISIY¥d NOSHId-NI ONV TYNLYIA) SIAITS NOILYINISIY

ViVA INJINIIVINT ALINNININOD -1 XIANIddY



19

SI93LIHTUY

Zn7
oid
nis

w, ~,§ juewdojensgssen
i LY

Apnig Buliwessold [|eH [2l1OWRA YN ‘UCIB(RPIN

ihanins ano
e} 03 318y UBDS
LiBE'LLL'8L6
auoys @
AOB eWUOISIPRPIW@ UBYRUSEIG O IR]
[ERER PN |

:suoysanb Aue aaey noA Ji sn JoRIUCD ases|d

ifaaIns
auljuo Ino aye} 10 Jeya ayy ui jlewa nok jnd
aseajd uoljewoul aiow ayij pjnom nok §j

o
1

o1

724

1)

==
—
=

w
-

<

=

-

==
—3
o

=
UQ

-
=
@

g uadg

UoISSnasi

(NOILYINISI¥d NOSYId-NI NV TYNLYIA) SIQAITS NOILYINISIYd

ViVd LNJW3IVINT ALINNININOD -1 XIANIddV



29

$193Ln3uY

0y
N1 &= 4 juswdolaragssein
ola Wr.&\__{ ‘ Apnis Sujwweldold j|eH |eMoWws | YIN ‘U0IBIpMIN
nLs ‘
Efx) ol )
50 50
= g
3 3 0oL 08 09 oy 0z ] = m
= = _ _ _ _ _ | e
1] 0L 09 0§ oy ¢ oz 01 0 - I 3 g
@ =
43I0 g | =g | g =3
= U7 = —
g ES ~ Ler
= - = <
0
) = m AHEMHOA HISHE ) S m
v = —-
WA £ - = —
BN (| 2 Q% = aD.Dv
N =
ONIYSO0US MINTIRNOD 76 | pe— = = o D
NOILYIYOIY N N. . w siuedidiie Juawadeduy Hunuoy w
AZAMNS INTINO dOHSHHOM NOSEIANI  JDHSYHOM THN LHIA a a
u 4>~___€mm2 |ei3ueul) }I8ije Jou Op sjnsss u
=l pue “s{eloueul Jo uolRussad ay) 3nOYJIM PEIINPLIOT Sem 3S1213XS SIUL 18U} 1ol ases|J A3AINS AUHLO SNOUOILDUASE UE -

pue sdoysyom oMl §50432 55830id BUIUOISIA JudWeBEBUT ANuniwe) o uf pade3us sIIqUBE AYUNWLWIDD UDJRPRIN FTT

(SENVAIOI18Vd L1} ASAUNS INITNO + 'JOHSHUOM NOSHId-NI 'dOHSHUOM TWNLY¥IA

sjuedionied

(SLNVAIOIHYd 11} AZAUNS INIING + 'dOHSHUOM NOSHIA NI ‘dOHSHEOM TYNL¥IA

ZBUISSIW U0IB[PPIN S! JBUM

(SINVdIOILYYd #TT) AJAYNS INITNO + ‘dOHSHYOM NOSYId-NI 'dOHSHYOM TVNLYIA
‘03140434 SYM Y1vQ SIHL NIHM 1314W0T 134 LON SYM AJAMNS INITNO 3HL ‘310N 38¥31d "(¥YV0Q 19373S IHL 01 QILINISINA SI1TNSIY

SISATVYNY ViVA INJNIIVINI ALINNNINOD :1 XIAN3IddV



S13311K3UN

R

e Glg i nM nostoEaen gy Apmi ButuutesBoid [[eH [2LIOUB | YA UCI3IPPIN
nLs

SISNOJSIH A3 (0. N3 IIM FIUNIQ HOT0D St NI SINCE

1
1

¥ T

- =¥

o <%

NOILySiLIv R
IEELE SR

(2 dOYa YY MepEIURas] « | Nt 8 -3
A T e
18] Py ENne 4 ,, 5 e VPt T

BUPING HHTITY 0 UONINISH] « A
AN3N4013A30 INISNOH ANY

asea|d

= gl

i g
Saale e b
) L = -

FERdi...

18}

£ “IoveaAae « 0004 8
annoksand (I T Nivocamves B8

9JI0A |euosiad

o
)
J
%)
=]
—
&
<
-
3]
®

AHAYI-LLINA

ALISNAd HBIK ~ UVLIENIVHD Ay” /N1 / e

"0
D
20
(74]
D
p—
(1%
=
(7]
<
o
=
J
yim
-
Q
e
tQ
=
=
2

{SINYVIJILEYS ¥11) dOHSHIOM NOSUId-RI + .n_czw_xgs WNLYIA AIAURS INVINO

Auadoad siyy 18 3as 0) ayi| 1gN noA pinom jeym

IS NIVA HINOS dB¥ + BY

(S1NVAIOLINYd #11) JOHSNIOM NOSHIJ-NI + ..E:N:EB IVALYIA 'AIAYAS NITNO

JAuadold siy) 18 3as 0} ayi| oA pjnom 1eym
‘1S NIV HIAOS HBY + BY

*sjysnoyy 1nof sn

(SINVAIOILYYd $TT) AJAUNS INITNO + dOHSHYOM NOSHIJ-NI ‘dOHSHYOM TVNLYIA
"3L40434 SYM YLYQ SIHL NIHM 3131400 L3A LON Sym AJAMNS INITNO 3HL ‘310N 38¥31d *QYY0E 19373S IHL 0L GIINISINd SLT1NSTY

SISATYNY V1Vd LNJW3IIVINT ALINNNINOD 1 XIANIddV



S1330KIUY

2071 £ =% juswdoenagsse
ola f‘sﬂm pendoneassen G Apnig BujwweiSold |(eH [eLOWS | YN ‘YOI IPPIN
nLs o
— apeany oL101Stf Sif] 0 UoHeALIS ] JUASSE SOYIEAIGHE S92 1y, d d
) W d Drpunverbers meu ia) ivi yeu R
D ey 2 Bsppion Baigerve g ystjanig (¢2] a
€9 e $1T sajnoy | = 0 B
Buo|e sUoE0] JByjo ul pue Y YIHLD —
130115 BY) $50498 SUBWdO[aARD -Q - (7, ]
mau a|qissod by Bujwod xeidwog jediunp S - . ?n.:-w& Juanng » a S
ﬁ.wm:omm%._o_%% M_wwﬂw”wm _.Eww_vv_s_ o wzaw o yud e = e ...“ew»_m:& un\-..m“ u.n““_h“a u.“da u““.“n»u “Burwsanidosd man ~aeds 0
poci Suipnia) I * MIED SISORIRUIRO L nWb a4 Rusuwsord ejiym ‘warjonzsues ey 0] 101 4341007 #eeals 2t apiaosd ayi ja asn-ar pue Snguweresdosd "
R - 3 =) w 2ovds moyi® ap asupaugs Buysixa ysyouway o) pnrdiooy Buppny paseasaup May poddns of worAguss LIl a u
h p— u G  2M33 AlfMAAND = = NDILYLVOY JAILV3ND "2 NOISNYAX3 g 39N-3Y TYWININ Y =
1 . _.\ sejuedosd uma) Jaujo ) = %LS =
w
O} $PI3I} JO UONB20/01 2(01SS0 o rQ
NNOY3Ad | [ X2|dus0 jediojunus mau s A A
—_—— UO{]830{81 3|GISSOd o 1e 80eds |eucfjeaida) anssed 0 0
— P— LUOLILIOD UMOL,, O jeljualod e m.
_ JI¥dS WNOILYIEITY PUE AUnwiwiod A papoddns a2eds {euojjeainal Joj PAIOA S o
— punoiBeld juauna Buidasy e SIAqUISW AIuNuIIod SO » 0 - 3
SNISAOH J18vQY044Y ) { ANROYHBAYIA _ 33Y4S WNOLLYIEI3Y m . -IUl.- a
\ L %] %91 g o
=% %l —
et INIWIOVINI ALINDWINOD = o va
Q¥v0813373S ANMOL
{SLNVAIDLLEYd P11} JOHSHUOM NOSYIA-NI + dOHSHEOM TWNLHIA 'ATAUNS INIINO m
S NIV HINGS 8 + 8 ;813Y 33s 0} ayi| nok pjnom yaeoidde ays yol (7
i ! 1S 43l ¢

SSJON :Sinsay Sutuwweisold 1S NIV HLROS H8Y + 8

‘U3LH043Y SYM VLYQ SIHL NIHM 3L31¢H0D LA LON SM A3ANNS INITNO 3HL '3LON 35v31 “qYy0qd 19373S IHL 0L AIINISTHd SLINSTY

SISATVNY V1iva LNJWNIIVINI ALINNININOD | XIANIddY



g9

S193LRIYY

m_ﬂm uC&EQO._QEQmmNS_. >U3Hm MC_EEN»WO‘_& iteH jeliowsiy | YN .:Em_uu__z
niLs
IR PHINPUOS SR HIZI3 S ITTH ALY FETHY AR e !san_.mo_.x o om i 900 .iu!.u__.___ﬂ..“.,. r.un.hhc.._u AUDII 210 U PSIRBUS SHGUAN AIUNWAIIS WORPPIN £11
A den e Ll peluy a WM MH
INISNOH 31aVaU0iY = ( ) =
mulqm "slsquwau Aunwiwoed | “Buipiing 2y jo ”.Qm
\ | 35U0asa w Auew £q paysenbas se ‘ays ay) uopipuod ayy o} anp Suwwedosd w
. T x ) m yBnoiy) uonean|d) peol ainny 1o} _ |ewiuiw Yoddns £ue pjnom pue L e
wmu_..zc .—<z=_wwumaxm m Aqe ayy anB Aew uotydo sy ‘ angpaquyoad 3503 eq kews uondo iy Wu
W. w - : ; | W w
1B0G108I3Y AU DILU URS (U AHUNMLLIOY W04 3SU0USAY - a = w _r NOHYLVOY FALVIND _ | NOLLVLVOY NIIVIHI __ ISN-34 WHINIK = B g
19YY3A34 + 0004 /YL TIVAS = =
y rQ rQ
ABUNWILOY 00 aSU0asay u
INIWKYEI0Ud /43INIT ALINAWWOD m Isau .- 7y
15 sQuasay 74 O T
aNNOYSAYId = =
74 N
PIBOGIOB13S SUodsaY 1K e o o
N3vaa3dd

1S NIV HINOS 8y + 8%
saaioy) suluwuelsold

‘1S NIVt HIROS HBF + 8F
SajoN :s)nsay yoeoiddy a)ig

03180434 SYM Y1V SIHL NIHM 3137dW0OD LIA LON SYM ATAUNS INITNOG IHI “ILON 3S¥ITd OM(Om ._.Um._mm m__._._. O.._r Dm._.Zummmm ml:Dmmx

SISATYNY V1VA INJNIIVINT ALINNININOD 1 XIANIddY



99

S193LINIEY

juswidolanagssein ‘

Apnis Sulwweidold jjeH |etoWsN | YIN ‘uol3ippIN

GHAOBIAY m
H1iNIT RINAKND 2 -w

INISHOH J19VIN0 IV

ANIWd0TIAIE MIN
+ NOILYLdYBY 3AILYIHD

-

“uogeacie: Semyd1y ainjng 0y majje Aew
awalyas sy] ‘shun Bujsnoy s|qepioye
10} 301 8Yj Uo adeds dn Suiuado ‘sprRY
|euopeaunal ayj eyedcjas pue ‘asn
AIUNWWOD 104 B)IS UO ||eH jRUOWB
ajedojes 0} sesodoud O sweyds

"0 INIHIS

[ aswameroood
L IVAZH TIVHS

| aNABYIAId “w

[ 30vas HoLtvaYaIY a

INISAOH J1EvaYBIIY

NOUVIAVOY FALVID
Hr

“48P U0 Pletf feucijeasons
12j[es 2 pue puncidfe(d sy} o} ssa00e
Suisesad “IS LRl S 8% 40 101 oeq
sy uo Busnoy ajqepioye Ksusp
#o| Supeyo ‘uaRIPRIN ) Suisnoy

aweyds

'8 INTHIS

H3INI3 MINGWHOY a
ORBOYIAY IS -w

20¥dS IYNOLIVINDIY - -

ISN-3]W WAINIA

"AUALING Pesn St 3
se ‘sie)sdn ay} uj SadNo jeuolssejaid
pue Jool] puncid ay} uj ajed |jews €
yum BujwiwesSosd paee-Aunwwod

¥ INIHIS

‘IS KIVA HLAOS ¥8% + 8

saaioyg suimweldold

o
(=3
=
&
g
o
=
=3

=
3
&
-
=

[

d
J
o
rQ
J
Y
=
=4
=
(7]
L=

uoissnasi

‘03140434 SYM V1¥Q SIHL NIHM IL3TdW0D 13A LON SYM AIAUNS INITNO IHL 310N 38YITd "QMYO0EG 10373S IHL 0L QFLNISIHd SL11NnSTN

SISATVNY V1Vd INJNIDVINI ALINNININOD

| XION3ddV



s}nsay AaAiIng auljugQ



5123LIHIMY

g9 znT

RS
&

W.v% . Apnis Buluweldoid fjeH [B4OWBIA | YIN ‘UCI{PPIN

JjsumQssaulsng g« oddojdwy [edpiunjy "3 IdqWIDN AUNWWOD 1) juspisey Y

JBqUWB BE:EEOO;.,O ~

%E
safodw3 jediounpy -3
Y

JaumQ ssauisng ‘g

T~ %ls
JUIpISAY Y

sasucdsay 06

¢NOA 818 oy

WHOFLOr WQYSF ATLIFNIA FHY STOVNI ISTHL WO WHOSLOT
NO 3SI0Y3X3 SIHL 04 WHOA1YTd AFAYNS ¥ 43S Z1T 0IdnN.Ls

SL1NS3¥ AIAUNS INITNO Viva INJNIYVIYNT ALINNANINOID

¢NOA J¥Y OHM

| XION3ddV



YCENTE

69 2n- juawdojoragssen ‘

Apnis SulwwessSold |jeH |elLIOWR | YN ‘UoI3|PPIN

saUUL 19410

osM |le1@y "3 | oS epueplsay 'y o8 [edpluniy ‘D | aBmienagig pooq -  Buisnoy sjqepioyy g BulwweiBaid Ajunwwo) ©q  eodedg uadQ / 95 [BUOHEBIOBY D

WHOSLOr WOYA A1LI3HIT 3HY STOVINI ISIHL WO WHOH10r
NO 3S1383X3 SIHL 04 WHOLLYTd AFANINS ¥ d3SN ZN7T QIANLS

S1TNS3Y¥ AIAUNS INITINO

Aydwg 7 ~sesuodsoy 9L

¢Buissiw UO1BIPPIA S! 1BUM

¢ONISSIN NOLITAAIN S1 LYHM

ViVd INJNIIVINT ALINNNINGI

| XION3ddV



S1T3LINIEY

oL 2N71 juswidojaragsse ‘

Apnig Sulwwieldold ||BH |BMOWSI | VIN ‘U013 PPIN

sepue ey es() [edpunpy |
{sHun g| uew ssef) Buisnop Ausus( Moy | eBrisasg g Poo / |IE}RY |[EWS P | SBOWYQ) [BUOISESjOId "F | Jeed Ajunwwio) f  punoiBAe|dH)  uopeedey g

%S %9

%9

\__/
“\ x

%gL

62

%9z 7 90z

Aldwg ¢ ~-sesuodsay 981

¢Auadod sy} 1e 23S 0] a3jl] NOA pjnom 1BYM

WHOILOr WOYHS ATLOFHIG FHY STAYINI ISIHL "WOD WHOH10r

¢ALd3d0dd SIHL LV 335 0L M1 NOA QTNOM LYHM
NO 3SI943X3 SIHL 404 WHOALYTd AFNYNS ¥ GAS ZN1 OIANLS

SLINS3Y¥ AIAUNS INITNO ViVAd INJNIIYVINI ALINNIANIINOD 1 XIANIddY



c (D e
Als =

Apnis Bulwwessoid ||eH |elJOWBN | WIN ‘UOIBIPPLIN

salue Jayln

WHOHLOr WOYHS ATLOFHIG FHY STAYINT ISTHL WO WHOH101
NO 381083X3 SIHL Y04 WHOLLYTd AFAINS ¥ G3SN 217 0IaNLS

SL1TNS3IY AIAUNS INITNO

BusnoH . By UBYD'g  qnD/ER°Y  (SHUM +09) [BRUSPIsaY Aysusp-yBIH D

Aydwy ¢ -sasuodsay 161

¢Auadoid ||eH |euoway 8y} 18 28s 01 3| 1 ON NOA pjnom 1BYymM

¢AL¥43d0dd TTVH TYIYOWIW FHL L¥ 33S 0L IHIT LON NOA QINOM LYHM

ViVd INJNIIVINT ALINNININOD ‘I XIANIddV



S193L4H3Y

ot

zL ZN71 & =y juswdoenagssen i
01a %4 2
nis -
seujua JIey10 ssoloe B 0B gg o)y aAeY pue umop Buip|ing Joouy (Buluweibold moeu Joy 96e100) a1enbs asow splacid o} jJuldioos Bulp|ing oy} asesioul) uolsuedx3 g

*’|inq 1o Buipjing sy} Buneoojas Aq Jeype speoe) oUOSIY Y} JO 19j0RIBYD By} Bulaiesald afiym ‘uoljonnsuco mau Joj eoeds mMoj|e 0} ainjonuls Buisixe ay) ysijouwap) uoneidepy aanesl)d O
(eords 8} Jo asn-2J pue Bulwwelbosd mau Hoddns 0} UOJIBACURI [EWIUIW B) 25N-3Y [EWIUI Y

%Pl

%8 L
€L

Ll

EL

LS

¢Auadoud |jeH [eLowa 8y} 18 88s 01 8| NoA pinom yoeoidde 8 1s Yoiym

WHOSLOM WOHS ATLI3HIT 3HY STV 3SIHL WO WHOSION

¢ALY3Id0Ud TTVH TYIYOWIW FHL 1Y 43S 0L IXIT NOA ATNOM HIVOU¥ddY JLIS HOIHM
NO FSI043X3 SIHL 403 WHOALYTd AFAYNS ¥ 435N 207 0IANLS

SLINS3¥ ATAYNS INIINO ViVa INJNIIVINI ALINNNINOD -1 XIANIddV



S1I3LINTHY

My
& m_wm Wnaw pontmasEn g Apnis BuiwiwelSoid j[eH [eHOWIA | VI ‘LOIBIPPIN
nts

g8 OZ.

Adwig g -sesuodsay g

¢(48Y) 21s sy} 18 JUsWdO|SABP JOJ MO|[E O] 2I8YMBS|2 PRIBD0|BJ SP|81} [BUOIIBBIJ3I Y] 8385 01 3i| NOA PINOM

((487) 3LIS SIHL LV ININ013A3C
T Mo 2510 S S S HOSOAOr 404 MOTTY 0L 3¥IHMISTI QILYO013Y SAT314 TYNOILYIYITY IHL 335 0L HAIT NOA CINOM
NO 3S1043X3 SIHL H04 WHOALIYId AFAYNS ¥ 435N 21T 0IANLS

S1INSIY¥ AIAUNS INITNO ViVd INFNIYVINT ALINNANINOD 1 XIANIddY



SI03LIHINY

w207 w,.

., m jJuswidojanagsseiy ‘

oia iE Apnis Bulwwesdoid ||eH [HOWSIA | YIN ‘U0IBPPIN
nLs -
- g m:n...u:mto: _,.vmm:m m._.= o} m:.ﬁwm moum ,mcz.ﬁ?..., 0} 11001 OU [F]3I0 E.,.m;ox .mm.uE.mn_._ Em_nmEE._ spaay E:«u_._:mm::_uv:m m_“_m.o_ mmm; L
i ‘puR|HUA MBU JLERE AIUNILLIOD tI] PO By "UOLSPPILY §0 LUBLD Pi0 3] BARA ] "DIJRIL OW PPR JLOD 2Se3;
1 weboud

J2LEWUNS 10) 1S JgIssod 10 35N [BLARRAI03) 10} Gaay "RBAYSHOWAP AG 10U PIN0YS 3| ANLNLLWIOS INO JO WIS RDG) |RIIOISIY B SI [|RH L]

q0ds 1eab @ ag pRosm s 'L Wi 1Rl By
A YBNOIYE 3a1P 1SN 10U DUR BOL3|PPOA OF ALIOD O) LOSEAI B 4Ry AJRNIOR URD J[d0ad JUSUM RAIE UMDIUMOR B RAIU Ajsjeiadsap am

NS IR UAIPlIYD

HNOA 10 JASIN0A BN 100URM ¢ 1L 30 PUS 0) PUD ti0)] yjM OF ABPIGR 3U1 10U 521LSD LAAGC) ANI} B 10U S1aIBL | "SI} J0 1iRd SB AJUNUILIOS
Sh J0 AGR|EM U PUE 5ASIAIBS UMOL SA0ILLI O} SPAAL LOBIPPHA 1AIUBD IMO] BIOAR 0} S2IN0L BAIRLIBLE 4295 BIAINLILLIOD 58 Duaip
S83|402] PUR DIPRIL JC SCN ¥IRG PASSEL aUL U1 4511 1B 30 [iA USUR{ID INO Mmo|iaa0 e sy BuIssaippe ou pug siun 0% Buippe ag

“SSO J# PRIO{dXa 3G PINOYS PUR B3PI A|GRUOSEA1 B S¥ SPURDS Ayiadond uefiey R0 AL o)

2yl ybnoIyt 193N U0IRog W) 2yjen Buinoal Algissod Jo Rap: 3l "FALILLINSD §1 LONN|OS 1a4aq @ iun Buiag Ak ay) o soeds
U0 10§ RIIR AY] SZIIN PUR LMOP Y IRa] RINOYS LMO) AL ] LONS 0P OF ASKLOLL YONLL 003 1803 PInom 3 BLIPING Jua4n aty) syl asedinday
0} UMOT U3 JOj 3L a0 PO 31 APYA, “PACO|dasp i Apadoid seapliny asuo aniom 136 Ao jis pUB YN 00} 51 Legsativos el |

1 S00US PAISILAD PIY SLLOS 10 UMD} Ui AJa)Eq B aAC; PINOM

L “UI3Y) SPIN OUM PUR J0J PASTN SPAl) 330UL IRYM 2INS 10U W]
‘SRIRAIDE

L PaIE|al Joopur 10§ BLIPHAG [jBY uso] 3y Bizyin AG 380 |RUOIJERI08] pue ALRNUWILLOD S} PURCXT “RaIPAILIE [RUONPANAI J0f Buwied pur
sy1ed Bunflem ‘ogazeb 11aou0 ‘pjey #2005 'puncibised 10) paysIqRISS APESLR A0RdS |UDIHESIINI UMO] [RIUSS SIY] 109101d PUR BAJASRLY

‘BaR
L Ay U U0AISAHLED PUR JYYRI) AY) AZEII AJLO PINOM BUISNOY [RUOKIRDY AJUaLIND MOY) JUJR] LA PA1SatiLed A1aA si uonsanh Ui eale 3l )

L WAES SN dAy PO PUR APDEAY ‘SISAUREQ O Y LN} JUOQ AFUNILLLGD P3JUN0 Ajtle) PUR lIN)NaLBE UR S UOJAIPRIA JO LWORYD 31|

L "SOIIW G SR 10U PINOYS SAUP Al BUO ¥ 'L/AO] JO IDILSD 3U) Ul SR I0LWAUR PRaL {ON 0T &/

sasuodsay eyeq

ESIUBLILLOD |RUGHIPPE AUy

WHOALOr WOHS ATLIFHIT FHY STOVYWI ISTHL WO WHOH101 mH Z m _>_ _>_ O Q .._ < Z O _ ._._ h_ m_ <
NO F8/0Y3IXT SIHL 04 WHOLLYId AFAHNS v d3SN 211 0ldNLS

S11NS3¥ AIA¥NS INITNO ViVd LINJNIDVINT ALINNNIINOD -1 XIAN3ddV



S193LiKO¥Y

Apnig 3uiwweldold ||BH |e1OWS | YAl ‘UsI3|ppIN

JH g b A VAL M §T Gy faeR st (A1 IS S s OS] St ANy BAATE GF Sopaustaneane LMy AMIES S34 HALe ALV LSt e fias S by N[ f i |

t HAPAUNE AGIIEN 213 J0 IS L PUR LT SIS Ll BA] 01 3|BPIOJJR AIBUMOU St Aialj]

‘1§ uoyseg on
MOHR DUPY 451 B 1 3LUSSE 8y} IR ARFU10T DUR R {RUCILUSPY O3t MOLR DUR 133 2 3ary 0} yBinoy abiueys o) asey pinom uogaasisiu

L IBL IR SibI a1y 1830 A PIN0M S3SSALISNG JJBLLS O} ING Juay dijeniselp pabupyd 10 BBYSI|OWED aq O i JUBM JOU BINOM | 1N "Sapod
BEwpiing wasna yiim dn daay o} apisu: pazaiuapolu Guiaq Buippng a4y puiLL JUp | "paAlasaid UMD Sl Jo A10JSIY al} &3S 0] AA0] DINOM |

Y 104 SAoRAS JNIINRAN ‘AAIS5R | LRiweL d)sy pinom 1Ry SAnodtl mauy | 0)a "suapiel diosuas Aysing
I "uapieli a0Rag B uONERRALL 10 BEOY 10§ SUonals "stied Husiem Huixejnl jo S)yauaq jelUaLw PUR LLESY Ay USRS aary | (SpIy SN 10}
(onuas BUDURD Aa:}) S3133 AUl bl Buppng Sy pasoy | YEnoL)|e 'os 3f (sreda) tolews Bupaau) Jd Asuow # 51 Buip)ing auj plo} Uasdq asry |

L "LIBLD LALG] {[RLLIS S1: )50} S8 LOL3| PP

“ATY0 MU PURIG [AJINR3G |NJAPHOM € SP3L B34S URSLL JUSI0P ) "SHEISUMOP SHIO0M SSa0utd sy}
t BSNRAA 130M "LOYR| PRI LBY) 3ORYS SI0M YINLL Ul 332 3{jPY UAMO] AUIS B3l abueyod o) Buwpiue 10§ Paall 06 Si Il S8 AlLES il )l daay

i “as4n0D 3jobi plo ayz e uo Buiob Hupiing [RAILNW M3 S 0) SP{RI 3L} 3/0W

HOR3IAE WO aYY U 818 © 30 PINOsM 37G OF Mp | { B IAG PIOLR LIRS 3M [ULRY 10 aHpug DIBeL 1 §1 315H | "UBD aMm
1534 S8 DRI} DIENDS LOBIPPIA NG UYL 0] PAat 5% 212 A{1IURIIPIL "SHUNP 'SYURG PSaU LUSP ap4 onss1 abny e 51 dyje.) 2sieal aq §3197

UMD} SUYJ JO 1SR1 A} Yim 2BPIIMOUY LA} BIRYS

pue AjnunLOa 10was syl aliebua o) Arm LRa.6 8 ag pinom 3] 1eang 4108319 Uo ipAa SUBPIRL Y1 01 JejiLLs ‘30RdS Uaplrl ABUNWWDD

e sdeyiad 'pialy 133008 I} J0) §¢ "SINISS 3594} Jo SUOLiEd Jo WU 13ELR] B 0) 3[ISFAN0R 20N JBY RARAS SIY) SYBLY DSIE A }} 'B0RdS

BBIR| YO & CIUT IACM JM S3TAIRS 10daNs Hatd PUR S101U3S AU pur a5R100) 2Jenbs assuUadya ALLOS UBR(DAI IM LUOSIDNASUOD 2010

1 (RO MR 31 UOAISAD 1JUAG PINOM SUj) 05 '35IN0D Jiob PO 3YL 18 151U mOIunul M3 i) Jo) suRid s Ul paonpai Ajueapubss
ua30 ApRH(e S8y sdnoih 3831 01 PIIRICKE 30RdAS Al | YSUNOY 0} SEN0IE AS3Y) JO YIRS Joj ot 36 Auad saey pur puetspurib

pue soads usaill 'syjed Huiyjem AU} O} SSHI0R 'SIOIES [BOC| A1) 10} 559038 puB Bunied Jo Ajuaid apraosd jpm 1 “Aljugg pon g uo3|IpPRIN

Ayl pue BBy UO #0UN0Y ATURY JOILS UCLAIRRIA AU) JO BLUCY Mau ayl awionag pinoys Buipiing aijua 314} "AI0jsn} LMoY iNo jo

AI0UI BSRI3 O] UOSPas BUIRaduiod O §1 31y | PAAISaId A PINOYS AININIS A '3SNOLOOLDS LOTSIPPIA (BUSBIIO ALY SR SIyY TRY) UANG

i1rasth aq o pinom punaibded palrpan uy ~asau; WU By
L 23Ry pur jo; funjied B sARMR 52131 ] Ja1a0) ALI0D O] AUBAIaAD 10} RIIUMILLOS 13IUSD AJUNUILGD 18840 @ a5N AjRal pINOD UM3|PPY

{i919(08SQ0 IR SPROI B83L | "§910AY Wb ajdi nus yBRou Builiem Jo pan s

3 Aayy asneaaq aw ayi e 514N ay) ubnon Mofq S18D JUOIDASISIUE BOUM 3L} }0 APNIS SR LIdBPR-UI LB PFBU B ‘15114 "UGIIBRYS DRI
= snopuanoy Angase ayl o) BUppe aos Buiapia 10) LIGOL DL LA 1SA3MOY "$apeiiidn 21RIpsLLL SE3IL DINIONIHSRIPN pUR SPROS 3831 |

FSIALLWIND [BUOnIpPE AUy

WHOALLOr WOXYS ATLIFHIO THY STOYNI FSTHL "WOD WHOAL01 w ._. Z m _>_ _>_ O O |_ < Z O _ .—. _ D D <
NQ FSI0H3XT SIHL Y04 WHOALYId AFAUNS ¥ JISN ZN7T 0IANLS

S11NS34 AIAYUNS INITINO ViVvad INJNI9VINT ALINNININOD -1 XIAN3ddY



S133HTEY

aL Z2n7

mw juowidojanagssepw ‘

ola 8.4 Apmig Bulwiweidoid ||eH [BOWS| | YIN ‘UOIR(PPIN
fils
N UDRS ASNRD pinos 1 $1ad0sd siyp ylinoiy g9 Buwiina o 2apl aL LIRLSILS (N OP 3SRy "AABL AJILALING 3M 350 WARISAI/Sak0| U
1 JUSLIND 3} UBYL 20U LONLL AG D8I} 3SR3100 JOU PINOM S1 | "SIUALILIEOR [BULUIL IO 33040 IRUG:SS3J0.d SB Y2NS ALLIOOUE SAGNIUDD

3ieiaual 0] G0RAS [BJUSL 100 PLADIS BUL SHULP 101 PUR {03 SXIRUS LA Sauidoew BLipuaa AQisso ‘aeudosade abe s40) qies piy
saBuncd 10} #aIE 3jRIR0aS SHRYD/SA(R] YRAS00) SHURD 398)/PIR0G {3 [2UOIEAI0 (DOPLI ARUNLILLGD SYELL 100(] 354y 3l srEinoy)
AN "8I3L10 BE (jam 5B Laty o) 3BNY 39 PINom 30eds JOOPL) JSUIEAM JO SSI{PURERI BAIR JOORINC S4]} 0} 240 PRAY LAI U0 A3L |

100LIS JNYR PUR SARD JBY U0 5PUBIIBGLINY PUE SIURIRG Yoed Aal] SUBS1/SUASM] J0) 4(|BI0A0Sa BARMS |RLOIRRIAA SO FI0W DAaU 3

"8 UNRaoal pue yied Busixs syl Aeme Moy} 10U 0F 'U0dn papuedxa 3G piNouS PUR PURGS 3:9M

L S5 [BUOHERINA] JO) LONNIAXD PUE UL [SB "3SN ISILAT AJLNUILIGD S0y LH@IRY "3US SUf) 1R 95N [BIUAPIRGI 10 [RIJILILIOD 335 JOU Op |
L pageya: 150 Uem Aue Ui PaISNR 3 10U PNOYS B OLOYSE st Buippag sy |
L ARs AUB W1 PRIBHE 30 J0U PINCUS SPISING 811 UtIA|EMN 30 aidatexa Buleys e 51 Buppng siuy]
L i
20| pull 31rad pinom sEaW 201136y Ayl jo doj uo® Buisnoy a101 AUy Rime 51 4ep )

1 10 S3UM UBTIAD IR DIRA 24} 19115 10IS0] J0 WAPISAI B S UMO] §0 131L1aD AL Us uoII5aHUDa A10UT ASNED PINOM (YL BulgtAuR 1sUIeBy
i TRM URD SINRE 2I3UM RAIE 3JRS B |} 0S8 NIRGA 1 MO} JIYRIT 103348 10U 0} SR 0F JUAUII0(RARR | Rk 194aJd |
BB JEOUL YL UANGY YT ADIACIE [JIM JRLM

1 129 PIN01 01 SI2AULOD IR pRos # AUpling pue 3iMdnis a3 BuiySHOWaq "SIUSPISAI UNIBPPI |2 10} ANSSI BUO JAQNU AL} & DUjRl)
1l GOUF Ba3)0 ‘SYRID UR 'BEDA ISN ALUNULILIOD 10} 30RAS 338 O} %Y PINOAY ([RIUBDISSI O
‘sjuRIColaARp Buisnoy

L 210U AUR JuRsM LU0Q | "AJ2URRIB PUR S35 20} 0RAS ) 4a9Y PUR UMOP WO} 3301 10 $1 ARUALING § ARM AL yday 184 pa 1| @98 0] 3y PINOAs |
cpausddey

¢ 12U ofie sieaA ssodind si 10j 439ao0id 1EROQ Aq "Le 10) PUR A0UC WiAQId JlYRL Ayl IN0 UANEIRS puUe 76 BUIADW YUM DIBWI0) 67
[ROIIDRIC WIS WRLLINEW a4} 0} Buip)ing jewbun ay) bulsiasald Jo juaut

1 H3IM ALIBD 3G PINOYS 310 LINS 1YY [39) ) NG "33N PEDUBILI BLR 135 O} PAIND3I 3 [ SBLRPIAN/SLONRACK] SLUOS JR1) PLE}SIA0UN |

“Buipling Ay Jo a1M0aRy0IR ay) SAREAId BIYA HIOM LOREI0IRAL 10ddns Aliny | panasasd 35 PINOYS YOILM BINIBYIYME a1015H 40 soald
IyinBag e s1aiy | paiepiew Apadosd s1 Buip|ing ay) s Buo| SE 10 pasn §1 A1ad0Id By IRYM 0) 52 SUDILIGO HUOAS AUR A4RL Al|E) 140p |

£SIUBLLIWOD [RUClIppE ALY

WHOLLOM WOHA ATLOIHIA FHY STDYIWI ISTHL WO WHOLL0r m N3N _>_ O O | < N O _ .: gy
NO 3SI0Y3XT SIHL 404 WHOALYTd AFAYNS ¥ dISN ZNT 0IANLS

S11NS3Y¥ AIAUNS INITINO ViVvad LNJNIYVINT ALINNININOID 1 XIAN3IddY



S133LHTHY

m 2N juswidojanagssey ‘

Apnis Sulwiwesdold j|eH |ELIOWSN | VI ‘UoI3[pPpIN

L “530Rds §18)34 10 sBuip|ing s Rde JuRIb Ou 3584 "DiYRII AI0LL AIRBID
|14 32y JauuRLy 8 Uk AJiadoid Sit 28N 10t op 3seajt ‘sELPING [RIZ4ALILL0D PUR |IRRLRPISAL Mau et Buplab ag jpm seanalbivy 12y uang

L "pUR| UOHREAASLION P BRI LIMO) 3] SARY 10 ‘PaIRAGUS] BLIPING S &1 pjnow. |

L BIUED ISHIE AANRRID B AnARw
‘SHNRE PUE UURRYD Bunes LogRaInss 10) paaaseid aq pINoYS aseds SIy) WNILILWORLOD i0 [BIU-Slun BUISHOY [@RISRISS U APInnsqy

'you Buab SALOALLOS 'ALOP NPNR LR ALEY RINOYR aA (O ABLIOW 1RY) [jR S30D BIAIM AIQRDPISUCD UMD 8L ISR X} AL} IPROAR
150d Ay} J3A0 UORINISUOD 311 [|B YA "PAOCIAASD JjB S 1t 310J30 USIIPRIN JO AIHl| B aM135a14 aInieu 0} 328q of 0} Aladald [jrYy jrpuCLLIBLY
AL} PUR J1BG1 MO(I2 PUR 193115 a4 550108 Aladeoud seogabiuy ay) Ang JROGE MOH JB) 65 3UD Jey) uo fie) aoid (R]0} ) 0} PAPPS LOPIWNES

1A J0 %06 jO SBAIOU| UR 1SN{ “UORONASLND OU LI RABRA § 10) WEIRA 1BS 5RY UBN0G am a5n00 jiob ay) 4Bnoua an atiob aARY Sa%e )

‘paziiuoud aq pjpoys GLsnoy Aqep.oly

yo=

1 aford sy uo wndus an o) Apunpoado auy sn Buipiacid 10) BoA YuRy)

ZIP1BIE APUNUILIOS B JNOTR JELM 5i B3PI
i 1530 3Ly "SPIRIE SLf} L 2NISIND SAIPAIE LOOS 10§ UONG AL Ul S3IANIR 104 06 0 L2IpIID $0f 30adS ANUNWILLOD B Ind LIED ASLY Aqhew

‘Jiealy 0] s18abERs R0 AR jjiM NOA [njadny AN W | SjuapISas Ay} o} Buiua)si| 10) oA yusy)

"B Uey) IYER0L] 2I0W YoMy SPA3U AREST JYJRI NG "sawieliau s sty Ytiiesaino jou pjrom {anssi tig 11 21e0) aautie pue pUBSIapLn

1} gpuaq [jews ayy ed/punestifeid pres o) buiysed aonpai pue spiay pue punosBieid 3jesun ue MeaID ‘pooysoqubipu S 0F |Baraydn

{ons asnen pINom 1 “Alaaoid sigl yBno:iy Zg Huuni Jo 2apt aul LIBLSIUS | QN OP 35R3)4 "AABY AJUALIND M AST IUANISABakod L

i TUSLND 3L UEYE SI0UL YINLU AG DJBI) SSRJIDLI JOU HNOM SIY ] "SIUAIULIRGER [RILIIIL JO 530 [RUISSAY0I SB DNS SUI0dU sPontues
21R1auah 0] B0RdS (E1USI JOOY PUODASE B4} "SHULD 10Y PLUR BIOD "SKARLIS Ljim SAUORWI Buipuan A|qissod “aieudoidde abe Aoy yum spiy

12bunod 1oy PalR AlIBMSS "SRBYD/SHOE) FEGS00) 'Saiied Jjgey;piecq (91 [EUDIIESINA! JO0PUT AHLNLLLIOD AHRL 100 1813 au} :SuBinoul

A "SI0 SE jlam se WYy Jof aBni ag pinos aneds J00pU] URIEEM 0 S53|pirlias BAIE JOODING SR} 0} 13A0 PRIY LAY} USYO A3L |

"100Y0DS 124)2 PuB SABRD B 120 5 PUR|IAGLING PUR SIULEY ¥ord A3 ] "SUPA)/EUABM] 1o A[|R10adsa aardR |PUDIIRAIZSS JOOPUL AICRE PASU M

WHOLLOr WOHH ATLI3810 FYY STOVINI ISIHL WO WHOAL0r w ‘_. Z m —>_ _>_ O O |_< Z O _._._ D m_ <
NO 351043X3 SIHL HO4 WHOLLYTd AAYNS ¥ G350 711 01anLs

S1InS3Y AIAYNS INITNO ViVad INJNFIVINT ALINNININOD -1 XIANIddY



syinsay doysylop Juswagdesuy Ayunwiwios jenyip



€  Gia wﬁ% Hondoereassen g Apnis Buiwiweloid j[eH [2HOWSIN | YIN ‘UDIRIPPIN

nLs -
. Uailaauuo) axelsiaruf H d
D (D
_ o N
asn jedpuny o uolea123y 100pUl °3 m.|_u.. M
aSeianag g pood 4 o5/) jeuoiealisy ') — e
o
: (72 ]
asn ye1ay '3 as(1 [eU0/Ie31I3Y I =
-3
asn Aunwwo) ‘g 350 |eU0/3€3.433Y ") m l0| ]
j
as[) jeuo11ealray ") —_ (o)
350 Jeu013e3.129Y = D
. : JO7 183y 1€ 35() [BUO0IIL21I3Y ) [ om )
BuisnoH a|qepioyy g \_ " o.nw
. -
AEESEED (Buissiw uol3|PpIN 1 1BYM s
NG TS0 SIHL 403 oL TP 1 5 s S otz (ONISSIN NOLITAQIN SI LYHM

S1TNSIH dOHSHUOM

INIWI9YINI ALINNININOD TYNLYIA ViVA INFJNIIYVYINT ALINNININOD 1 XIANIddY



S1931iRTHY M /.qu,
2N £ = uowdopnegssen
®  0ld {:F M
:._.m

Apnis uiwiwesdold ||eH [BUOWSY | YIN ‘UcId|ppIN

2P o] "K)SUSP MOT

‘8 OF tPIM UL e
w mlul_:uxo?c
Bursnoy 3 WA

SIBQWINU N0

CPUp AWIOS 0
LD UINOA € 10 YIWA

‘Y0 1dIINCD WOHS ATLOFYIA F¥Y STOYNI ISTHL "WOI T¥YOELdIINCD
NO 351043X3 SIHL 404 QYYOEGILIHM TVNLHIA Y O3S ZN1T 0IANLS

SLINS3Y dOHSHUOM
INIWIIVINI ALINNWINOD TVNLYIA

gt H3ILNID ALINOWWOD

SLINA *09
OH
ANNYI-LEINN
ALISN3A HOMH

T e
“ 39Y43A3E + Q004
Y138 TIVINS

;aiay aas o0} ayl] nok pinom Jeym

3910/ |eU0SIad

—
®
0
744
@
in
=
=
7
<
S
=
j
[ ol
=
=
=
0Q
=
e
o

¢343H 335 OL INIT NOA QTNOM LYHM

VivVa LNJNIIVINT ALINNININOD ‘I XIONIddV



I8 2N me,..w“wm juswdojonasse ‘
olg Y.f
nLs -

Apnis Buiwiwlesdold ||eH |ellowWsy | YIN ‘Uoi3|pPIN

asea|d

suun 3usnoy 3o Jupuiyy
41 5peo) Buplied 12pisuod

U
1)
]
%
=]
=
o
=
-
o
®

(1 SLINN <09 g
ONISNOH e = =

ATWYS-ILI00 - L5 = |
ALISN3Q HOH N TYLIU NIVHD " 8013/ ¥va

;alal] aas 0} ayI| LON nok pinom Jeym

[ s
®
=
7
<
o
=
J
=i
=
=]
=
rQ
=
g
i

‘GHYOLLdITNOT WOHS ATL03HIT FYY STOVYNI FSTHL WO GHYOFLIIONQD

NO 3SION3XT SIHL 504 QUYOSLINM TYNLMIA ¥ GISN 211 OIGNLS ¢343H 33S 0L INIT LON NOA QTINOM LYHM
S1INS3Y dOHSHHYOM

LNIW3IDVONI ALINAWWOD TVNLYIA ViVa INJANFIVINT ALINNANINOD -1 XIANIddY



S133LIHIUY

z8 N

m juawdolanagssein ‘

apeae] JUMSHY Y JO (D)
(Ue0) i
ayp ur Butpping 10 Suipying sy Bugesoias

Apnis Bulwel3oid |{eH [BUOWSK | YN ‘UolajpPIA

A taypaj apese} 301SH} 34 [0 I3]2CIRYT nuesBoid mau “aoeds

oy} durarasaid ajim ‘101}30HSU0T MaL J0) 10 adejoos aienhs siow apiavsd 3y jo asn-aJ pue Juunneidond
gaeds moqle 0] aunanis Susixe ysyausg o} Juudiooy Bulpping paseasauy M3 poduns o) UONLAGUS] [BUINK
NOILYLIdYOY ALYIYD "3 NOISNVdX3 '8 ISN-3H TYNININ Y

3910/ |euosiad

813y aas

>
1
o)
w
3]
o=
13
=
»n
<
Q
o
J
g
e
o
e
oQ
=
e 03 9)1] NOA pinOM yoroidde ayis yatym »

‘AYY0ELdIINOD WOHS ATLO3¥10 Y SIOVINI FSTHL "WOD QYVYOELdTINOD

NO 3SI943X3 SIHL 403 QHVOSILIAM TYNLHIA ¥ G3SN 2117 0IGNLS ¢3Y3IH 33S 0L INT NOA QIIOM HIVOUddY ALIS IYHM
S11NS3Y JOHSHYOM

INIW3IBYINI ALINAWINOD TVNLYIA ViVd INANITIVYINT ALINNININOD -1 XIANIddV



s}insay doysyiop Juawasesuy AJunwiwio) uos.iad-uj



EYCENTEN

a3

& i d asseiN

v8 wﬁ__m % n._% HusEorEns ‘ Apnis uiwwei30id ||eH |MOWS | YIN ‘UCI3|PPIN
nLs o

—

~otked /\\\VEQJ

owoiNeG T
AN s k

i Creevs

O
D
J
(72
=
=
X
=
=
O
D

Y
Bunnweigold funuwwod “a S 6552 Snl
—OPV3,) \wéisu -
aaeds uadg
/@S] |euonesday -9 Wéﬁmi V) ESE
3 —, qu(\ﬁ \QBB J St@?ﬁ% =
uISNoH 81qepioyy g ‘e - : -

B
@
Q)
»
@
o
=
7
-<
=
=
J
o
=
=
=
0Q
=
=
i

asf) [eHuapIsa) u._ﬂ_mw, ﬂ «.\w u _wm_E _._O“—m _ ﬁ—u _ E w_ “—NF_ ;

(SdNOYD NI) (ONISSIN NOLITAQIW SI LYHM
s11 d

ALINDNOD NOSHTd-N1 2OV IN3 Vivad INJWIHYINI ALINNWINOD | XIANIddY



uuuuuuuu

ev
.H%m Juawidoleragssen ‘

10
@
SDON
nadl
fw

Apnis Buiwwes3oud ||eH [RLOWBW | YIN ‘UOIBIPPIN

asn jedisiuniy v

adeianag 3 pood 4

asq j1eysy 3

Sunuwelsold Apunuiog g

gaeds uadp
/8s[] [euonesioasy 9

Buisnoy a|qepiogy ‘g

SL1TINS3Y¥ dOHSHYOM LNIWIIVINI
ALINNINWOJ NOSH3d-NI

X0 ﬂs@ Of e

Tmfm IO &

(@) [ad

e

i gdéc pea| o 2T

//
Lo SV
oy S e w@@

M
Ssap P €40
v,.itlwn?\ou NDM X t?/@v P_n }@j\T\_}D

MVOT ,)93 QS% s+ Q

D u/r_

e M e [
Y
%RW §<ﬁg§u¥ J\T\uvsﬁswgsjsai

G

éé\powy \@__V“_sem\; 05 g@«\aO

)SNu WO #;Oml

7&3

Viva LNJNFIVINT ALINNININOD

Ejaom e JQOB% TQ_QS\Vl
Jguissiw uoja|ppiN st Jeym

U U
D@
“w wn
(¢
. O
I
—
ml
-
mm.

% = ¢

oIl =

/ oQ
=4
»

(SdNOYY N (INISSIW NOLITAQIN SI LYHM

‘| XIAN3ddY



S1331HUY ety
2N g uowdonegssen

B 0la Yes N
nls

Apnis Sulwwel3old |jeH {elIOWa | YN ‘UoIBPPIN

asq jediauny g

agdelanag % pood 4

asn 1elsy '3

duunuersord Apunwuiog g

aoeds uadp
/ 850 [eU0aIa8Y "9

SUISNOY a|qepioyy g

S1INS3Y¥ dOHSYYOM LNIW3IIVINI
ALINNWINOD NOSY¥3d-NI

i,
1%
-
%,
=
=
o
—

u\«@kwwm.wwwh\.@:\%ﬁ\ o1 M Jordou afy daaly -

mn oY) ) syt S 03597 09 sord =

93910

SPY .@ AR SR uQQ_M,:t...

\ p
¢BUISSIW UOIBIPPI SI 1eym

(SdNOYI NI) (ONISSIW NOLITAQIN SI LYHM

ViVd INJNIOVINT ALINNININOD ‘1 XIAN3ddV



uuuuuuuuuu ,.-._EJ.
I 6
als =

juawdojenagssepy ‘

asn [ediajuny 9
adeianag ® pooq 4
asq jieysy '3

Suiunneidold Ajunwuio] g

aaeds uadg
/.3s[ jeuonealaay ‘9

JuIsnoH a|qepioyy g

S1INSIY dOHSMYOM LNIINIOVINI
ALINNINWOJ NOSY¥3d-NI

Apnig Sulwwesdold |jeH [eLIOWS | VIN ‘UoI3[ppIN

o

e e & MW - L ]
B Anats: AN

1l |

) g Y
!
/

bt
=1

\_ T e )
Z8uIssiw uol3|PPIN SI 1eYM

)
)
7
®
=i
=
=
7]
<
=
=
J
pojn
=
o
=
UQ
=
g
i

(SANOYY NI) (ONISSIW NOLITAQIN St LYHM

ViVd INJNIIVINT ALINNWNINOD I XIAN3ddV



S193LINIEY

A,

e
= m_um fﬁm yodoEmsasen g Apnis Buluwiwed3oid |[eH [BIHOWSI | YIN ‘UOIRIPPIN
nits

Y "0

@ (D

—~ DSu e

o

-~ O

®© =

-

e =
) wn

< <

Bunuweioid Mununuo) -q SEIEE@&. U 0) — gy m m "

aaeds uadp w M\N\Q\v \\\:\\Q —i= 0

/.8SM] [eUonReaiasy ‘9 A0 hyy — A ULE Pl wl a
SUISNIOKH Bjqepioyy g ( \ =
rQ
P Ete =3
| e Y ;Suissiw uo3|ppiN S! 1eym 7y

(SANOYD NI) (ONISSIN NOLITAAIW SI LYHM

ALINNNAOD NOSHad-N) VA0 VON Vivad INIWIDYINI ALINNININOID 31 XIANIddY



uuuuuuuuuu

oy

=2,
68 mmm wr%“ jusuidojenagssen I Apnis Sunwwesold [eH [RLOWRA | YN ‘UOIR|PPIN

asea|d

- )

asy [edisiuny 9
aseianag 3 pood 9
asn ey 3

Sulunweidord funwwos g

aaeds uadg
/ 851 |euoneaiaay -9

d
@
J
%
=
=
X
—
i
o
®

duisnoy ajqepioyy g

"Sjysnoyy 1nok sn ||a}

{(SdNOYD NI) (ONISSIW NOLITQAIW SI LYHM

R Lons aaaevBN3 v1vd LNIWIDVINI ALINNNINOD ‘I XIONIddV

ALINNIWINOJ NOSY3d-NI



$133LIHDEY

\
¢

£ SOSSEW
06 ma__m L ﬁam . ‘ Apnig Bulwiwessoid |[BH [BLOWS | YIN ‘U0IR|PRIN
nws -

g el ]
3OVH3IA3E + Q004
MIYL3Y TIYIWS T

ey

gl HIINID ALINNWINOD '3

NOILYINDINH ‘a

S1INS3Y dOHSHYOM LNIWNIIVINI
ALINNINWNOJ NOSYH3d-NI

DI ) =l

iy AT

ﬁ\,\ﬁ_\;iﬁb\ N0 oy~ F0 WCQ\/&

= Bl
= : $321440
TYNOISS340H8d '3

U
@
J
%
=
=
R
—
e
O
®

SLINO +09 ’
INISNOH i SLINN GaST B

AUWYAALINW DNISNOH ANVALNW |
ALISNIQ HOIH "D ALISNIQ-WNIGIN '8

>
D
)
7]
®
A==
o
=
7]
<
=)
=
J
=i
==
=
=
0Q
=5
i
0

;813Y 33s 0} ayi| nok pjnom jeym

(SdNOYY NI) (3YIH 33S 0L IHIT NOA CINOM LYHM

V1iVa INJNJIVINT ALINNININOD 1 XIANIddV



S10311HIEY

L. ™

Fo¥
6 Wq_am Wnuﬁm EmE%_mBn_mmmz‘ Apnis Sulwweidoid (e [elOWSIA | YIN ‘UsiBIPPIN
nLs >
9 U
® D
ot -
@ wm
D
= 0
_ L |
UYIATIHI H m e
-
o O
5321440 =
TYNOISS3A08d 3 — 0
=f=
= (D
o
wu_zm_r,%m & SLIND 0991
AWV ILTNIN ONISNOH ATIWYA-LLINIA rQ
ALISN3Q HOIH D ALISN3G-WNIO3W '8
—
=
¢8l13l 93$S 0} a)l| noA BINOM JBUM m\w
/!
(SAN0Y9 NIY ¢IYIH 33S 0L INIT NOA ATNOM LYHM
S1TNSIY dOHSMYOM LNIWIDYINI .
ALINNINWOD NOSYId-NI ViVa INJNIYVINT ALINNININOD 1 XIANIddVY



S133URIUY

(

PO -
e W__Jm § ,x\.‘.m. endornea ‘ Apnig Sulwwessoid ||eH |BlAOWIN | YIN ‘UCI3[PPIN
nLs

£
5

‘.

A«u\ Cnirerd Gopsorts § 9 bl wir) ES ndop &4 Gy gs v4sod Loy 3 veop o23) i

: 3DYH3IA3E + Q003
MIEEY TIVNS T

A |euosiad

. |

_..ﬂL. HILINID ALINAWWOD 3

9J10

sLNn09 f )
oNISNOH | ST 2

AINYI-ILINN ONISNOH ATIWYA-1LLINI
ALISN3A HOIH D ALISN3G-WNIGIN-8

B
@
Q)
7
@
=
o
=
N
-
o
J
=4
e 3
o
=
0Q
=
i
e

(SdNOYY NI ¢3YIH 33S 0L INIT NOA CINOM LYHM

ALINDNWO NOSHAd-N1 2 OVIN3 ViVad LNIWNIHYINT ALINNININOI 1 XIONIddY



S19311898Y

2n1
® Qiag
ALlS

sS11n

Sy
ALINONNW

mmll..v, : u:man_mEDmmmS_‘
]

Apnig Suiwwes3old ||BH [BLOWSA | YIAL ‘U013 PPIA

...._.. i

_1"  39vdan3g + 9004

MIYAIE TIYINS T

HSAYOM LNIWIIVINI

d0
03 NOSYd3d-NI

$321440
IYNOISS340Hd 3

S1INN 08-91
ONISNOH ATIAVA-LLINW
ALISNIQ-WNIT3IN ‘8

;a13y aas 0} ay1| nok pinom jeym

3910\ |BU0SIa4

"Siysnoy) InoA sn ||a) asea|d B

(SAN0YD NI ¢I¥IH 33S 0L NIT NOA QTINOM LYHM

VivVvad INJNIIVINT ALINNININOD -1 XIANIddV



S1331IHTEY

oty

v mﬂm m:.,ww u:wEuodgwnwmmS‘
nLs s

Apnis Bulwweldold ||eH [eldOWB | YN ‘UCI3|PPIN

SLINS3Y dOHSHYOM LNIWIIVINI
ALINNIWINOD NOSY3d-NI

ALISNIQ HOIH D ALISN3g-Wniaaw ‘g | INISNOH

. ﬂlw FUYOATHI H

A |euosiad |

dJI10

sunnios | .
ONISNOH ¢ SLINN D991

AWV 1EINN ONISNOH AlWyaLanw f¢

‘S)y3noy} Inok sn |19} asea|d i

£91ay aas 01 ayi| nok pinom jeym

(SANOYY NI) ¢IYIH 33S 0L INIT NOA AINOM LYHM

ViVd LNJNIIVINT ALINNININOD ‘1 XIANIddV



%6

5133LiKIHV

Zn
oia
niLs

2§

juswdolanagssep ‘

i

s11nsi
ALINNIA

4

W

d
0

Apnis Sutwiuei3oid ||BH |BlIOWS | YN ‘UCIBIPPLN

- | . al .
1" 39y43A38 + 004
E /TIVL3N TIVINS °F

OHSYYOM LNIW3IIVINI
J NOSYd3d-NI

®
J
%
=
S
X
<<
=
o
®

S1INn 09
DNISNOH

© sliNnosar
ATINVA-LENW INISNOH ANWYS-ILININ j - = dl
ALISNIA HOIH D ALISNag-WnIaaw 'a § 9K :_..,ﬁ._u,uw.._w.hr.rk.:ﬁ. \

=
@
a)
7
@
=4
1]
=
0
“
=
=
J
===
=
=
=
0Q
=
i
2

@48y 2as 0} 8yl nok pinom jeym

(SdNOYY NI) ¢IYIH 3IS 0L INIT NOA ATNOM LYHM

Vivad INJINIIVINIT ALINNININOD 1 XIANIddY



96

(ﬁ
Zn1 wi m wswidoanagssen i Apnis SulwiweiSoid {|BH [BLOWSI | YIN ‘LOIBIPPIW

O
®
J
%
=
=
=,
e
=
O
@

S1INN +09

ONISNOH
ANNvE-LINN . »

ALISNIA HDIH D =t 1VL3¥ NIVHD 8

an1d / uva 'y

-
D
o
n
9°]
=
-
=
7
<
=
=
J
4
—
o
=
Q
-
p—
>

;1Y 8as 0} ayi| LON nok pinom jeym

/
(SdNOYY NI) ¢I¥IH 33S 0L IAIT LON NOA QINOM LYHM

IR L aoHSIIOM LNIRIOVSNS V1¥d LNIW3DVINI ALINNWINOD :I XIONIddV

d0
ALINNINNOD NOSY3d-NI



»@L.Jﬁ a:mEuBmﬁommmE‘ |
wf&. Apnig Bujwwel3o.d {[eH [BLOWSIN | YIN ‘UOIRIPPIN

L6

TiA Ay da Mvigd  od

A leuosiad

9JI10

S1IND 09
ONISNOH

ATNYS-LINN . of
ALISN3Q HOIH "D - UYiII™NIVHO '8 03 anio/uva’'y

-
D
o)
7
®
—
1L
=
7
<
o
=
J
=
=
=)
=
0Q
—y
=
£

;913 9as 0} ayl| 10N noA pjnom 1eym

(SdNOYY NI} ¢I¥3IH 33S 0L IXIT LON NOA GINOM LYHM

ALINA RO oSy AR TWIVIN VIVa LNIWIOVINT ALINNWINOI I XIANIddY



uuuuuuuuuu

..z cﬁ ssepw
86 F MJ m uedoied ‘ Apnis Suiwwesdoid ||BH |BMOWI | YIN ‘UCI3|PPIN

I3} asea|d

SLINN +09
DNISNOH =
ATINVA-LLININ ¥ 2
ALISNAQ HOIH D - i Agg an12/uyg’y

—
7
<
=
=
J
=
=
=)
=
0Q
=y
=
2

;313 33s 0} aYyI| 10N nok pjnom jeym

(SAN0YD NI (I¥3IH 33S 0L INIT LON NOA ATNOM LYHM
s1Ins3y

ALINAANGD NOSIa-F1 o A2VON3 Viva INJWIDVYINI ALINNWINOI 1 XIANIddY



uuuuuuuuuu

2%
€6 m.,_._m qmwm wondoEnaassen Apnig Bulwiwessoid |[eH ellOWBN | YIN ‘UCIRIRPIN
niLs =
bt @
]
D (D
Q)
(/2] (7,
D
1 0
D pvu
———
Ce ==
72
- A
(o I
| eng——
_— 0
==
= (D
SNISNOH j = Ko o
EM-_,__RN..__.*_%_H _u : 1YL3d NIYHD '8 72zy” an1d/yvay n
Q
F=f=
313y 9as 0} 31| LON noA pjnom jeym (7
A
(SANOYH NI ¢3I¥3IH 33S 0L INIT LON NOA QTNOM LVHM
S11nS3y HSYYOM LNIWNIHVYINI

ALINNAAOD NOSH34- NI viva LNJWI9VYINI ALINNWINOGI 1 XIANIddY



.......... —
8%
F l&- 4
0oL 2N ﬂrhmm EmEanEnmmms_‘

ZF Apnis Sujwwes3odd |jeH [BOWSIA | YIN ‘UcIdIppIN
nLs =

d
@
J
7
=
=
=
<
e
o
®

’ —-5 e 1 g
4 . - . ”;bl.v... —v; \ - -
) 2 -
0 [ i 4 F 4= B Bl :
- (V.-- .... i = - e = " -..
et SLINN +09 b
23 , e

ONISNOH

>.=>M’__ew_um—”._.u_.._‘_.—_..ew s 7)vi3H NIVHO "8 & - an1o/ uva‘’y

L,
(D
et
724
D
i
4
—
w
-3
o
J
—
-
o
v
o
-
pro=e8
m\u

;a1ay aas 0} Il LON noA pinom 1eum

(SdN0Y9 NI ¢34IH 33S 0L INIT LON NOA ATNOM LYHM
S11NS3Y dOHSHYOM LNIWIIVIN3I

ALINAINWOD NOSH3d-NI ViVad INJNTIYVINT ALINNNINOD -1 XIANIddY



101 2Nn71 “Mm...w%m u:mEno_mﬁommmE‘

b Apnis BujwiwelSoid jleH [eOWSI | VI ‘UOIRIPPIN
nLs

\ U\
éfﬁ/\_%v%/ “ 005 \ WY ,&ﬁ 7@% g Qg .
Jug§ \@:Cic;
i mﬂ_ru}

A leuosiad

9310

e - S1INA +09 = ¢
T HNISAOH - —_

>PWM”_<MMH-_”—_%N_H=M 1 I3y NIYHO '8 s2is and/ava’y

=
€D
o
N
P
P
LS
=
7
-
o
-
-
-
=
=)
=
uQ
—3
pe—-"
»

;819y aas 01 a)!| 1LON nok pjnom 1eym

(SdNOYD NI) ¢IYIH 3IS 0L INIT LON NOA QINOM LYHM
S11NS3d dOHSHYOM LNIWIIVINI

ALINANWOD NOSHId-NI ViVA INFJNTIYVINT ALINNIANIINOD 1 XIANAddY



S13TUKIY

zor 2011 Wwa

€

wRwidornsqssen g Apnis Bulwwe Boid |[eH [ELIOWSIA | YIN ‘UOIRIPPIN

old
nLs

Wi \ ,\307 mj T % 33 J Onut/l Q '@’a& sayaeosdde 3y jiy.

(voneao; Ju3aIns
auy u) Buipping Jo Suipjing ayT BUNE0]a1

Aq 1ayaia) apeae} aI0ISHY i JO J3)IEIBYT Juuiwelfosd mau ‘aoells

a3 Suiriasad afiysi ‘UDIIINNSUOID MAU 10) 104 adejooy arenbs aiow apiacid ay} 4o asn-aJ pue Sujuwessond
aagds moje o) a1mans Sulisixa ysijowag 03 Junidoo) Suipjing paseaiou; Mau Joddns o] uoeAousl 1eWvI
NOILV1dVaY JAILYI™I I NOISNYdX3 4 3SN-34 TYINININ 'V

U
1°
J
%
=
=
o)
—
=
T
D

;9Jay aas

i
)
Q)
»
5]
P
15
—
(7]
-<
=)
J
=
e
o
rQ
—
_~ 0} 31| noA pjnom yaeouidde aus yaym 74

(SANOYY NI) ¢IYIH 33S OL IHIT NOA QTNOM HOVOUddY FLIS LYHM

LN WO o S NS VivVad INJNIOVINI ALINNWNWINOD ‘1 XIANIddY

ALINNWWOI NOSH¥3d-NI



S133LIHDHY

o1 20N

Apnig SuiwwelSold (e |ellows|A | YIN ‘uo1a|ppiiy

apeag; Loisiy 9yl Jo Lonea1asald awnsse ssyaeoidde ays iy,

(uoyeao] Wala
auy uy Juipping 10 Swpiing sy suyeaopal
Aq 18y313) apeaey sLIGISHY 31U JO 18JaRIBYD *Sumunesgord mau ‘aaeds
oty Buiaiasald ajym ‘VONIMIISUDI MaU iof 104 a8ejooy arenhs ajow apirosd auy to asn-ai pug unuesdoid
gords Moje 0} 31manis Sunsixs ysiowagq o} Jupidyoo) Suipiing pasealau] Mot Jioddns 6} HoneAoual |EILIN
NOILYLdYQY JAILYIHI "I NOISNVdX3 "8 3SN-3Y TYNININ Y

- -

-..-

3910/ |eu0siad

;91ay aas
0} 3)1| noA pjnom yaeoudde ays Yaym

7

=
1
Q)
(744
D
[
o
e
N
<
o
o
J
e
e 3
o
0Q
-
g
o

(SANOYHD NI) ¢IY3IH 33S 0L INIT NOA GINOM HOVOUddY LIS IYHM
SITNSIY dOHSHHYOM LN3IW3IIVIN3I

ALINARADD NOSEAd-RI VIVA INFNTIVINT ALINNININOD -1 XIAN3IddY



SIDILINTUY

207
Y Sia
ALS

&
‘m EmEquEmemE‘

Apnis Sujwiwiesgold ||BH |elHOWSIA | YIN ‘UoIeIRpIN

$11ns3y
ALINNWI

d0
03

(U0i1220] 18N
ay} ul Supying 40 Suipjing ayl Suesolal
A 194112) apeaey a110)sHy i JO 18]3€12YD
ayy Buiatessad ajym ‘UoRINSUGI Mau 1oj
aaeds Mojfe 0] sIMInNs Suiisixa ysiowsq

NOILVLdVaYy JAILYIHI 3

7

HSAYOM LINJWNIIVINI
NOSY3d-NI

apeaey aLoasty ayj Jo uonealasald awnsse sayseosdde ays iy,

‘Bunuwesdosd sau ‘aoeds
404 adejooy asenbs siow apiaosd 3y} jo asn-as pue Sviwiersosd
03 juridiooy 3uipping paseaiau) Mait Joddns o) uaeacuas jewiiuiy
NOISNVdX3 "8 SN-34 TVINININ °V

3310/ |euosiad

;alay aas

9
@
)
(72
@
=
D
o
72
<<
=)
-
J
=
=1
o
=
vQ
—
01 a)i| noA pjnom yaeosdde aus yaym 7]

(SdNOY¥Y NI) ¢I4IH 3IS 0L INIT NOA QINOM HOVOUddY ILIS LYHM

VivVa INJNIDVINT ALINNIANINOD :1 XIAN3IddV



S133LIHIEY

\@mﬁa,
& 4 jusw
S0k mﬂ_m Wﬂu%\w ! nodw?mommms_‘ Apnis Bulwweldold fleH [el4o0WBN | YIN ‘UCIRIPHIN
nLs =

apeagj 3110)s1Yy i} J0 U0NEAIS3Id ansse sayaeoidde ays (1Y,

(1013230} jU8LIN3
atyy uy Buipping 1o Supping 8y} Suneaoas
Aq 18418} apeaey JuoIsIY 8Y) J0 13E3RICYS ‘BupunuerFoid mau ‘aaeds
alyy duintasaid ajim ‘uoINNSU0T Mo Jof 10} adejooy aenbs aiow apiaosd ayy jo asn-a1 pue Juywwessond
2aeds mojje 0) ainianns Suysixe ysyjowsq 03 Juridieo) Buipjing paseaisu) M8U J100dns 0] UBIIEAOUST [RUITUIN
NOILVLdYQY JALLYIHD °J NOISNVYdX3 '8 SN-3y4 TYINININ 'Y

U
1°
J
%
(=
=
¥
=
=)
T
D

S ;alay aas
0} 3)1] noA pinom yaeolidde ajs Yyaiym

n
@
Y
»
@
o
Lt
=
7
<
=
=
j
=g
=
=
=
0Q
=
i
L

(SdNOY¥D NI) ¢I¥IH 33S 0L IMIT NOA QTNOM HOVOUddY ILIS LYHM
Yy

ALINAR NS NoSu -y NATVIN ViVa LNIWIOYINI ALINNWINOI 1 XIANIddY



& w4
oot mn_dm mf § esdemmea=m gy Apnig Bulwwessoid [|eH [eUOWR | VIN ‘u033|pPIN
nLs

apeagy 3L0ISIY 8y} Jo woneAIasald awnsse sayaeoidde ans iy,

(Uoge3o) juanns
a3 i Suipping 10 Fuipjing sy Suneaojas
Aq Jay)13) apeaes 3101s1y 8l Jo 19J9E1EYS “Buywwesford mau ‘gaeds
ayr Surasard ajIym ‘UoINNSUCT KB 10J 104 adejooy aienbs alow apiicid auy jo asn-aJ pue Sujunueidoid
aoeds moje 0] 3101an4is Supsixe ysiouag 03 Juridooy Suipying pasesaiauy M3y Lodtns o] uaneacuss [eWINIW
NOILV1dVaVY JAILYI™D "D NOISNYdX3 "9 ISN-34 TWINININ Y

A |euosiag

d9J10

- ;alay aas
0} 3yi| noA pinom yaeosdde ays yaiym

"
@
Y
»
@
g
1
=
0
-
o
=
J
==
=
=
=
0q
=
-
i

(SdNOYD NI) (IYIH 33S 0L INIT NOA ATNOM HOVOUddY LIS LVHM

FHInSaN AousAN0M LI NaBYaN3 V1va LNIWIDVINI ALINAININOD I XIONIddY

34 d0
ALINNWWWOJ NOSY¥3d-NI



S193LIHUY

Lot m__gm b W@ﬁ 1uswidoenagssei I Apn1s SulwweiSold [|eH [BLOWAN | YIN ‘U03B|PPIN
nLs o

apeae) 910)siy ay} [0 UONEAI8SaId aunsse sayaeosdde ays (Y.

(110320} JUdLINI
ayy wy Sutpying 10 Buipying ayi Suneasyal

Aq 1ay313) epesey 1101sly ay) Jo Ja1oeieyd “Furuiergoid mau ‘aoeds

ayy Suatasasd ey "uononnsSUT Mau joj 10} 93ejooy srenbs atow apiansd 3y} o 3sn-a1 pue Sujwuiesdord
aaeds mofje oy aimanas Sunsixa ysijowag 0} Junidiooy Buiping paseasou) Mmail Loddns o] voieAouss [eunuA
NOILYLdYaY JAILYIYI °3 NOISNYdX3 ‘g 3SN-3Y4 TYINININ 'Y

U
(D
J
72
o
-
o)
<
=2
O
D

;a1al 9as

9
@
Y]
(72 ]
@
gl
@
=
/2]
-
=)
|
j
=
=
=
-
0
=
0} 31} nok pjnom yaeoidde ays yaym 7

Ve

(SdN0YY NI} iIUIH 33S 0L IMIT NOA AINOM HIVOYddY ILIS LVYHM

SLINSIY¥ dOHSHYOM LNIW3IIVIN3 ViVAd INFIWNIT9VYINT ALINNININOD =1 XIAN3IddY

ALINNINNOJ NOSYH3d-NI



S133LIHAHY

201 ZN7 uswidojenagssen ‘

Apnis Sulwwel3oid ||BH [BlAOWS | YN ‘U0I3|PPEIN

- - -

A YO0 0) 5905 ) [ (4 prired G
AL 0BT 98 07y 168 TV Baeun e o 1M (L o
O ORDDI S s

AT WY W R 34h 12 1D S4) 0) ¥Ersis INOK LR S ) U0 AP 19 SRy wErerd KGEMINIPO] 10 2jeK € 3

verieisay [ vesGe]

P4 .
.| |
o M sove
6,.4#. vaymvepy weniy

Horain gy

s e, B =

L g
}

|
M
| .

1 ol

i _u

i

i owentrg L]

oa-y w1

Buuiasp v nek

FLEh}

fteray |

»2IAIBS oy

weidard yeym

Al2iens oy ay; pwag

iLlJ3LIHJYY 3HL 34

e A O 36 S UL POL IO B &
g dnt 321 4 280 B0 D b0 B 10 0 I @
R DI 8 T o

SR070 Yt 3 G ) 0 B D1 10 MO WL EIA 28 5 Lk 1 10 SN dsmagd 0GP 20 e € T

Moszediy O}

s - sy tewny |

o \ Tupdisep we nak
4 Kdawns sys 3 100ws |

i193LIHOYY 3HL 39

S11NS3y d

HSXYO0M LNIWN3IIVINI
ALINNWWO

NOSY3d-NI

0o

BINALTS [EUBISSARIY (|

@a1A13g pODS
2aemesay

Juasaidal
nok ap Jap(0yINELS
wesdoad jeym

8340 O
weloytw3 yediangy -

Jaquiay Apnunwinoy ¢

T

aneay

WY

V1Va INJINJFDVINT ALINNNINOD

Wi G

5 s _
g SN 35 0 g ek P BITLACEARS  90KL 2 8 " _

TR - A
o -,

aaInas JEUDISSY0Lg

7 ueineisay il

SRR v 3 B SYH I S0IN B 10J HOISHK 100/ VRl FEE S 1 A o M aneend Krenpiar 10 red € By .
. Booor

B0IAIAG 1RUDISS DI

sHAIAS PO0S

7 nopA op sopjoyanels
weaBosd jeym

Y ANUNUBO3 |

7 saAejdws jetiaunN o

2o uinl | )
F Abaiens 2y a0 |

ETITYEN

{RUMD SSAUSNE ¢

wapisay

i1J31IHJYY 3HL 39

“$102154 Y '§ G SUL HE AR B4 48] LBIA W04 MR ERY 205 ND AT 0 DM 23R3JG "SyEPRIAIPUI 50 198 ¥ 5Y

] 004 D0k ) R O3 DR VIR, o f

i IS 50 3 108 rom RGO f0 481 IOUH 0
PO NAPIAR 8

waERIInY ) WML

Ll
e
. .-ooo_ nEsey

BOIAIBS (RUTISSOIA <

In1ag poay
PRI L

-

dnosB Ayrumoutog |
oiduoy |

[

zuasaldal
nok op Jopioyanels
weidoid jeym

nan o
sakorw] jcdiam

R AYuowwe] |

Maeianag O

FnuBay eR ek

e Adaens ans oy 159 | sump) vsouisal

i1J31IHOYV 3H1 3

wapisey |

(TYNAIAIANT) ALIAILOY LOILIHOYY IHL 39

‘| XIAN3ddV



S19311H98Y

2Nn71
cild
nis

gv 6
601 m:. m u:mEn_o_mEommm_z‘

Apnig Buiwwe.doid ||eH [RIOWS | YIN ‘UOIR|PPIN

ﬂ
|
|
|

S 20001 AP ) Toms e s U
R VRO N
Stea0sil 30w 3 G U 6 SUNIM) BNQ 105 COELS R0 Tl AYS BYL B M 10 Ay e YRjenonamu in 4o 8 &Y

y "
: . rbeaspu] L
BRI ot gt ﬁ wapsm

T —— _ wodvpy 40002
1
o | e
i ﬂmw.. ] |
[T t {
; f
”_f:— I
. ol \ _
| U
e i hy
&
o w N
§ ot \ - -
P p S
- | Pgg O
sty tedisnw |
Y . % W Al SR Spunumeg
e \ |
5 ) o 5 Bupukisug Wi nok
h i |, Adotens eve s owes. |
P \ v

A L pune
e 3

ciasard i G ) 5 100 U0 G 0aK VR[S 4 1V 4D 0 VG HE U g 20 e 20

....s..!zf.lsui (ST
L
- -

Lo 0 e v o s
et i v 8 5L e o 1 4. Y+
i W

S11NnS3iy d0
ALINNWWOI

nafjudopy gy |

Bujud|sep 916 ok
z \ ns-... PLERETS \_
W

_._.uu._.:._uz< JHL mm

1104 0p 1apjoyayess

weafod 12ym

10 i
Huiojtwy iedauny I3

JOUUEN AUBIWWEG |

HSHHYOM LNIW3IIVIN3
NOSY3d-NI

-

£ 300801 9 Vi e S D YN+
A OO 991 8] S0 1A DO IUILWAIBLG 1O 40 (T @

;a2 Na T Sir €101 30 BATI) S} 10} DOITIA SACA USIG FHT 31T AR JO S USTR{E "AHEODIANG J0 IS G B

Supinep e 03k
ATWiRns WS A 12905 ___

A

_._.um:_._ume. JHL um

/ A\
P w00t 8 39wl S i v W
e o 20, 1) Y04 e Ruosr 0 0 184 ot YoRmsiIng s aleosian)

it o o
ol

S3ME YR ¥ Gt S 10 3uHer 34139 porsia Ml e ais oy oo we o0 ouwe asesid ‘AISARMRE) 10 el & sy .
. Heooo|

ubReER sareziy _

AviuBisap ale nok
e ey apoages |

iLO3LIHOYY THL 38

1ok op 13pjoyayels
wei3oid Jeym

)3 01N |

1awapy Rwnwsiag 1

sy )
A8 {BUDISS 0Ly -

3NAIBS JIo0g

(TYNAIATAND ALIAILOY LOILIHOYY 3HL 39

ViVa LNJNIIVINT ALINNININOD

‘| XION3ddY



oLt

S193LIKDUY

Apnis Buiuwesdold ||eH |ellOWSBN | VIN ‘uola[ppIN

jusiudolenagissei ‘
S ————
._\ MOS0 s S T 10k .\ \
b oot .
1 ] OGOV e ) B A (i S0 800 1 FLT WAL %Eﬂ‘gV\q i
_ i st .+ [

HODIV U T B 12 STRID) YL 01 010 6EH ey Lin 08K 0 CIE X0 M V9D KO 0 0od # BV

R

Juasaiday
Wy nok op 1apjouexels
wah e
’ \\\aﬂi\ 1& | = ..t..!nl‘, _ weiderd jeymM
¢ & :& Lo 4
\ i
| N
)
» s 3

Duuisey 31e nok
m KTaens vies s 199708
LN ’

il33LIHJYV 3HL 34

4 20 2006 At DI IO LY RO,
(AU N 5 0) ] O DY PO U3 g TN

ou SR I -
“RAILEG Hird % Sir Ml S0 IRV B 10) VOHIA 60K L It wig b9 4229 20 3 wreayd 'Kiremiat 0 ek € Sy

—
| vopmuoey /MepIn

B - S A

voftidery pueny |

cuasaidal
noA op Japiolsyels

Aupadisap oo ok 7
ABaeqs ifs ofs 99108
\ /

rodaraag

19U S5UISAY | ¥

S11NS3Y¥ dOHSYYOM LNJWNIIVINI
ALINNWWOD NOSY3d-NI

, iLJALIHOYY 3HL 38

4 b

ViVa LNJNIIVINT ALINNININOD

AL DN € o

V3188 ¥ B SR 10 SITACH 041 K0 OIS C16K LR 2 YL £0 AR 20 Wb e IO 20 108 ¥ Y

)
uapeansay yengny |

FES

S -
ol oons
veanidenysipew

- W

YIG |

BeIsY i
AMARG [TUmSsEnid )

23IBG po0y

_ nof op J2MOYDIEYS
weBoxd jeum

BTy we qod
Axaqmns aus sy joajes |

Aﬂq.‘vs 4ttt 4
o e ) w50

“foy WYY ndvud fremar pre U VI Coep gy o
Yup) = A rereibhad g vz vyl -

-~

ilJ3LIHJYY 3H1 34

kiis.:&;.f._c.xtys.
Y A 60 ) v, s e VIR 19 208

s TGO N
_ SIS UGN T O U 9 HANY) 741 M UOISIA S70A BN THlS I 20 K21 20 3l I5aE Ayrapingyy 1o e € Y

—
)l
R

ol
e — m— 1]
- o _ "
_ A
} \
4 \ E
' \ *, o
- s
4 (porrmI3n) ! =
\ 1 G Rl BV
S - \
h

S N

<,
\
\Hﬁes:gasi
»
. -

yap
.
. ...oo ney .
HOQRMERY PN 018108 JLLOISSS0X] 7]

aamiag poay
PR, LIUT S

| dnasd Kyununwo) |

nof ap 13pjoyaxels
wesdoud leym

ELUTI
safojdiog jedamng :

lurey Gwnwiwon

A¥arens ays @i 023 |

dofakag o
Buwisap 2@ nas _ 1M01RARG 23

AURD SSONISAY : |

{193LIHOYY JHL 39

(TYNQIATANT) ALIAILOY LOFLIHOYY IHL 39

‘I XION3ddV



Lt

S103UtHIEY

2Nn1
0i1d
niLs

Apnig Suiwwelold ||eH |rUOWSN | YIN ‘UoIB{PPIN

“HOITA Y P 0 B4R D SUNINY 8L g uSiLe INOK VI 3162 B U0 AP 10 skt weseid 'LIZSFIAP 10 1 ¥ 1y

o o K M, T e R
0 ) 00 19, 4 it i TP 0 9. I

ey { Hepee]
o v A s

| ety ey

Bnplisap o nok
fr,-o!n M1 2 104jeS

e

ilJ3LIHOYY 3H1 38

“S{A3N g 2 Qb 3G JO RIS BT S WOJSA 1T M 5 TAG 50 M 10 220 369250 A1 38 N 8 1Y

=
wpesa0y /e

0 200m o0t ) D B L
K0 752 ) OO 1 B 0 Ol o
R A Y B =

owegy BRI L

DruBisan we oot
¥ ABapears ays wyi 120)85
| v,

1193LIHO¥Y 3HL 39

S11NS3Y¥ dOHSHYOM LNIWIDVINI

ALINNINWOD NOSY3d-NI

nof op 1epjaysyels
wesdosd Yeym

vakogdieg jedionunp 1
sy Anumiesen -
d0ieAag - ]
+3UM0 $5uANgG

Juap)

ﬂ

153D 4050 0} 4 A B i P TR

Om.;iw\u @ e ety i 5

B e B Wi
“$100100 MRy ¥ W I I SHTE ) 10} HOISIR IO VEIT JHE 3 MO MTID 20 ik WITHD AlRRDIAIG 1 B oY

H Y

i — izt
.

\

[ wnmn s, |
-,
. |

. Woces

i seunsepy pasei |

£1n3s3
noA op saNIBIBKEL
LU LT
FeQuIdgy AUunwINOY |
sadojaasg
Buudivep sie nok

| Azosens ous au 29iss ._ taump SSIUISNg |

“sjaond gk B frw S 16 09WL T 0 17316 JIK LRIE S 90X 4D MEED 0 s SRS ALCRBIA I 0 ied € 7Y

TPy e Ld
. [

e G o w  PA L y
AU DR GV 4 i Bt dond 0 4, WU v
A Wk >

i193L1IHJYY 3HL 38

WepIsDY

WOKION

_

L1

iL193LIHYY 3HL mme

TS BYIN
(luasaltas

nok op 1apoYN KIS
_ weiBod ey

1apg
| gahoidwry e

| IS unawoe

sadoAs

Buuiisap 218 Rok
ABaeas BYS W 0105
. o

“UMQ SSANISHG ]

- p1sey o

(TYNAIATANT) ALIAILOY LD3LIHOYY 3HL 34

Vivad INJNIIVINI ALINNNINOD 1 XIANIddV



cil

S1911IN0UY

juawdojenagsseiy ‘

Apn1s SuluwelSoid [leH [24OWaN | YIN ‘UCIBIPPIN

ST ) EE RS S 1 O M M
9 SO 505 0 ] N Bt 0K 0 L) i 5
e DR UM &

"HEIRA HGY B G2 M JO SNy 3k 0) WDt ML LCHE BUS O 4O MAID I8 A1 avend “AllenpIp 48 el ey

?ﬁ.a:iﬁ: ”r/
ot -

eumdenry grni3 [

cluasaidal
nek op iapjayzyers
wetdod jeym

1390 7y
ankoitite3 jediny 1

Bupd)sep 318 80k
/fﬁn_ﬁ.. s A 1ases

A

i1331IHJYY 3HL 39

0L 3000 S ST 10 (A e LG
RN LIS O} i DR AT Al [t UM+
Tt

8182 EOP 3 B F4Y IO LRI 24} K TATI 1104 VIS SUS X1 4D MEIQ K2 DU 38P2(D AURTMNPD! 18 el ¥ Sy

' ,/
agnestang / adesspuey L
'L
o . 141
.
o..lot. ncjay

s
i’

[*L% .I‘.

Jiz

!
!
|
i

oty | 3DIAIDG (EUGISSJ0IY

_Ll—l

vosoeds]
sy ey | *
i _ pakojdwg jediuny ||
_ YU ABUnunio] |
Bum$igap wx nok _
ABaEns a8 Ay 1288 ‘_
\ }

i1J31IH3YVY JH1 39

S1TNS3Y dOHSHYOM LNIW3IIVIN3I
ALINNINWOD NOS¥3d-NI

'é e e

D T e L T
R AN 1 WU

BHORINE B W W 4013 SI010) 84 20) OS2 MK M WS D) 50 23 30 Wi o5t SEDBIARN 10 SR ¢

BiuBiesp e:2 N4
Afmang aus 51y 19918
\ 1 o
.
i1J3LIHJYY 3H1 39
P
g by s 1 w3 TR xRN 1 8CA) W, o
i e O =5
It 450 S S0 ot S D 8 e 1 b1 .
R <l
" = - »l eeecs
.., e, i - TTICNY ALY

L

RupFisep am ek
AB3iens ws i as |

4
ped. 7
vt ya 3 AANSS D &
ow?i?%_ s%mv /
E AT gy w0 e BN 1

(TYNAIALAND ALIAILOY LOILIHOYY IHL 39

‘| XIAN3ddV

i193LIHOYY THL 39 [

ViVa LNJNIIVINT ALINNININOD

a3iag paoy
7 meneisay

weitduoy

WUTATIS Hvild
Luesaitel

nof ap Jepioydnels

wesdosd jeym

BD G

aitfanfwg edidumy

guay Aunmnog ¢
Sadoranag :

JouMQ ssursng 7






S193LIHIHY

2n1 uatudojanagssen

ola ¥ fensa ‘ Apnis Suiwwessold ||eH |elJoWs | YA ‘uola|ppIN

niLs
95 "zn7 otpmg Aq aiydesn
g5 'z olpms 4q aydesy
ov 'zn olpnis Aq welgelq ¢ swsyog
6€ *Zn o1pnis Ag weddeig € swayos
=3 'zn7 olpmis Aq weideiq Z awsyas
[ 'Zn o1pnis Aq weddeig T awayos
e *zn olpnls Aq sweiBe|p sai8cjodA} BuisnoH
£E *ylied 93005 woi) (WOLL08) lelise piaid *y1S Aa ojoyd (dOL) punoidfeld Bulisix3
£ *zn o1pn3s Aq swei3elp BulwiwesSoid pooylogqysiaN
Z2¢€ zn7 0Ipni§ Aq swesdelp weidoid punaidherd
45 "YHed 38009 woy (WOLLOE) [e1se pisiy "v1$ Ag ojoyd (JOL) punoiBfe|d Bunisix3
1€ *zn olpnis Aq swesSe|p weliSoid uoijeaIdsy
1€ "yMe3 918009 woly (NOLLOE) jelse plald "y1S Aq ojoyd (dOL) P[ol punoie |leil
L2 *zn olpnis Aq sweigelp Yaeoidde sy
92 ‘Zn 01pniS Ag ydesd Juswededus Ajunwwo)
Gz *zn oipnig Aq ydeis juswadeSua Ajunwwon
174 *Zn7 0/pn1s Aq ydess Juawadedus Aunwwo)
€z *zn oipnig Aq ydeid juswedeSus Ayunwwon
12 *zn7 oipms Aq dew sjuswdofanagy Aqiean
12 zrSeluedwo) asergiq Jo Asannod adew)
12 nivswdolanag dle1s3 |eay a8puas||IA 40 ASsuN0D adew|
12 oUOIB[PPI 40 UMOL 3U3 Jo Asapnod afew|
0z ‘zn o1pnis Aq dew asp) wesSold Sunsixg
61 sUOTRIPPII JO UMO] aU] Joj saldojouydal Jyo Aq paonpoad dew Suruoy
81 *Zn7 olpm§ Aq sdew spuawdojanag Aqiean pue asny wesdoid Suiisix3
81 6UOIIPPII JO UMO| 8y} 10} so180jouyds)] |9 Aq paanpoid dew Suruoz
a1 g "BJ1JJ0) S,J0SSBSSY YN 'U0IB|PPIW 40 umal 3y) Aq papiaoid sue|d Bugsixe Buisn zn olpms Aq ue|d
ST s "891JJ0 S,J0SSSSY VI ‘UOIDIPPI JO umol 3u) Aq papiaosd sueld Buiisixa Butsn zn7 olpnis Aq ueld
i "zn oipnig Aq ueld 8)Ig suopuo) Bulsix3
€1 *zn7 oIpmg Aq sojoyd 18 UIBW YINog Hsh
A 'z o1pri§ Aq sojoyd ||eH [eliowsp
11 "zn7 o1pnig £q ojoyd pue we.selp aYs IS UIB YInos Uy
o1 “Zn7 olpMis Ag weidelp 8)IS 1S UB YInos gt
01 & "UOJR|PPIN JO UMO) 3y} Jo Asepnod afew | ‘(|eH |eLoway
6 'z 01pMS Aq 19915 UIRW YINOS Y81 J0 0loyd BYS U0IBIPPIN Jo umol Aq 38wl ||BH [elowR N
6 ‘zn oipnis Aq swelSelp yum yue3 818005 woy Uclg|ppIy Jo a8ew) [elay
Vi 2"UMe3 aj8aoy) wouy AaBew! [eliae Yum znT olpnis Aq weidelp Alepunog UoIBJpPPI 10 UMOY
g [ U0IBIPPIW ‘eauBWY Jo safew) wol) 9BewW| *|ooyds a1ua) ayj jo sSew| dLIoISIH

AYVSSOTD JOVINI

XIAN3IddV

prv)
(g~}
—h
(g2
o}
-
(9p]
D
w
2o
=
=
oy
e
(o=
—_
w

de
>
=

=

®

=

=.
>




SIDIUHINY

Juswidojaragssew ‘

Apnis uiwwesdold ||BH [BI4OWBN | YIN ‘UcI3|pRIN

Juaney-nigyoljojpod/woa sajuedwosaselqip/isdiiy Z T

U012 PP/ W02 a3pLgR| I/ sdny 1T
aseyd-Juswido|aaap-usISap/LIod " WILL-UOIB|PPIW//SANY "0 T

=Pp|P19; 40d-de-BUIU0Z/T 1G/MBIA/IBIURDIUBLLINDIOQ/A0S BUWLOIRIPPIL MMM/ :Sd1IY "GTOZ ‘U0IBIPPIIN JO uma] auj Joj sa18ojouyda) |y¥9 Aq paonpoid dew Suiuoz

SIOSSISSY-J0-PIR0G /G T £/A08" BLILOISIPPIL//SANY SHISIA ‘UOIIBWLIOLUI 3I0W 04 "9214() S,10SS3SSY By} W04y Zn7) 01pn1g Aq paziiin sue|d £&doo pieH

ae-au0z/uesso|3/no3 ewa mmmy/isdiy Y34

"SWeaISOZ % PURNZ % SIBALINZ %J00Z %S2PIS'181deyd0Z % IZ %10

02%U0139830140Z %S13A 40 2 %2 | =1X8): ~#PEO0| UMOP/}IB-U0|}39101d-5I19A1I-S1aSN Y JBSSELU-3}-}N0q B/I0P/A0B SSeLL"MMM//:SA1Y 1Y LOIJI8]01d SIBAlY S)I8SNLOBSSE|y

/A0 BLLIUOR|pPILMAMM// sy

/£000¥80YS9€AuasaId-)sed-s|0042s-U0}e| PPl W-KIoISIU/EQ/G0/1 102/ 11ISURI-8]21U0IL 9/KI0}S/UI0D" [DO] PAXIIM MMM/ SJIY 1Juasald pue jsed s|eoyds :AI0jsIH uoja|ppIN
/£000780vS9€AURsAId-1sed-5|004Is-U01R|PPIW-AIoISIY/E0/60/17 T 0Z/1d14ISUE-3]21U0IY 9/AI01S/LI0D"|BDO] Pax M mmM//isdIlY :Judsald pue Jsed s|ooyag :AI0jsiH uoja|ppIN
V1YMWBO=EIeP/I0"1L0LGG866 65 USES L2210 L6 AGE PYGSBI9TO'GE BLL8L /BT L 6Z'EL866ET0 1L YEOBRZES ZF®/qaM/W0°3[3005 yed//sdy

‘66 2884 *sheq 3|y uap|on PIO Jeaq 'sheq |00Y2S ‘sAeq |00UIS *UOII|PPI teILBWY WoJy saSew| ‘A)3100S [BILI0ISIH UOCIS|PPI ‘Ined AsHIUS ‘pieufey

6
8

SNOILYLID

XIAN3iddY

=0
D
—y
D
-
<D
-
[qp]
@
w
o
<P )
=1
[ab]
o
=
w

W
p ~
.
.=
®
=
=]
<







A REAL ESTATE APPRAISAL REPORT

Prepared for

THE TOWN OF MIDDLETON, MA

by
MINCO CORPORATION

DATE OF VALUATION: August 23, 2024
DATE OF INSPECTION: August 23, 2024

DATE OF REPORT: August 29, 2024

For the Property Identified As

Map 14, Lots 3/Z & 52
and
Map 20, Lot 27/Z

AKA /49 LOCUST STREET
MIDDLETON, MASSACHUSETTS



SUMMARY

PART I

PART II:

PART IlI:

PART IV:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL
SUMMARY OF SALIENT FACTS

DESCRIPTION OF SUBJECT

SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS
SCOPE OF WORK
EXTRAORDINARY ASSUMPTION
HYPOTHETICAL CONDITION
INTEREST APPRAISED
DEFINITION OF VALUE
EXPOSURE TIME

OWNERSHIP HISTORY
PROPERTY TAX INFORMATION
LOCATION DESCRIPTION
ECONOMIC & MARKET CONDITIONS
SUBJECT LOTS

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

HIGHEST AND BEST USE
HIGHEST AND BEST USE
VALUATION

THE VALUATION PROCESS

SALES COMPARISON APPROACH

RECONCILIATION

CERTIFICATION OF APPRAISER

LIMITING CONDITIONS AND UNDERLYING ASSUMPTIONS

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

ADDENDA:
APPRAISER’S QUALIFICATIONS
SUBJECT DEEDS
FLOOD MAP

W

30

31
31
39
40
41



MINCO

August 29, 2024 =——— CORPORATION

Justin Sultzbach, Town Administrator
Town of Middleton

48 South Main Street

Middleton, MA 01949

Dear Mr. Sultzbach:

In answer to your request and authorization, we have performed an appraisal of the fee simple
interest of three contiguous parcels of land identified as Assessors parcels as Map 14, Lots 3/Z
& 52 and Map 20, Lot 27/Z, Middleton, MA. For purposes of this appraisal, they will be referred
to collectively as 49 Locust Street.

This appraisal report is intended to comply with the reporting requirements set forth under
Standards Rule 2 of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP). This
report presents discussions of the data, reasoning and analyses that were used in the appraisal
process to develop the appraiser's opinion of value. Supporting documentation concerning the
data, reasoning and analyses are retained in our file. The depth of discussion contained in this
report is specific to the needs of the client. The appraiser is not responsible for unauthorized use
of this report.

This appraisal is made subject to limiting conditions and underlying assumptions set forth in this
appraisal, including those regarding the presence of asbestos, lead paint, or hazardous waste as
governed by applicable state, local or federal laws. The information contained herein is considered
confidential in nature and is specifically prepared for the exclusive use of Town of Middleton for
municipal planning.

In our opinion, the market value of the fee simple interest of the subject property as of August 23,
2024 is as follows:

Scenario 1: 12 Lots of 40,000 and greater $2,945,000
Scenario 2: 17 lots from 10,000 to 16,000 SF $3,140,000

This valuation assumes marketing and exposure times of three to six months.

Respectfully submitted,
Minco Corporation
/

John F. McCarthy, Senior Vice President
MA Certified General Appraiser #401
File #. C23121179.27

* Real Estate Consultants * Real Property Evaluation + Planning and Development * Sales and Leasing
231 Sutton Street + North Andover, Massachusetts 01845 « Tel (978) 687-6200 + Fax (978) 682-6473
E-mail: minco2@mincocorp.com « Web: http://www.mincocorp.com




SUMMARY OF SALIENT FACTS

LOCATION

OWNER OF RECORD

CURRENT DEED

PROPERTY TYPE
LAND AREA

ASSESSED VALUE
CURRENT TAXES

ZONING
HIGHEST AND BEST USE

EXTRAORDINARY ASSUMPTION
HYPOTHETICAL CONDITION
EASEMENTS OR RESTRICTIONS
INTEREST APPRAISED

DATE OF VALUATION

DATE OF INSPECTION

DATE OF REPORT

INTENDED USE
INTENDED USER

MARKET VALUE

Scenario 1: 12 Lots of 40,000 +
Scenario 2: 17 lots-10,000 to 16,000 sf

Assessors M/L 20- 277, 14/52 & 37
aka / 49 Locust Street, Middleton, MA

Town of Middleton

Essex County South Registry of Deeds
Book 17704, Page 498 and
Land Court Document 419594,

Undeveloped Residentially Zoned Land
18.25 +/- acres

$978,300
Exempt - Town owned land

R-1B Residential
residential development

yes, see page 9
yes, see page 9
yes, see deeds

Fee Simple

August 23, 2024
August 23, 2024
August 29, 2024

Municipal Planning
Town of Middleton

$2,945,000
$3,140,000



SUBJECT PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS (photos take January 15, 2024)




SUBJECT PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS

e

S




SUBJECT PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS

=

o %‘I .T!] |

v




SUBJECT PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS

LOCUST STREET NORTHEAST AND SOUTHWEST RESPECTIVELY




SCOPE OF WORK

The appraiser was engaged by the client to appraise the market value of the subject
property. It is my understanding that this report will be used by the client for possible sale
negotiation purposes. The property was most recently inspected on August 23, 2024 and
this is the effective date of value. To develop the appraisal, the property was inspected and
public records and the client were used to obtain this information. These sources include,
but were not limited to, municipal records and the registry of deeds.

The Sales Comparison was developed in this appraisal as this is the primary form of
valuation of undeveloped residential land. In gathering market data, the following sources
were used: CoStar, Loopnet, Banker and Tradesman / Warren Group, Multiple Listing
Service Property Information Network (MLS-PIN), real estate agents, brokers, appraisers
and other professionals knowledgeable of the market area. This appraisal report contains
sufficient data and analysis for the client to make an informed business decision.
Supporting documentation is retained in my file.

EXTRAORDINARY ASSUMPTION

According to USPAP, an extraordinary assumption is “...directly related to a specific
assignment, which, if found to be false, could alter the appraisers opinions or conclusions.”
This appraisal is subject to the extraordinary assumption that restrictions and conditions
stated in the subject deeds do not affect the portion of the parcels that are the subject of
this appraisal or the hypothetical development of the subject property.

HYPOTHETICAL CONDITION

According to USPAP, a hypothetical condition “...is known to be false but is presumed to
be true.” This appraisal is subject to the hypothetical condition that the subject property can
be developed in accordance with the conceptual plans presented in this report.

INTEREST APPRAISED

The subject property is appraised in its Fee Simple interest. Fee Simple, is "a fee without
limitations to any particular class of heirs or restrictions, but subject to the limitations of
eminent domain, escheat, police power, and taxation. An inheritable estate."' In other
words, Fee Simple assumes that the property is appraised as if free and clear of liens or
other encumbrances, except for any existing or proposed easements or other restrictions
as noted in this report. No trade fixtures, personal property, specialized equipment,
intangible items, or business value (going concern) is included in the value indication set
forth in this report. As requested, we've appraised only the subject real estate.

1. Boyce, Burl N,, ed., Real Estate Appraisal Terminology, Revised Edition, Cambridge, Massachusetts, Ballinger
Publishing Company, 1984, p. 102.




DEFINITION OF VALUE
Market Value

As used in this report, Market Value is defined as: The most probable price which a
property should bring in a competitive and open market under all conditions requisite to a
fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently, and knowledgeably and assuming the
price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a
sale as of a specified date and the passing of title from seller to buyer under conditions
whereby: (I) buyer and seller are typically motivated; (ii) both parties are well informed or
well advised, and acting in what they consider their best interests; (iij) a reasonable time
is allowed for exposure in the open market; (iv) payment is made in terms of cash in U.S.
dollars or in terms of financial arrangements comparable thereto; (v} the price represents
the normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by special or creative financing
or sales concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale.?

EXPOSURE TIME

According to USPAP, an appraisal must state an opinion of reasonable exposure time
linked to a market value opinion. In USPAP, exposure time is defined as follows: “the
estimated length of time the property interest being appraised would have been offered on
the market prior to the hypothetical consummation of a sale at market value on the effective
date of appraisal; a retrospective opinion based on an analysis of past events assuming
a competitive and open market.” Based on our study of the marketplace, this appraisal of
market value assumes a market exposure time of three to six months prior to the date of
the appraisal. Exposure time differs from marketing time which, according to USPAP, is
defined as: “an opinion of the amount of time it might take to sell a real or personal property
interest at the concluded market value level during the period immediately after the
effective date of an appraisal.” If offered for sale, the forecast marketing time is three to six
months, if priced relative to our market value opinion.

OWNERSHIP HISTORY

The subject property is under the ownership of the Town of Middleton which acquired the
subject parcels in two separate transactions. On August 14, 2001, Alan E. Weber sold
three parcels of land to the Town of Middleton, identified in a deed at the Essex County
South in Book 17704 Page 498 in consideration of $1,750,000.

A small parcel of land having frontage on Locust Street identified as Lot 43 on Land Court
Plan 16270K was grant to the Town of Middleton by Thomas J. Flatley for nominal
consideration on December 9, 2002. Copies of these deeds are in the addendum.
Restrictions and conditions stated in the deeds do not appear to affect the parcels that are
the subject of this appraisal The subject property has not been offered for sale in the past
five years.

2 Interagency Appraisal and Evaluation Guidelines, December 10, 2010, Federal Register, Volume 75, Number 237,
Page 77472

10



PROPERTY TAX INFORMATION

The following is assessment information applicable to the subject property as it appears in
municipal records at the Middleton Assessors Office. All parcels are unimproved and have
a land value only.

Assessors Address Locust St.  Locust St.  Locust St.

Parcel ID 14/3/Z 20/27/Z2 14152

Assessment” $ 23,900 $632,600 $321,800

Total Assessment $978,300 Total

Tax Rate $11.79/$1,000 (Single Tax Rate - Fiscal Year 2024)
Annual Taxes* Exempt - Town Owned Land

Middleton assessments are effective July 1, 2023, for Fiscal Year 2024. The subject
property is town owned and exempt from taxes. Middleton recognizes a single tax rate for
all classifications of real estate. It is noted that while the subject’s assessment is lower than
our valuation, assessments for tax exempt properties are typically unreliable.

LOCATION
Town of Middleton

Middleton is in northeastern Massachusetts, in central Essex County. It is bordered by
Peabody and North Reading to the west, North Andover and Boxford to the north and North
Andover and Topsfield to the east. The town’s population is about 9,750 persons and total
land area is 14.45 square miles. Middleton is conveniently located just north of the
Interstate Route 95 (I-95) and Route 1 interchanges in neighboring Danvers and Peabody.
Route 114 is the primary roadway in town, connecting with North Andover at the north and
Danvers at the south. Route 62 is the other state-numbered roadway in town.

Boston is about 35 minutes driving time, via I-95. There is no Massachusetts Bay
Transportation Authority (MBTA) commuter rail service in Middleton, but there is access
in nearby Andover, Reading and Beverly. Logan International Airport in Boston provides
the nearest scheduled air service, while Beverly Municipal Airport in neighboring Danvers
and Lawrence Municipal Airport in North Andover provide the nearest general aviation
service. The overall quality of this access is considered good for the area.

11



Middleton has an Open Town Meeting form of government. A part-time elected selectboard
appoints a full-time town administrator. Town services are typical of medium-sized
suburban communities in this area and include full-time fire and police departments, and
K-12 school system. There is one elementary school that serves children from grades one
through five, while middle and High School students attend Masconomet Regional School
in neighboring Boxford. Middleton is served by municipal water and electricity. There is no
public sewer in the town. Some areas of town are serviced by natural gas.

Middleton has experienced considerable commercial growth along the Route 114 corridor
during the past 20 or so years, including retail properties of various types. Despite this, the
town is primarily a bedroom community. Most residents commute to the greater Boston
area to work.

Single-family dwellings make up the majority of the housing units in Middleton. According
to MLS-PIN, there are just 8 current offerings of single-family dwellings priced from
$399,999 to $2,350,000, with an average asking price of about $1,196,600 or $429 per
square foot of gross living area (GLA). The average days on market (DOM) is 95. There
are 4 houses currently under contract to be sold, with an average asking price of
$1,220,950 or $425 per square foot and 45.5 DOM. There were 24 sales over the past six
months with an average sale price of $1,028,975 or $353 per square foot of GLA. The
limited new construction single-family offerings in the town are typically priced in excess
of $1,250,000. There have been three new home sales in the last twelve months. New
homes in Middleton, when available, tend to move very quickly.

Demographics

Middleton has about 3,260 housing units of which about 87 percent are single-unit
dwellings. Town occupancy is about 96 percent and 92 percent of units are owner-
occupied. The average value of owner-occupied units is about $625,800. There are about
3,120 households, of which 86 percent are married couples. The average household size
is 2.7 and the median age is about 46 years. About 43 percent of the population is female
and 57 percent is male.

About 90 percent of adults have a high school diploma and about 37 percent have a
bachelor's degree or higher. The median household income is about $155,500 and the
median per capita income is about $60,850. About 31 percent of households earn more
than $200,000 annually and about 14 percent earn less than $50,000. About 3.7 percent
of the population is below the poverty level, including 2.0 percent of children under the age
of 18 and 5.0 percent of adults over the age of 65. The average travel time for commuters
is about 33 minutes, with 81 percent driving alone.

12



REGIONAL MAP

(not to scale)

HEEN

GE

RIC

CT |

L ndcyer
(= (s

SGUTH
FARILTON

. Lym nfteid

b

Wakefeld »

Resding -

‘souTH pEaBODY  S2len]

)" @l'

S arblendR
! -’i

Cliftog

13



& g

o
1ph

J' RIS
L %
%N
4
1 1
.:.c.e by -
y
|
e '
Y
%

14

i S John's
: . Rreparatory Scho

ol




Neighborhood

The subject property is on Locust Street in the extreme easterly central portion of the town.
Locust Street is accessed from East Street about one half mile west and Ferncroft and
Village Roads and the Danvers town line to the southeast. Access to Interstate Routes 1
and 95 are within about a four mile ride to the southeast. Highway access is good overall.

The neighborhood is predominantly residential in nature with mostly single family homes
from the subject to the north and west and a mix of residential condominiums and
apartments to the south and east. The Ferncroft Country Club is just across from the
subject. This is a private golf and recreational club which has been around since 1970.
Nearby and adjacent to the club are developments of high-end single family and attached
condominiums. Located south and east from the subject on Village Road is Ironwood on
the Green at Ferncroft. This consists of two, seven story buildings of luxury condominiums.
Just southeast of that is the Ferncroft Tower, a twelve story condominium building
constructed in 1977. On the south side of the subject neighborhood, accessed from State
Route 62, are industrial uses along with the Essex County House of Correction. The
mixture of uses in the neighborhood are long-standing and appear to be in harmony. The
neighborhood is desirable for residential living due to its highway access, setting and town
amenities. No detrimental conditions were observed.

TiEonsisuction
agement, inc
L4

W ! andSeaping

Connemara House

Oasis Témge:'iatme
Systemis,Corp

15



ECONOMIC & MARKET CONDITIONS

Despite almost universal expectations to the contrary, the U.S. economy did not fall into
recession in 2023. A 4.9 percent annualized growth rate in Q3 of 2023 surprised most
analysts. This was on the heels of about 2.25 percent annualized growth in the first half of
the year. Much higher borrowing costs over the past two years have not yet slowed
economic activity as expected. Many economists now see a Federal Reserve (Fed)
engineered “soft landing” and perhaps avoiding a recession entirely in 2024.

Yet there is evidence of a slowdown in certain sectors of economic activity. Manufacturers
report that demand for new products fell, resulting in a decline in factory activity for more
than a year. The (national) housing market saw both sales transactions and prices drop in
2023 as higher mortgage rates and still-elevated prices eroded affordability. Conversely,
demand for services remained strong, with travel, entertainment, and dining out keeping
that sector in expansion mode.

The Fed has made some headway in its attempt to tamp inflation down. The personal
consumption expenditures price index (PCE), the Fed’s preferred measure of inflation,
eased from its peak of 7.1 percent in June 2022 to 3.0 percent in October of 2023. Core
PCE, which excludes food and energy prices, has been slower to retreat but edged lower
to 3.5 percent in October 2023.

Despite tightening financial conditions and higher business costs, the labor market
remained resilient. Employers had become cautious in trimming staff during the post-
pandemic period, when hiring was difficult. Initial claims for unemployment remained low
and job openings high, although the total number of job openings declined fairly
dramatically in the second half of 2023. A high percentage of new jobs created in Q4 of
2023 were part-time positions.

Recent revisions to economic data show that households spent at a slower pace than was
previously reported, and business investment weakened in response to higher borrowing
costs. These trends are expected to continue, which should slow the economy in the
coming months.

Bank Failures In 2023

There were three large bank failures in March 2023, including two in the U.S. (Silicon Valley
Bank and Signature Bank) and one in Switzerland (Credit Suisse Group AG). As a result,
there was cause for concern of major trouble looming in the banking sector. However, only
two more major banks failed in the U.S. through the end of 2023, alleviating this concern,
at least for the near term. Across the banking industry, the total number of branches fell for
the 14th straight year in 2023. There were 77,690 active bank branches nationwide at the
end of October 2023, according to S&P data, down from 79,000 branches at the end of
2022, a decline of about 1.7 percent.

16



Macro Economic Analysis

The Covid-19 Pandemic-induced economic shutdown in March 2020 is still impacting the
economy in various ways. The U.S. Congress, the U.S. Treasury Department, and the U.S.
Federal Reserve Bank (Fed) combined forces to inject about $5 trillion of liquidity into the
economy beginning in March 2020. Unlike previous bailouts, where financial institutions
were the primary beneficiaries, these funds were put into the hands of businesses,
institutions, and consumers. The result was that demand for all types of goods and services
increased dramatically, while pandemic-related shutdowns hampered supply chains,
causing worldwide shortages of key resources like petroleum products, lumber, and food.

The Fed balance sheet stood at $7.6 trillion at the beginning of 2024, down from $8.7 trillion
a year earlier, but up from $4.2 trillion prior to the pandemic. To put that in perspective, the
Fed balance sheet had never exceeded $1 trillion prior to March 2008. The U.S. Federal
Budget deficit stood at $1.7 trillion in early 2024, up from about $723 billion a year earlier
but down from the average of about $3.0 trillion in 2020 and 2021. The 2022 decline in the
annual deficit was due to dramatically higher tax receipts in 2022 and early 2023 due to
inflation-assisted economic activity. This trend reversed in 2023 as stimulus liquidity was
drained from the economy.

The pandemic disrupted supply chains significantly, resulting in dramatic inflation in 2021
and 2022, rising to about 9.0 percent by mid 2022. While price increases dropped to about
3.0 percent annualized by the end of 2023, supply chain disruption was prolonged by the
Russia-Ukraine War and was further threatened in early 2024 by the Hamas blockades of
the Red Sea shipping lanes. Shippers are reporting two to three times higher costs
resulting from the necessary re-routing.

Crude oil futures peaked at about $92 per barrel in September 2023, but were hovering
between $70 and $75 in early 2024. Recent price declines are attributed to recessionary
economic activity in other parts of the world, particularly Europe. OPEC cut oil production
in early 2023 and announced in early 2024 that they would cut crude oil production by 2.2
million barrels per day for the foreseeable future in order to keep prices high.

The U.S. stock markets continued to flirt with new all-time highs in early 2024. The Dow
Jones Average reached a new all-time high of about 38,000 in early January, as did the
S&P 500 at nearly 4,800. The tech-heavy NASDAQ was about 7.5 percent below its
November 2021 peak of about 16,000. Bond markets continued to struggle in the wake of
much higher interest rates over the past two years. Following several strong years, most
sectors of real estate struggled in 2023, again in the aftermath of increasing borrowing
rates.

Cryptocurrencies (cryptos) continued to gain acceptance in 2023. Bitcoin is the bestknown
and is considered to be different than other cryptos, due to its fixed supply and
decentralized management. As a result, Bitcoin is considered a commodity by the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), while other cryptos are considered securities.

17



Despite recent fluctuations in price, these attributes result in Bitcoin being considered a
reliable store of value. After reaching an all-time high price of more than $63,000 per “coin”
in November 2021, the price collapsed to less than $17,000 in late December 2022 in the
aftermath of the FTX scandal. Since then, however, the price returned more orless steadily
to nearly $46,000 by early 2024. On January 10, 2024, the SEC approved Bitcoin / crypto
exchange traded funds (ETFs), which will allow investment firms to add the asset to their
IRA 401K offerings. Due to the expectation of greatly increased demand, the price is
expected to climb to new highs by mid year. Many long-term proponents believe as public
adoption continues to increase the price fluctuations will flatten and price will continue to
rise over time.

Between 2012 and 2020, real U.S. Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth averaged about
2.2 percent annually. Between the 1970s and the 1990s, average annual GDP growth was
3.3 percent. Between 1996 and 2000 (the dot com run-up), GDP growth ranged from 3.8
to 4.7 percent and averaged 4.3 percent. In 2019, the last year of the previous recovery,
real GDP grew by about 2.3 percent for the year. In 2020, GDP contracted by 3.5 percent
on the heels of the pandemic. GDP grew by 5.7 percent in 2021, but a good deal of this
was due to inflation. Following GDP contraction in the first half of 2022, the economy
rebounded in the second half of the year to an annualized year-over-year growth rate of 2.1
percent. As stated previously, GDP growth was stronger than expected in 2023, particularly
in Q3.

Prior to the pandemic, the expectation was for GDP growth of less than 2.0 percentin 2020
and the years that followed. The continuing demographic shift is a major issue in the
expected GDP growth rate decline, as the U.S. birth rate is currently 1.8 per family, less
than the rate of 2.1 required for “zero population growth.” The U.S. rate of population
growth has been bolstered in recent years by immigration, both legal and illegal. The rates
of population growth in other developed nations, particularly Europe, are much less than
in the U.S.

Interest Rates / Money Supply / Inflation

At an emergency meeting on March 3, 2020, the Fed announced a 50 basis point rate cut
in response to financial turbulence resulting from the pandemic-related economic
shutdown. Less than two weeks later, the Fed cut the rate by another 100 basis points
resulting in a Federal Funds Rate range of zero to 0.25 percent. Over the next 14 months,
the Fed and the U.S. Treasury added nearly $3.0 million in stimulus to the economy. Since
then, another $2.0 trillion or so has been added, resulting in a total of $5.0 trillion of new
spending power in the economy added since the pandemic.

Consequently, demand for all types of goods and services increased dramatically. This,
combined with pandemic-related supply chain issues, led to a dramatic increase in inflation,
with the core inflation index topping out at about 9.0 percent in mid 2022.

At its Open Market Meeting (OMM) on June 10, 2020 (about three months into the
pandemic), the Fed announced that the Federal Funds rate would remain unchanged

18



through the end of 2022. The Federal Funds rate is the interest rate at which depository
institutions (banks and credit unions) lend reserve balances to other depository institutions
overnight, on an uncollateralized basis. In early 2021, the Fed announced that rising
inflation at that time would be “transitory” (short-term), a statement that proved to be more
than a bit embarrassing, and a retraction was issued in November 2021. As inflation
continued to increase, the Fed changed course. Starting at its March 15, 2022 OMM. The
Fed raised its key interest rate a total of 11 times in 2022 and 2023 from a range of zero
to 0.25 percent up to a range of 5.25 to 5.50 percent (the highest in 22 years) at the July
13, 2023 OMM. The U.S. annualized inflation rate rose to 9.1 percent by mid 2022, the
highest since November 1981. Since then, the rate of annualized inflation has declined
steadily to 3.0 percent by the end of 2023.

Increases in asset prices were the primary backbone of the post 2008 / 2009 economic
recovery, driven largely by historically low short-term interest rates keyed-in by the Fed.
Inflation and the resulting currency debasement remain concerns for the near future. There
is increasing interest in hard assets like precious metals, fine art, and other collectibles. In
addition, there has been growing interest in crypto currencies, which are seen as potential
replacements (worldwide) for fiat money.

Unemployment

By February 2020, the U.S. unemployment rate had dropped to 3.5 percent. Between
October 2010 and February 2020, the U.S. economy added jobs for 113 consecutive
months. Nearly 20 million jobs were added during this period. However, in April 2020, the
unemployment rate rose to 14.7 percent in the wake of the Coronavirus Pandemic
economic shutdown. This was the highest unemployment rate since the Great Depression.
About 22 million jobs were lost in only three months, more than double those jobs that were
created during the recent ten-plus year recovery.

In July 2024, the U.S. unemployment rate was 4.3 percent. The number of unemployed
increased by 352,000 to 7.2 million people. These measures are higher than a year earlier
when the jobless rate was 3.5 percent and the number of unemployed people was 5.9
million.

Among the unemployed, the number of people on temporary layoff increased by 249,000
to 1.1 million in July. The number of permanent job losers changed little at 1.7 million. The
number of long-term unemployed changed little at 1.5 million in July. This measure is up
from 1.2 million a year earlier. The long-term unemployed accounted for 21.6 percent of all
unemployed people in July.

“U-6,” the broadest category of the unemployment rate, was 7.8 percent in July 2024, up
considerably over the three months prior of 7.4 percent and up from 7.1 percent in July
2023. It is a good deal lower than the 18.3 percent rate in May 2020, just past the peak of
the pandemic shutdowns. The U-6 rate was 8.9 percent in February 2020. The current rate
is also less than the 17.2 percent rate at the peak of the 2007 / 2008 Great Recession. The
U-6 rate includes everyone in the official unemployment rate plus marginally attached

19



workers, meaning those who have stopped looking for work. The main unemployment rate
includes everyone who actively sought work in the previous four weeks. Many
non-economists feel that the U-6 is the “real” unemployment rate.

The average hourly earnings for employees on private nonfarm payrolls in July 2024 was
$35.07, or 0.2 percent from June and up by 3.6 percent year-over-year. The average hourly
workweek for all employees on nonfarm payrolls was 34.2 hours, down by 0.1 percent from
June.

The labor force participation rate, at 62.7 percent, changed little in July but was up from
62.7 percent in June and unchanged from 62.7 percent in May. The current rate remains
below the pre-pandemic rate of 63.4 percentin February 2020. The labor force participation
rate is defined as the percentage of people over age 16 who either have a job or are
actively searching for one. This rate peaked at 67.3 percent in January of 2000 and the
recent high was 66.4 percentin January 2007. The change in total nonfarm payroll for May
was revised down by 2,000, from +218,000 to +216,000, and the change for June was
down by 27,000, from +206,000 to +179,000. With these revisions, employment in may and
June combined is 29,000 lower than previously reported.

Despite the optimistic employment reports, there are concerns, particularly in the high-
paying high technology sector. Technology firms have cut more than 190,000 jobs since
the beginning of 2022, according to Layoffs.fyi, a website that tracks job cuts in the
industry. Analysts say the job losses are likely indicative of future layoffs across a spectrum
of industries within the labor market. Alphabet Inc., Google's parent company, became the
latest technology company to reduce its workforce, announcing in mid January that it plans
to cut 12,000 jobs, or about six percent of its workforce. Microsoft also announced that it
will cut 10,000 jobs while Amazon has begun the process of cutting 18,000 employees.
Other notable tech firms that announced major layoffs recently include Twitter, Salesforce,
and Facebook’s parent company, Meta.

The number of job openings was about 8.2 million U.S. job openings as of the last day of
June 20240 This was down by 941,000 over the year. The job openings rate held at 4.9
percent in June. Job openings increased in accommodation and food service (+120,000)
and in state and local government, excluding education (+94,000). The number of job
openings decreased in durable goods manufacturing )-88,000) and in federal government
(-62,000).

The Massachusetts seasonally adjusted employment rate was 3.2 percent in June 2024,
up from 3.0 percent in May. It is down from 3.6 percent year over year and down from the
post-pandemic high of 15.3 percent in May 2020. The March 2020 rate was 2.7 percent,
just ahead of the pandemic shutdowns. Prior to April 2020, the unemployment rate had
been under 4.0 percent for 48 consecutive months. The number of unemployed increased
by 7,641 from May to June of 2024. This is virtually unchanged from the number of
unemployed in June of 2023 when there were 122,410 unemployed. The labor force
increased by an estimated 23,773 in June. The labor force participation rate in

20



Massachusetts was 62.6 percent in June, up from 62.5 percent the previous month and
equal to its rate year over year.

Real Estate

Lending rates for residential mortgages increased dramatically in response to the Fed rate
hikes, with 30 year fixed interest rates for single-family mortgages rising to the 7.5 t0 8.0
percent range by the end of 2023. Commercial lending rates were impacted in a similar
manner, but were between 100 and 150 basis points less than residential. Following a
dramatic increase in prices for virtually all classes of real estate between mid 2020 and late
2022, prices for all property types began to fall in 2023 nationwide, as did transaction
volume.

Single Family Housing - National - 2024

According to the National Association of Realtors (NAR), sales of previously occupied U.S.
homes fell 4.3 percent in March 2024 from the previous month to a seasonally adjusted
annual rate of 4.19 million. That was the first monthly decline in sales since December
2023, and followed a nearly 10 percent monthly sales jump in February 2024. Existing
home sales also fell by 3.7 percent on a year-over-year basis.

Despite the lower sales volume, the national median home sale price was $393,000 in
March 2024, up 4.8 percent year-over-year. According to NAR data, 60 percent of homes
purchased in March sold in less than 30 days marketing time. About 29 percent of homes
sold above their initial list price, up from 28 percent a year earlier. This is indicative of lack
of available inventory, as homeowners who would like to sell are choosing not to give up
mortgages in the 3.0 to 4.0 percent range, in order to make a new purchase with current
rates in the 6.5 to 7.0 percent range.

At the end of March 2024, there were 1.11 million unsold homes on the market, a 4.7
percent increase from the previous month, and 14.4 percent higher year-over year,
according to NAR. That remains well short of the 1.7 million homes on the market in March
2019, a year before the pandemic. Available inventory indicates a 3.2 month supply, up
slightly both month-over-month and year-over year. Historically, inventory typically ranges
between a four and five month supply.

The U.S. home ownership rate was 65.7 percent at the end of 2024, down from 65.9
percent (0.003) year over year. This rate peaked (all-time) at 69.2 percent in Q2 of 2004,
and more recently at 67.9 percent in Q2 of 2020.

Housing starts in the U.S. for single-family homes in February of 2024 were 108,100, up

from 103,200 (4.7 percent) a year earlier. Building permits for single-family homes in
February 2024 were 118,300, up from 110,900 (6.7 percent) a year earlier.

21



There was concern early in 2023 that demand for new construction would collapse in 2023
due to increasing interest rates and the looming threat of a recession. This did not happen,
however, and demand for new construction remains high throughout most of the country.

Single-Family Housing - Regional & Local - Massachusetts

According to analytics from MLS-PIN, the average sale price for a single-family dwelling
in Massachusetts was 8.7 percent higher in May 2024 on a year-over-year basis. The
average sale price per square foot of gross living area (GLA) was about 8.3 percent higher
year-over-year. There were 36,486 houses sold statewide in the 12 month period between
June 2023 and May 2024, down 13.6 percent year-over-year. In Essex County, the
average sale price was 10.7 percent higher in May 2024 on a year-over-year basis. The
average sale price per square foot was 7.6 percent higher over the same period. Due to
the wide size range of GLA, sale price per square foot is typically a more reliable analytical
metric than average sale price.

Conclusion

The economic issues resulting from the Covid-19 Pandemic-induced economic shutdown
in March 2020 continue to impact the world economy. The $5 trillion U.S. Government
stimulus put cash in the hands of most citizens, businesses, and institutions. While most
businesses struggled to find workers post-pandemic, the stimulus-based liquidity resulted
in inflation spiking to 9.1 percent by mid 2022, the highest since 1981. In response, the
U.S. Federal Reserve (Fed) raised its key interest rate a total of 11 times in 2022 and 2023
from a range of zero to 0.25 percent up to a range of 5.25 to 5.50 percent (the highest in
22 years). As a result, the rate of annualized inflation declined steadily to 3.0 percent by
the end of 2023.

Total U.S. Federal Government Debt stood at about $34 frillion in January of 2024, up from
$21.7 trillion only four years earlier. U.S. Treasury Bonds and other forms of debt rolling
over in 2024 and 2025 will put pressure on the Fed to lower interest rates in 2024, which
is now expected by most analysts, economists and market participants. Other forms of
outstanding debt include U.S. household debt ($17.3 trillion), corporate debt ($11.8 trillion,
with $5.4 trillion maturing in 2024 and 2025), U.S. student loan debt ($1.8 trillion). Total
U.S. debt now stands at nearly $95 trillion. Including unfunded liabilities like government
pensions, Social Security, Medicare and Medicaid, total government debt is estimated to
be in excess of $250 frillion.

The Russia - Ukraine War that began in February 2022 has continued to disrupt supply
chains, for key resources, with Europe being the hardest hit. This has been exacerbated
by Hamas blockades of the Red Sea shipping lanes beginning in January 2024. New
economic alliances for crude oil settlements are being formed in Europe, the Middle East
and China that will threaten the global reserve currency status that the U.S. has enjoyed
since the end of World War Il. If this takes hold, demand for dollars will decline over time.

22



€T

291

2ie

g9t

X i

X2

Z21E

g

gt

- U7l Ueulem =R ~

sjo jo9lqng



PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

The subject property consists of three contiguous parcels of land totaling approximately
18.25 acres. The three parcels are shown on the town’s GIS map on the previous page and
a topographical map outlining the site is shown on the following page.

Assessors Parcel 3Z, a.k.a Lot 43 of Land Court Plan 16270K, is 0.115 acres according to
assessors records. The site has a small length of frontage on Locust Street and is generally
flat and partially cleared. This parcel, along with the Parcel 52, serve as part of an access
to the Town’s conservation area known as Pike’s Trail. According to its deed, subject Lot
43 is granted, together with the right and easement, to use a “Proposed 15' Wide
Temporary Slope Easement within adjacent Lot 46.

Assessors Parcel 52, aka Lot 13 of Land Court Plan 16270L, is 0.749 acres according to
assessors records. The site has a length of frontage of approximately 250 feet on Locust
Street. The site is level to gently sloping downward from street grade and heavily wooded.
It appears that most of site is usable.

Assessors Parcel 27-Z, a.k.a Lot W1S on recorded Plan Book 352 Page 98, is 17.41 acres
according to assessors records and the deed. The site has no road frontage and the
topography is rolling with its northerly portion being moderately wooded and well outside
any wetland areas and its lower and easterly areas being wetlands according to assessors
records.

According to the deed, this lot is subject to several restrictions outlined in the subject’s
deed, found in the addendum of this report. Essentially, the restrictions include no facilities
that work with any kind of waste product, no erection of any gas or electric lighting plants,
substations, community antenna or for telecommunications or airport. Additionally, no right
of access to the subject Lot shall be permitted over abutting lands, the ownership of which
is retained by the Grantor except as the same may hereafter be provided by written grant
duly recorded at the Registry of Deeds.

Zoning: The subject is situated in Middleton’s R1B Residential district where its
predominant uses include single family homes. Dimensional requirements include a 40,000
square foot minimum lot area with 125 feet of street frontage. Two-family dwellings are
allowed by Planning Board approval on lots of 80,000 square feet.

Utilities: Locust Street is a two-lane, two-way, undivided, publicly maintained roadway
paved in bituminous concrete. Town water is available along Locust Street. No public sewer
is available in Middleton and all properties require on-site septic. From the subject property
in a southeast direction, utility lines are located below ground in conduit and include
electricity and high speed communication. Starting in a northwest direction, utility lines are
mounted on poles along the shoulder of the street. Natural gas is not available on Locust
Street at the subject’s location.

24



§¢

[
us
LI
Buiz

KOLTICGH 40 NGl
1 e d =
s13snHavssYn NaLTIaam

L& min. 3
LRELS LSRN
N
Ny‘ld ALNIBISVAL ININ T3NS0

]

Ml X0
CLTIAEY I8

by v A
dswoer NN
31y 10 DMK
L]
03 3 cuen

a)ig jo depy |esiydesbodo]




According to FIRM Map Community Panel 25009C0401F, effective July 3, 2012, the
subject site is in Flood Hazard Zone X, “Areas of minimal chance of flood hazard”. A copy
of the appropriate section of the referenced flood map is included in the Addendum.

According to the "List of Confirmed Disposal Sites and Location to be Investigated,”
published by the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (DEP), the
subject site is notincluded on the list of either confirmed or suspected toxic waste sites. For
purposes of this appraisal, the appraiser assumes a "clean” site, free of contamination from
hazardous substances.

There appearto be no adverse easements impacting the subject property other than those
detailed in the subject deeds. If any such adverse easements are found, we\l can render
an opinion regarding the impact of any such easement(s) on the market value of the
subject property at that point in time, if desired.

The client engaged the Moran-Cameron Group Inc., a local engineering firm, who has
performed some engineering on the subject site. Two hypothetical scenarios were
developed, one depicting the site with twelve potential lots and another with seventeen lots.

Scenario 1 is summarized to the
right and includes a conceptual
plan for twelve building lots.
According to the R1-b zoning
district, single family homes on
40,000 square feet or more is
allowed. Two family dwellings
are allowed on lots of 80,000

& ] - ]
Residence R1-b Zoning District

Area: 44,000 .8 -Single-Fanuyly. 30000 s.4° Two-Family
Fromage: 125

Wulth: 185 through Dwetling,; 93.75 hetween Dwelling amid Street
Front Sethack: 23' or 30 from Suweet Centerling

SaderRear Setback. 3¢°

Allowed Uses. Single-Fanuly and Two-Family Residences

square feet or more.

This scenario results in six single
family lots of 40,000 square feet
and six lots in excess of 80,000
square feet allowing for two
family development, for a total of
eighteen dwellings.

This scenario would result in two
waivers, one for road length and
one for a single sidewalk. The
length of the road is estimated to
be about 1,100 square feet. The
plan is shown on the following

page.

Subdivision Statistics

12 Total Lots hetween 30,000 1o 90,000 5.1
-6 lots sustable for Single-Family

-6 lots suntable for Two-Famidy

Up o 18 Tots! dwelling mmits, no bedroom limit

LIGD LF of road (warver required over 500°)
JF Wede Riphi of Way

28 of Pavement

Briumnows Curd

Sidewalk on l-side pwaiver required)

Wor restrictions on cleanang Iots up f 35" 10 wetland
N Jesneits on house footpant sizes up o 10,000 5. £
No opea space requiremanis

26




LT

joay asenbs + 00008 0} 000°0F wo4y Buibues s}o07 Z| ;| OLIBUDBIS



Scenario 2 is a conceptual plan showing seventeen lots ranging in size from 11,000 to
16,000 square feet in size. According to the plans, the road is approximately 1,050 feet in
length. This scenario would require three variances and three waivers from the current
zoning and subdivision regulations in order to receive approval.

The following is the engineer’'s summary of this layout.

Residence R1-b Zoning District

Area. 30,000 5.1, -Single-Fanuly, S0.000 s.f. Two-Familv
Troptage: 125'

Width: 165" through Dwelling; 93.75 herween Dwelling and Sereet
Fromt Setback: 25 or 50" from Sireet Centerline

SideRent Setback: 3¢

Atlowed Uses: Simgle-Famuly and Two-Family Residences

Subdivision Statistics

I8 Total Lots between 11,000 10 16,004 5.1 (vaniasce required)
-All single-famaly dwellings

Up 1o 18 Toial! dwelling units, 3 v 4 bedrooms

Front Setback. 25 munimum

Side Serback: HY rnummun {vanance required

Rear Setback: 15 minitnum (vasance reguired)

Building foorprint. limit to 2,500 5.£ (20 1o 25%)

1,050) LF of road t waiver required aver S0’

33 Wide Reght of Way (waiver required 1o reduce from 50
24" of Pavernent

Breurrvnous Curb

Sidewalk on 1-side (waiver required frowm sidewalk 2-sides)

100" butfer zone o wetland protected frowm all ot development
50" wooded butfer along adjacem house lots
Tearl access and parking can be accommodated fo Pike Mezsenger Conservation Park

Note the engineer's summary above incorrectly states this scenario as eighteen lots.
However, the plan only depicts a total of seventeen lots. For purposes of this appraisal, a
17 lot analysis is performed. The plan depicting Scenario 2 is shown on the following page.

28



6C

jo9j auenbs + 0009} 0} 000°L} wouiy Buibuel s)07 /| :Z OLIBUBIS



HIGHEST AND BEST USE

Highest and Best Use is "The reasonably probable and legal use of vacant land or an
improved property, which is physically possible, appropriately supported, financially
feasible, and that results in the highest value."

Highest and best use assumes that a parcel of land is vacant or that it can be made vacant
through the demolition of any improvements. In this analysis, the question asked is, if the
land were vacant, what use should be made of it? To answer this question, the following
tests are made.

Legally Permissible: Legal permissibility generally speaks to the development potential of
a property and must address all issues with respect to capability for a proposed
development to comply with requirements set forth by all laws, bylaws, ordinances, rules,
regulations and standards. The subject site is in the Residence R1-b | zoning district of
Middleton. This district allows single family and two family residential homes by right.

Physically Possible: This appraisal assumes that development is physically possible on the
subject site at a reasonable cost. However, no engineering or other site studies have been
performed as part of this assignment to determine the suitability of the site for development.
The values in this appraisal are based, in part, upon subsoil conditions which would allow
for site preparation without incurring costs beyond what is considered normal. Given the
size of the site and the development of the surrounding residential properties, it is
reasonable to assume that any of the legally permissible alternatives are physically
possible.

Financially Feasible: In appraisal terminology, financially feasible is any use in which there
"is a positive net income or rate of return."* In other words, there must be an anticipated
profit after cost to construct new and land value are extracted from anticipated market
value. It is the function of the Highest and Best Use analysis to investigate the zoning,
assumed physical capacity of the land and the market value of the legally permissible and
physically possible alternatives. Based on our knowledge of the marketplace, it is our
opinion that residential development of the subject property would be financially feasible.

Maximally Productive: Among financially feasible uses, "the use that provides the highest
rate of return, or value (given a constant rate of return), is the highest and best use."®

3 Appraisal Institute, The Appraisal of Real Estate, 11th ed.. Chicago: Appraisal Institute, 1996, page 50.
4 Ibid.
5 Ibid.

30



Highest and Best as Vacant: Based on the currentzoning, physical attributes on the subject
site and demand for housing in the region, residential development of the site is considered
to be the highest and best use of the site given the recently developed uses in the
neighborhood and the limitations of zoning.

As willbe demonstrated on the following pages, the financial feasibility of two development
scenarios will be examined.

THE VALUATION PROCESS

Appraisers commonly think of value in three ways: 1. The value indicated by recent sales
of comparable properties in the market, known as the Sales Comparison Approach. 2. The
current cost of replacing a property, less depreciation from all sources, that is, physical
deterioration as well as functional and external obsolescence, known as the Cost
Approach. 3. The value that the property's net earning power will support, based upon a
capitalization of net income, known as the Income Approach.

In this instance, the Sales Comparison Approach is utilized to estimate the value of
individual building lots. A Development Approach, which is a form of the Income Approach,
is performed to estimate the “as is” present value of the subject site under two scenarios,
eithera 12 or 17 lot residential subdivision. The Cost Approach was not developed. It is not
an appropriate method for valuing vacant land as there are no improvements on the site.
The omission of the Cost Approach did not result in a misleading or unreliable value opinion

SALES COMPARISON APPROACH

The Sales Comparison Approach is developed in almost every appraisal of real property.
The value opinion by this approach is frequently defined as "the price at which a willing
seller would sell and a willing buyer would buy, neither being under abnormal pressure.”
This definition assumes that both buyer and seller are fully informed as to the property and
state of the market for that type of property and that the property has been exposed in the
open market for a reasonable time.

Scenario 1: In completing the Sales Comparison Approach, a search of recent sales of
building lots similar to the proposed subject lots was made in Middleton and surrounding
communities for the purpose of establishing a range of value for the subject lots. The sales
are shown on the grid on the following page.

Eight recent house lot sales ranging from 40,000 to 80,000 square feet (rounded) have
been located for comparison to the subject and utilized in the valuation of the subject
Scenario 1. Although six of the 12 proposed lots will accommodate two family dwellings,
multi-family dwellings could affect the desirability of the neighborhood when the remaining
lots could likely be developed with multi-million dollar homes. The eight sales are
summarized on the next page.

31



Residential House Lot Sales

Sale # Location Sale Date | Book/Page Land s.f. Sale Price

SUBJECT Locust St., Middleton N/A N/A 40,000-80,000 N/A
1 Lot 12 Couture Way, Middleton | 8/16/24 42275/434 50,018 $700,000
2 Lot 9 Couture Way, Middleton | 7/15/24 41553/568 44,758 $630,000
3 Lot 1 Couture Way, Middleton | 3/26/24 42038/520 40,174 $600,000
4 180 North St., Lot 1, No. Reading| 5/23/24 82803/3 46,603 $475,000
5 180 North St., Lot 2, No. Reading| 5/23/24 82803/6 59,197 $475,000
6 10 Chatham Ln., Danvers 8/24/23 41728/199 80,695 $520,000
7 6 Chatham Ln., Danvers 4/1/24 42045/509 30,858 $550,000
8 200 Essex St., Lynnfield 6/24/24 42184/41 47,859 $585,000

The sales include residential house lot sales in Middleton, neighboring North Reading and
Danvers as well as nearby Lynnfield. These sales are considered the best available and
reliable comparables for the subject property. The overall sale prices range from $475,000
to $700,000. Six of the eight sales have no access to any public sewer and rely on private
septic, similar to the subject. Sales 6 and 7 in Danvers are served by public sewer.

Sales 1, 2 and 3 are located in Middleton off Route 62 in close proximity to North Reading.
This location is considered generally similar overall to the subject’s location. This is a newly
developed subdivision totaling fourteen lots with homes being constructed in excess of
$2,000,000 on lots of 0.92 acres and larger. Sales 4 and 5 in North Reading are in a
neighborhood considered inferior to the subject. Sales 6 and 7 in Danvers are in a slightly
inferior neighborhood as compared to the subject. Additionally, overall home values in
Middleton exceed those of Danvers. As a result, Sales 6 and 7 are considered inferior
overall locations. Sale 8 is in Lynnfield, considered a somewhat superior overall location.
However, Middleton has become a popular alternative for Lynnfield due to it's similar rural
atmosphere and proximity to 195.

32



Sales 1, 2 and 3 are all located in Middleton in a similar cul-de-sac development of new
homes. Overall, they are considered most similar to the proposed subject lots in Scenario
1. The remaining sales also lend good overall support considering all physical and location
characteristics. Although the sale prices have increased as the year has progressed, the
later sales are considered to be driven by the increased market value of homes that are
being constructed, driving the desirability of the development. As a result, the current value
of a finished lot is forecast at $600,000 for each of the twelve conceptual subject lots. This
is considered reasonable and well supported by the available market data as the initial
buyers will endure ongoing construction for some time.

Development Analysis

This scenario assumes that the subject would be developed into 12 single family residential
house lots. The most reliable method for the valuation of the potential development site is
by a development analysis. When land is developed, the sale of lots or housing units is
assumed to take place over a period of time. In order to develop a market value opinion of
such a project, various costs are deducted over the holding period from the gross sellout
of finished lots. The lots are sold over a forecast time frame, based on anticipated market
conditions. Various hard and soft costs are deducted from the gross sellout, including sales
costs, taxes, surveying, engineering, legal costs to gain development approvals, roadway
and infrastructure construction costs. Overhead and administrative costs, profit, and cost
of capital are also deducted. What remains after all of the deductions is a present value or
market value of the site “as is.” This type development analysis is also commonly known
as a “discounted cash flow” analysis.

Holding Period / Inflation

A significant factor in developing a present market value opinion of a residential
development project is the holding or marketing period. This is forecast by analyzing
anticipated demand for single-family lots and newly-constructed single-family houses.

As discussed on Page 12, demand for newly constructed single-family homes in Middleton
has remained strong over the last several years. According to MLS-PIN, there were three
sales of newly-constructed houses in Middleton over the past twelve months. Just two
“new” homes are presently on the market in Middleton. These homes were under
construction when first listed and both are in excess of $2,000,000 and have been on the
market for 100 and 115 days respectively. Completing engineering and obtaining
development approvals is considered to take 12 months. Constructing the infrastructure
and roadway would be another 12 months before lots are ready to be sold.

While strong demand for new construction is expected to continue for the next two to three
years, there is always risk associated with making forecasts well into the future.
Nonetheless, it is reasonable to assume that all 12 lots could be sold in a 30 month time
frame once the roadway is constructed. This assumes that the first few lot would be pre-
sold during the road construction phase. Therefore, our total assumed holding period is 48
months going forward from the effective valuation date of August 23, 2024.

33



Appreciation has been slower over the past year after more dramatic appreciation between
2020 and mid 2022. It is reasonable to assume that is will be slower in the coming years,
as prices are now well above previous historic highs. Although borrowing rates are much
higher than previous years, the Fed is expected to start lowering rates over the coming
year. The Federal reserve has had a target rate of 2.0 percent inflation, and inflation has
recently broken the 3.0 percent rate mark. As a result, appreciation is based on an inflation
rate of 2.0 percent annually and is applied for the entirety of the 48 month development and
sellout period.

Gross Sellout of 12 Lots

The first part of the analysis is to calculate the gross sellout of the proposed project. As
stated previously, Scenario 1 assumes a 12 lot single family subdivision. A current market
value of $600,000 per lot has been forecast for the subject lots. Given that the lots won't
be ready to market until year three, an appreciation of 2.0 percent per year as discussed
above is applied to the forecast. This results in an average lot price of $637,000 in Year 3
and $649,000 in Year 4.

Sales Costs

Selling costs in the form of brokerage commissions are deducted from the anticipated
sellout, which is called Gross Proceeds. In the local marketplace, sales commissions on
residential houses and lots typically range from 4.0 to 5.0 percent per sale transaction.
Most agents would be willing to accept a fee of four percent for a listing on a multi-lot
development. Therefore, we have applied sales costs of 4.0 percent. The difference
between the periodic gross proceeds and the sales commissions equals Adjusted Gross
Proceeds (AGP).

Development Costs

Taxes: Taxes must be paid on the site during the holding period. The property is presently
exempt from taxes, but once sold, the owner will be responsible for property taxes. The
current tax rate in Middleton is $11.79 per $1,000 valuation. The tax rate will be applied at
a 2.5 percent annual increase. For the first two years, taxes are forecast based on the
current assessment. Beginning in Year 3, the assessment will increase based on the
completion of lots. For other vacant building lots that have recently sold in Middleton,
assessments appear at or near 100 percent of market value. Therefore, taxes are applied
to the property based on market value. The tax liability will decrease as lots are sold.

Approvals: This includes the costs required to obtain municipal approvals for the
development project. It includes, surveying, engineering (road, utilities, septic design, etc)
and legal costs. For a project of this nature, about $20,000 per lot is reasonable, or
$240,000 for the 12 lot project.

34



Roadway & Infrastructure Construction Costs: The developer must construct the roadway
and infrastructure for the 12 lot project. Scenario 1 calls for a roadway / cul-de-sac of about
1,100 feet in length. Roadway construction costs in this market area for projects of this size
have ranged from $800 to $1,500 per running foot. Shorter roadways with curbs, formal
drainage , sidewalks and underground utilities are typically more expensive than longer
streets. Given the length of road and the uncertainty with respect to soils, a conservative
estimated is reasonable, say $1,200 per running foot. The calculation is $1,200 times 1,100
feet equals $1,320,000.

Administrative/Contingency: These costs are related to the administration of the ongoing
project and are not related to developer's fee or profit. It is an accounting for the time spent
overseeing the project on a day to day basis. For the this analysis, 2.0 percent of Adjusted
Gross Proceeds (AGP) is deducted for administration and contingency.

Developer Fee or Profit

This is the amount that a developer/owner would expect as a return on effort. This is
different than return on capital investment, which usually involves both debt and equity
capital. Typically, developers of residential building projects expect a return on effort of
more than 10 to 20 percent of Adjusted Gross Proceeds. With no engineering or approvals
for the assumed 12 lot project, the risk is quite high. It is for this reason that undeveloped
parcels of land rarely sellwithout approvals in place. Therefore, for this analysis, 20 percent
of AGP is deducted to cover developer profit.

Discount Rate

The annual discount rate applied to the forecastincome stream is an effort to represent the
rate of return necessary to attract investment capital. This rate is influenced by many
considerations, prospective rates of return for alternative investment opportunities, supply
and demand of mortgage funds, and possible tax shelters. Rate selection requires
judgment concerning prevailing market attitudes and economic indicators.

The selection of a discount rate is best compared with alternative investment vehicles in
the marketplace since comparative discount rates from other projects are extremely difficult
to assess and are not typically available. Generally speaking, discount rates are usually set
at a level above Baa bond yields due to inherently higher risk, illiquidity, uncertainty with
respect to cash flows, and management intensity. Presently, Baa bond rates are in the
range of 5.5 to 7.5 percent. Borrowing rates are now in the 7.0 to 7.5 percent range. Real
estate development is considered a significantly higher risk and a discount rate 100 basis
points higher is considered reasonable. Therefore, a discount rate of 8.5 percent is applied
to the analysis.

The spreadsheet with the development analysis is shown on the following page. Based on
this analysis, an “as is” value of the subject property under Scenario 1 is $2,945,000

35



Value Scenario 1 -12 Lots

“DEVELOPMENT ANALYSIS
Locust Street
Middleton, Massachusetts

Value "As Is" (12 Lots)

PERIOD

Length of Period 1 2 3 4
12 Months | 12 Months | 12 Months | 12 Months
Number of Lots Sold
Average Price/Lot 0 0 6 6
$0 $0 $637,000 $649,000
GROSS PROCEEDS
Less Selling Costs (4%) $0 $0 $3,822,000 | $3,894,000
$0 30 $152,880 $155,760
ADJUSTED GROSS PROCEEDS
$0 $0 $3,669,120 | $3,738,240
DEV. COSTS/EXPENSES
Real Estate Taxes
Approvals (Engineering & Legal) $11,535 $11,823 $76,924 $26,931
Roadway Construction Costs $240,000 $0 $0 $0
Adminis./Contingency 2% AGP $0 $660,000 $660,000 $0
$0 30 $73,382 $74,765
TOTAL COSTS/EXPENSES
| $251,535 $671,823 $810,306 $101,696
NET INCOME BEFORE DEV. FEE
Less Developer Fee 20% AGP | ($251,535) | -$671,823 | $2,858,814 | $3,636,544
$0 $0 $733,824 | $747,648
NET INCOME AFTER DEV. FEE
| ($251,535) | -$671,823 | $2,124,990 | $2,888,896
PRES VALUE FACTOR 8.5%
0.921659 0.849455 0.782908 0.721574
ANNUAL PRESENT VALUE
| ($231,829) | -$570,683 | $1,663,671 | $2,084,552
INDICATED VALUE
| $2,945,711
SAY $2,945,000

Scenario 1-12 Lots
$2,945,000

36




Scenario 2: This scenario considered the development of the subject site with 17 lots
ranging from 10,000 to 16,000 square feet. Lots of this size are very rare for new
construction, both in Middleton and similar surrounding communities.

The sales include residential house lots in nearby Ipswich, Peabody, Lynnfield and
Newburyport. These sales are considered the best available for comparison to the
proposed subject lots. The overall sale prices range from $257,000 to $475,000, with five
of the six ranging from $355,000 to $475,000. The sales are shown on the grid below.

Small Residential House Lot Sales

Sale # Location Sale Date | Book/Page Land s.f. Sale Price

SUBJECT Locust St., Middleton N/A N/A 10,000-16,000 N/A
9 4 Perley Ave, Ipswich 5/14/24 | 42115/219 10,000 $257,000
10 200 Country Club Way, Ipswich | 3/1/23 41458/517 25,265 $430,000
11 Lot C-4 Lake Street, Peabody | 10/4/22 | 41228/013 20,006 $355,000
12 Loc C-3 Penny Lane, Peabody | 10/3/22 41226/102 20,004 $465,000
13 75 Pleasant St, Lynnfield 7/26/22 | 41089/036 11,870 $475,000
14 25 Howard Street, Newburyport | 4/13/22 40861/300 11,431 $389,000

Only Sales 10 and 13 are not on public sewer, like the subject. The remaining sales have
access to municipal sewerage. Sales 11 through14 are older but are most similar to the
subject overall. Three of the six are slightly larger that the proposed subject lots. Sale 13
at the high end of the range had some water views to a local pond.

Overall, given the age of the sales, and that the subject lots would be in a neighborhood
of new homes, a present market value of the subject lots is forecast at $450,000.

With a total of 17 lots, permitting and construction of the infrastructure is expected to take
two years, similar to Scenario 1. The sellout of the 17 lots is forecast over three years. All
other parameters of the analysis are similar to Scenario 1.

The spreadsheet with the development analysis is shown on the following page. Based on
this analysis, an “as is” value of the subject property under Scenario 2 is $3,140,000.

37



DEVELOPMENT ANALYSIS

Locust Street

Middleton, Massachusetts

Value "As Is"” (17 Lots)

PERIOD

Value Scenario 2 - 17 Lots

Length of Period 1 2 3 4 5
12 Months 12 Months 12 Months 12 Months 12 Months
Number of Lots Sold
Average Price/Lot 0 0 6 6 5
$0 $0 $504,000 $514,000 $524,000
GROSS PROCEEDS
Less Selling Costs (4%) $0 $0 | $3,024,000 | $3,084,000 | $2,620,000
$0 $0 $120,960 $123,360 $104,800
ADJUSTED GROSS PROCEEDS
$0 $0 | $2,903,040 | $2,960,640 | $2,515,200
DEV. COSTS/EXPENSES
Real Estate Taxes
Approvals (Engineering & Legal) $11,535 $11,823 $80,074 $49,854 $16,975
Roadway Construction Costs $340,000 50 $0 $0 $0
Adminis./Contingency 2% AGP $1,260,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $58,061 $59,213 $50,304
TOTAL COSTS/EXPENSES
$1,611,535 $11,823 $138,135 $109,067 $67,279
NET INCOME BEFORE DEV. FEE
Less Developer Fee 20% AGP ($1,611,535) -$11,823 $2,764,905 | $2,851,573 | $2,447,921
$0 $0 $580,608 $592,128 | $503,040
NET INCOME AFTER DEV. FEE
($1,611,535) -$11,823 $2,184,297 | $2,259,445 | $1,944,881
PRES VALUE FACTOR 8.5%
0.921659 0.849455 0.782908 0.721574 0.665045
ANNUAL PRESENT VALUE
| ($1,485,286) | -$10,043 $1,710,104 | $1,630,357 | $1,293,433
INDICATED VALUE | $3,138,565
SAY $3,140,000

Scenario 2 - 17 Lots

$3,140,000

38




RECONCILIATION

In this appraisal, the Sales Comparison and Development Approaches were developed.
The results are shown below.

Scenario 1: 12 Lots of 40,000 and greater $2,945,000
Scenario 2: 17 lots from 10,000 to 16,000 SF $3,140,000

As a test of reasonableness we considered the sale of the raw parcel of land how known
as Couture Way in Middleton. The site was developed into a 14 lot subdivision. Lot sales
1, 2 & 3 were listed in Scenario 1.

Couture Way was formerly known as 123 River Street. The site consisted of 17.5 acres of
land which yielded 14 house lots. It sold in October of 2021 for $2,575,000 or $147,143 per
acre. The above values indicate a value per acre of $161,000 to $172,000 for the subject’s
18.25 acres of developable land. Given the passing of time and market conditions, this sale
provides reasonable support to our final value estimates.

It the final analysis, the two scenarios indicate a range of only about six percent, which is
not considered significant. Although Scenario 2 reflects a slightly higher overall value, it is
based on highly speculative assumptions that three variances and three waivers would be
permitted to allow the development. This compares to Scenario 1 which would only require
two waivers for street length and sidewalk, both of which are relatively common.

This appraisal assumes marketing and exposure times of three to six months.

39



CERTIFICATION OF APPRAISER

| certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief:
The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct.

The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported
assumptions and limiting conditions, and are my personal, unbiased professional analyses,
opinions, and conclusions.

I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report, and
| have no personal interest or bias with respect to the parties involved.

I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties
involved in this assignment.

My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting
predetermined results. Neither my engagement to make this appraisal (or any future
appraisals for this client), nor any compensation therefore, are contingent upon the reporting
of a predetermined value or direction in that value that favors the client, the amount of the
value estimate, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent
event.

My compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development
or reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client,
the amount of the value opinion, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of
a subsequent event directly related to the intended use of this appraisal.

My analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been
prepared, in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice
(USPAP) and in conformity with requirements of the Code of Professional Ethics and the
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute.

| have made an inspection of the property that is the subject of this report. Laurence
Marocco of Minco Corp. has inspected the property and assisted in the development of the
approaches to value.

| have not performed any professional services (appraisal or otherwise) on the subject
property in the three years prior to the acceptance of this appraisal assignment.

As of the date of this report, |, John F. McCarthy, have completed the Standards and Ethics
Education Requirements of the Appraisal Institute for Practicing Associates.

Minco Corporation

T et

—

A I3
o

John F. McCarthy, VP
MA Certified General Appraiser #401
August 29, 2024

40



GENERAL LIMITING CONDITIONS

An appraisal is an unbiased opinion of value of a property reached through an analysis of that
property and from data from the marketplace. An appraisal is not a certification of the soundness
of the building, a survey, or a legal document, though assumptions regarding these and other
matters are made. The major assumptions and limiting conditions are as follows:

1.

The appraiser is not required to give testimony or appear in court because of having made
the appraisal, with reference to the property in question, unless arrangements have been
previously made.

Possession of this report, or a copy thereof, does not carry with it the right of publication.
It may not be used for any purpose by any person other than the party to whom it is
addressed without the written consent of the appraiser, and in any event only with proper
written qualification and only in its entirety.

The distribution of the total valuation in this report between land and improvements applies
only under the reported highest and best use of the property. The allocations of value for
land and improvements must not be used in conjunction with any other appraisal and are
invalid if so used.

Neither all or any part of the contents of this report, or a copy thereof, shall be conveyed to
the public through advertising, public relations, news, sales, or any other media without
written consent and approval of the appraiser. Nor shall the appraiser, firm, or professional
organization of which the appraiser is a member be identified without written consent of the
appraiser.

GENERAL UNDERLYING ASSUMPTIONS

1.

2.

The legal description used in this report is assumed to be correct.

No survey of the property has been made by the appraiser and no responsibility is assumed
in connection with such matters. Sketches in this report are included only to assist the
reader in visualizing the property.

No responsibility is assumed for matters of a legal nature affecting title to the property nor
is an opinion title rendered. The title is assumed to be good and marketable.

Information furnished by others is assumed to be true, correct, and reliable. A reasonable

effort has been made to verify such information; however, no responsibility for its accuracy
is assumed by the appraiser.

41



10.

11.

All mortgages, liens, encumbrances, leases and servitudes have been disregarded unless
so specified within the report. The property is appraised as though under responsible
ownership and competent management.

It is assumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the property, subsoil, or
structure which would render it more or less valuable. No responsibility is assumed for such
conditions or for engineering which may be required to discover such factors. No
certification is made regarding the absence of any substances, regarding potential,
unapparent structural defects or the proper placement of smoke detectors and potential
flood hazards. Unless otherwise stated in this report, it is assumed that no adverse
conditions affect the subject.

In this appraisal assignment, the existence of potentially hazardous material used in the
construction or maintenance of the building, such as the presence of Urea-formaldehyde
foam insulation, and/or the existence of toxic waste, which may or may not be present on
the property, was not observed by me; nor do | have any knowledge of the existence of
such materials on or in the property. The appraiser is not qualified to detect such
substances. The existence of Radon Gas, Urea-formaldehyde foam insulation or other
potentially hazardous materials may have an effect on the property value. The client is
urged to retain experts in these fields, if desired.

It is assumed that there is full compliance with all federal, state and local environmental
regulations and laws unless non-compliance is stated, defined and considered in the
appraisal report.

It is assumed that all applicable zoning and use regulations and restrictions have been
complied with, unless a non-conformity has been stated, defined and considered in the
appraisal report.

It is assumed that the utilization of the land and improvements is within the boundaries or
property lines of the property described and that there is no encroachment or trespass
unless noted within the appraisal report.

It is assumed that all required licenses, consents or other legislative or administrative
authority from any local, state or national governmental or private entity organization have
been or can be obtained or renewed for any use on which the value opinion contained
herein is based.

42



APPRAISER’S QUALIFICATIONS



JOHN F. MCCARTHY

CERTIFICATION: Massachusetts Certified General Real Estate Appraiser
License #401, Expiration 5/24/2025

New Hampshire Certified General Real Estate Appraiser
License # NHCG 230, Expiration 5/31/2025

CONTINUING Appraisal Institute, Chicago, Il

EDUCATION:
Course 530: Advanced Sales Comparison & Cost Approaches (1994)
Course 520: Highest & Best Use and Market Analysis (1993)
Course 2-2:  Report Writing and Valuation Analysis (1992)
Course 102: Applied Residential Property Valuation (1991)
Course SPP: Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice & Ethics,

Part A&B (1995) ‘

Course 101: Introduction to Appraising Real Property (1991)
Course 201: Principals of Income Property Appraising (1990)
Course 202: Applied Income Property Valuation (1991)

Massachusetts Board of Real Estate Appraisers (MBREA)
National USPAP Update 2024-2025 (2024)

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Course DCE 101: Real Estate Principals (1976)
Course DCE 102: Real Estate Appraising (1977)
Course DCE 103: Real Estate Law & Finance (1978)

EDUCATION: University of New Hampshire (1974-1976)
Major: Business Administration, Whittemore School of Business and
Economic
Study Area:  Business Management, Marketing

New England Aeronautical Institute (1972-1974)

Major. Business Management
Study Area:  Accounting, Federal Income Taxation



John F. McCarthy (Continued)

PROFESSIONAL
EXPERIENCE:

1983-Present MINCO Corporation, North Andover, MA

1976-1979

OTHER

ORGANIZATIONS:

PROFESSIONAL
AFFILIATIONS:

Vice President/CEO. Director of Commercial Appraisal Division.
Performing Narrative Appraisals and Appraisal Review of Residential,
Commercial, Industrial, and Special Use Properties; Providing consulting
services in Residential, Commercial and Industrial Real Estate.

Patriot Real Estate, Inc., Derry, NH & Andover, MA

Sales Manager, NH Office. Duties included Personnel management,
advertising and marketing, real estate sales and property evaluation.

Rebuilding Together * Greater Haverhill, Inc. (formerly Christmas in April)

Founding Member (1991), Former President, Treasurer, Member Board of
Directors, past Chairman of the Board. Natianally chartered 501(c)(3) non-
profit charity providing free home repair and renovations for low income
home owners, especially the elderly and disabled, in the greater Haverhill,
MA area.

Practicing Affiliate - The Appraisal Institute; MAI Candidate
Licensed Real Estate Broker:
Commonwealth of Massachusetts:
Board of Registration of Real Estate Brokers & Salesmen
License #103094, Expiration 5/24/2026
State of New Hampshire:
New Hampshire Real Estate Commission
Licensed #64615, Expiration 11/28/2025
Approved Appraiser. U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Expert Witness: Strafford County (NH) Superior Court
Rockingham County (NH) Superior Court
United States Bankruptcy Court, Worcester, MA
Lynn District Court, Lynn, MA
Member: Past President - Pentucket Kiwanis Club, Haverhill, MA



John F. McCarthy (Continued)

Current Appraisal
Licenses:

BOARD OF
REAL ESTATE APPRAISERS
ISSUES THE FOLLOWING LICENSE CERT
GEN. REAL ESTATE APPRAISER

JOHN F MCCARTHY
PO BOX 5333
HAVERHILL, MA 01835-0333

401 05/24/2025 . 449932
LICENSE NUMBER EXPIRATION DATE SERIAL NUMBER

State of New Hampshire

Real Estate Appraisers Board

Authorized as
Certified General Appraiser

Issued To
JOHN F MCCARTHY

Issue Date; 01/01/1993

Expiration Date: 05:31:2025




SUBJECT PROPERTY DEED



PROPERTY ADDRESS: LOCUST AND REAR EAST STREET, MIDOLETON, MASSACHLSETTS

% 7:.'-,4.7
b )
ec,

b
75)

7.

EVANS, EVANS &
BINGHAM. PA.
S8 MAIN BTREET
TOFSFIELD, MA 01853

{970 837 2108

928-01 02:44 PN Inst, 967

' !.u:e. ascoc.no. SE6745 BK17704 PG498

QUITCLAIM DEED

ALAN E. WEBBER, individually, of East Street, Middleton, Essex County,
Massachusetts 01949, in consideration of ONE MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED FIFTY
THOUSAND and 00/100 ($1,750,000.00) DOLLARS paid, hereby grant to the TOWN OF
MIDDLETON of 48 South Main Street, Middleton, Essex County, Massachusetts 01949,
WITH QUITCLAIM COVENANTS, the following described three (3) parcels of land situate
in suid Miduleton, Essex Couaiy, Massachusetts:

Parcels #1 and #2

Lots W1S and WIC as shown on a plan of land entitled “Subdivision Plan of Land Located in
Middleton, Mass.” prepared by Eastern Land Survey Associates, Christopher R. Mello, PLS,
104 Lowell Street, Peabody, MA 01960, Scale 1" = 80, dated April 23, 2001 prepared for Alan
E. Webber, unanimously endorsed as an Approval Not Required Plan by the Town of
Middleton’s Planning Board on May 23, 2001 and thereafter recorded with the Essex South
District Registry of Deeds at Plan Book 352, Plan No. 98 (the “Plan”) on July 30, 2001.

Said Lots WIS and WiC consisting of 17.41 +/- acres and 17.60 +/- acres of land respectively,
all as shown on said Plan.

For nile, see Deeds recorded n said Registry in Book 9841, Page 496 and Book 7847,
Page 16.

Parcel #3
The lund in Middleton, Essex County. Massachusetts being Lot 43 shown on a Plan entitled
“Definitive Subdivision Plan “Femmcroft Estates at Middleton®, Middleton, Mass..” scale 1" =

49", prepared by Meredian Engineering, Inc dated Manch 31, 2000 filed with the Land

9 Sh —




F—_ﬁ

EVANS, EVANS &
BINGHAM. PA.
8 MAIN STREET

TORSFIELD. MA O 1RE3

197D 88721885

- BK17704 PBASS

Registration Office in Boston as Plan 16270K, as modified and approved by the Court, a copy
of a portion of which is filed with the Essex Southern Registry District of the Land Court with
Certificate of Title No. 2949,

Lot 43 is granted together with the right and easement to use the “Proposed 15’ Wide
Temporary Slope Easement” within Lot 46 for the purpose of grading and sloping for the
construction of a read within Lot 43. The temporary easement shall expire upon the
construction of the road and acceptance thereof by the Town of Middleton.

Lot 43 is subject tu a4 10” wide way which is to be relocated from within Lot 46 10 Lot 43 as
depicted on the Petition Plan 16270K. The Grantee by acceptance and filing of this Deed does
hereby agree to said relocation.

For my title, see Certificte of Title No. 72949.

The above conveyances are made subject to all real estate taxes assessed and not yet due and
payable and all easements, covenants, restrictions, reservations, rights, agreements, takings,
leases and other matters of record.

The conveyance of Lot W18 is further subject to the following restrictions and conditions:

(a) Lot W1S shall be used by the Grantee only for permissible municipal purposes and
development, Notwithsianding the foregoing, in no event shall Lot W18 be used and/or
developed {or locaung a landfill to dispose of waste, refuse andfor garbage or for the
construction therecn of an incinerator, refuse transfer facility, resource recovery facility or
other solid waste disposal facility, sewage treatmen: facility, gas or electric lighting plant or

substation, community antenna television/telecommunications system or public airport.




F

EVANS, EVANS &
EINGHAM, PA
59 MAIN STREEY

TOPSFIELD, MA D983 w

«O78> 857 -2186

BK17704 PG00

{(b) No right of access or passage to the subject Lot shall be permitted over abutting
lands, the ownership of which is retained by the Grantor except as the same may hereafter be
provided by written grant duly recorded at the Essex South District Registry of Deeds.

(c) Until Lot W18 is otherwise developed, access thereto shall be through a gated
entryway located along the frontage on Locust Street provided by Lot 43. Said entryway shall
be secured to prevent motor vehicle access except during normal hours of operation.

The conveyance of Lot WIC is further subject to the following restrictions and conditions:

(ay Lot W1C shall be used and maintained in perpetuity by the Town of Middieton as
open space and conservation land under the provisions of M.G. L. c. 40, § 8C and M.G.L. c.
184, § 31, as the same be amended from time to time, for passive non-rnotorized recreation
only. To that end, the activities enumerated hereinbelow are expressty prohibited:

* the construction of buildings or structures on or above the ground;

* dumping or placing of soil, trash or other materials;

* removal of trees, shrubs or other vegetation except as may be necessary to
maintain the Lot in its current condition,

* removal of loam, rock or other mineral substances;

* surface use other than passive non-motorized recreation activities that
permit the area to remain predominantly in its current condition;

* activities detrimrental 1o drainage, flood cuntrol, water conservation,
erosion conirol or soil conservation; or

* any other acts or uses detrimental to the retention of the land for open
space and conservation.

The within conveyances are further subject 10 Grantor’s right to repurchase the entire premises, or
any portion theceof, at its then fair market value in the event that the Town of Middleton shall ever

seek to sell, transfer, convey, exchange andfor otherwise dispose of the same, or any portion




BK1T704 PG3I0]

thereof, Said right to repurchase must be exercised by the Grantor herein within ninety (90) days
of Grantor’s receipt of a written notice, sent by way of certified mail, return receipt requested,
from the Town of Middieton of'its intent Lo offer the premises, or any portion thereof, for sale.

The Grantee hereby acknowledges that (i) the sale of the premises is a “bargain sale” as the term is
used and described in the Internal Revenue Code (“Code™) of 1986, as amended; (ii) that the
difference between the consideration herein recited and the appraised value of the premises is
intended to be a charitable contribution under § 170 of the Code for the benefit of both the Grantor
and the Grantee, and (iii) no acditional goods and services have been provided by the Grantee to
the Grantor in consideration of the within charitable contribution by Grantor to Grantee.

For my title, see Cerificaic of Title No, 72949.

WITNESS my hand and seal this 14% day of August 2001,

InGaLEM 8 2 9 4
SEEDS FEG 10 “ % '
CepseEx SOUTH g “ & ALAN E. WEBBER, Grantor
My “ g @
= \ * & 4]
—R/ZB/0L 1:25°K O 70 i “E P
TpO000 HeT45 G0 8 § 5
T
Fie S175.40 Q g8 # &
S 19 50— COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
caSEX, 88, August 14, 2001

Then personally appeared the above-named ALAN E. WEBBER, Grantor and
acknowledged the foregoing instnnment 10 be his free act and deed, before me,

EVANS, EVANS B
BINGHAM, PA. lu].)’: 21. 2006
28 MAIN STREET Ao la e VAT

TOPSFIELD. MA Q1983

4978, 897-2166 ‘




FLOOD MAP



5




5202/8/L 19q4e9 Asjysy Aq pasedasd

|0J3UOD 1IN0 PUOAS( SJ0JIR) JBYIO pUR AlljIge(IRAR MBI “Jayieam 0} anp aSueyd 03 193[qNS S1Q 4 4

Ajuo |suuossad AduaSiaws pue syuspisal o} uado ‘(saue| yjoq) paso)d peoy

Ajuo [suuosiad Aduadiawa pue syuapisad 1oy uado {(saue| Y10q) paso)d peoy

O4NI 2SI ‘STENSO1D ANV

3|npayds 3uined 9Z-Ad

Wdt - INVL

Wdv - INVL

SINIL

«+9C0T/9T/L

*xGC0T/ST/L0
R ST0T/V1/L0
(slaLva

199018 Auaqny
13 3NUBAY ysngag
1934315 X9553

193.1S 152404

(s)133u1s



